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that time, Mr. McWillie has worked in gambling casinos in
Havana, Cuba, as well as Las Vegas, Nev.

Mr. McWillie has entered under the rules of the committee a
specific request that there be no photographic coverage of his ap-
pearance and no electronic coverage. That means no one is to
photograph or keep lights on or use any tape recorder to record
Mr. McWillie’s voice or face. Mr. Chairman, it would be appropri-
ate if an order be entered into that effect.

Mr. PreYER. Pursuant to rule 16 which reads in pertinent part, at
the request of any witness who does not wish to be subjected to
radio, television or still photography coverage, all lenses shall be
covered and all microphones used for coverage turned off.

At this time, the Chair directs that all lenses be covered and that
all microphones be turned off.

Mr. BLAKEY. It would be appropriate at this time, Mr. Chairman,
to call Lewis J. McWillie.

Mr. PrevER. The committee calls Lewis McWillie.

TESTIMONY OF LEWIS McWILLIE, LAS VEGAS, NEV.

Mr. Prever. Will you stand and be sworn, Mr. McWillie. Do you
solemnly swear the evidence you are about to give in this hearing
will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so
help you God?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, sir.

Mr. PrevEr. Mr. McWillie, pursuant to your request, all micro-
phones and lenses, broadcasting equipment, have been cut off.

The Chair recognizes counsel Donald Purdy for questioning of
this witness.

Mr. Purpy. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. McWillie, what is your full name and where do you live?

Mr. McWILLIE. Lewis J. McWillie.

Mr. Purpy. Where do you live?

Mr. McWIiLLIE Las Vegas, Nev.

Mr. Purpy. How long have you lived there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, off and on since 1963.

Mr. Purpy. What is your present occupation?

Mr. McWILLIE. I work in a gambling house.

Ml:';) Purpy. Prior to your present employment, where did you
work?

Mr. McWILLIE. Binion’s Horse Shoe Club.

Mr. Purpy. Have you been involved in working in gambling
casinos since you moved to Las Vegas in 1963?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, sir.

Mr. Purpy. For how many years have you been involved in
gambling casinos and gambling operations throughout the country?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I would say 46 years.

Mr. Purpy. In what cities have you been involved in gambling
operations or casinos?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Oh, what cities?

Mr. Purpy. Yes, sir.

Mr. McWiLLIE. In this country?

Mr. Purpy. Or in other countries.

Mr. McWiLLie. Well, I started off in Memphis, Tenn., and then 1
was in Mississippi.
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. PUrDY. Approximately when? Please give the years in which

you were in those cities also.

Mr
Mr
after
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr

. McWIiLLIE. Oh, I would say Memphis, 1932-36.

. Purbpy. What city were you working in gambling casinos
that?

. McWILLIE. Prior to that?

. Purpy. After that.

. McWILLIE. After that?

. PURrDY. Subsequent to 19367

. McWiLLIE. Then I was in Jackson, Miss. after that.

. Purpy. How long were you working and living in Jackson,

Miss.?

Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
Mr
don’t

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

. McWiLLIE. Well, a short while, and then in Osyka, Miss.
. Purpy. Were you also involved in gambling there?
. McWILLIE. Yes sir.
. Purpy. When did you leave there and where did you go?
. McWILLIE. I left there, lets see, I would say 1939 or 1940. I
know exactly.
Purpy. What cities did you work in since then?
McWiLLIE. Dallas.
Purbpy. Were you involved in gambling in Dallas?
McWILLIE. I was a dealer there, yes.
Purpy. During what years did you live in Dallas?
McWILLIE. I would say from 1940 to 1958.
Purpy. Where did you go after you lived in Dallas?
McWILLIE. After I left Dallas?
Purby. Yes.
McWIiLLIE. I went to Cuba.
Purbpy. Were you involved in gambling in Cuba?
McWIiLLIE. I managed the Tropicana Night Club.
Purpy. Were you involved in gambling?
McWILLIE. Yes sir.
Purpy. Subsequent to your work in Cuba, where did you

move to?

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

June

McWIiLLIE. Subsequent. That means afterwards?
Purpy. Yes.
McWiLLIE. I went to Miami and stayed until the first of

Mr. Purpy. The first of June of what year?

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

McWiLLIE. 1961.

Purpy. Were you involved in gambling in Miami?
McWiLLIE. No.

Purpy. Where did you live after you left Miami?
McWiLLIE. After I left Miami I went to Lake Tahoe.
Purbpy. Were you involved in gambling in Lake Tahoe?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, I was'a pit boss.

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Purby. When did you leave Lake Tahoe?
McWILLIE. I left Lake Tahoe in September of 1961.
Purby. Did you move to Las Vegas from Lake Tahoe?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I moved to Reno.

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Purpy. Were you involved in gambling in Reno?
McWIiLLIE. Yes sir.
Purpy. How long were you in Reno?
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Mr. McWiLLIE. 1961. I left there, let’s see, right before Christmas
of 1963, I believe.

Mr. Purbpy. And you moved to Las Vegas? .

Mr. McWiLLie. No, I went back to Miami to visit with my
mother.

Mr. Purpy. How long were you there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Oh, 3 weeks.

Mr. Purpy. Where did you go after you visited Miami?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I went back to Las Vegas.

Mr. Purbpy. Have you lived in Las Vegas since?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Off and on yes.

Mr. Purpy. You have been involved in gambling casinos while
you have been in Las Vegas?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well the first, you want me to tell you the casi-
nos?

Mr. Purby. I don’t think we need to cover the specific casinos at
this time.

Mr. McWiLLIE. Yes, I was involved in casino work.

Mr. Purpy. What has been the nature of your involvement in
casino work over these years?

Mr. McWiLLie. Working in the gambling part of it, overseeing
the gambling.

Mr. Purpy. Mr. McWillie, what were the circumstances sur-
rounding your first encounter with Jack Ruby?

Mr. McWiLLIE. What were the circumstances?

Mr. Purpy. Yes, how did you meet Jack Ruby?

Mr. McWiLLie. Well, I told you that in this. I met him in a
restaurant.

Mr. Purpy. Approximately when?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I would say 1951.

Mr. Purpy. Someone introduced you to him in a restaurant in
Dallas in 19517

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes sir.

Mr. Purby. Do you remember who introduced you?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He introduced himself to me.

Mr. Purpy. He just walked up to you?

Mr. McWiLLie. Well, I noticed him at the counter. We went into
this restaurant every night to eat and three or four nights he was
at the counter and staring at fellows and myself and I asked
someone who he was and I don’t know, one of them knew him or
not, they said he had a night club or something.

Anyway, about the third or fourth night when we got up to leave
he walked over and introduced himself to me and I said nice to
meet you and what do you want, Mr. Ruby? And, he went on to tell
me about he was having trouble with his night club and had some
kind of curfew put on him and I asked him, I said, Mr. Ruby, you
are Jewish, aren’t you, and he said, yes. I said well, there is a
gentleman here in town by the name of Julius Schepps that might
be able to help you, if there is nothing bad wrong with you, so I
suggested that he go see Mr. Schepps, and he did, and he seemed to
get his trouble straightened out.

Mr. Purpy. Mr. Schepps was able to help Jack Ruby?

MEI McWiLLiE. Evidently, because he didn't have any more
trouble.
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Mr. Purpy. What was the nature of your next few meetings with
Jack Ruby. How did you happen to see him again after he came up
and introduced himself?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, he called me on the phone and he thanked
me and I met him back in the restaurant, and from then on he was
just around me every time he got a chance he would be around.

Mr. Purpy. How would you characterize your relationship with
Jack Ruby in the 1950’s in Dallas?

Mr. McWILLIE. 1950’s, I wasn’t around him a real lot, you might
say, he would come out to my apartment and swim in the pool and
he was a kind of a leech, you might say.

Mr. Purpy. Kind of a leech?

Mr. McWILLIE. Leech. And he was just a hard fellow to get rid of.

Mr. Purpy. You say he came over uninvited?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, he came over uninvited after so long a time
and he would hang around the pool everyday and swim and have
dinner with me and different things.

Mr. Purpy. Did you ever have to ask him to leave?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I don’t recall. I could have. I don’t recall it,
though.

Mr. Purpy. Were you and Jack Ruby friends during the 1950’s?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, we were friends.

Mr. Purpy. Were you aware that Jack Ruby considered you one
of his closest friends?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I would have to say so, yes, on account of the
favors I had done him.

Mr. Purpy. What was the reason?

Mr. McWiLLIE. The favors I have done him.

Mr. Purby. So he liked you because you had done favors-for him?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I helped him.

Mr. Purpy. How had you helped him other than getting Mr.
Julius Schepps to help him? Did you help him in any other way?

Mr. McWILLIE. I helped him with, he had a union problem, he
called me in Las Vegas in the early part of 1963.

Mr. Purpy. We will go into that in more detail in a little while.

Mr. McWiLLIE. All right.

Mr. Purpy. Were you aware that Jack Ruby included you on a
list of people who might dislike him?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He put me on a list of people that might dislike
him?

Mr. Purpy. Yes.

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, I am not.

Mr. Purpy. Was there any reason that you could think of that
Jack Ruby might think that you disliked him?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No way.

Mr. Purpy. Did Jack Ruby idolize you?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. In a sort of way I would think so, yes.

Mr. Purpy. Why did he idolize you?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I guess because I had helped him keep his busi-
ness open.

Mr. Purpy. What contacts, if any, did you have with Jack Ruby’s
family, friends and business associates?
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Mr. McWiLLik. I didn’t even know his family or friends, I didn’t
know his family. He told me that he had a brother who was sick
and his sister was ill, someway. He didn’t elaborate.

Mr. Purpy. Did you have any mutual friends?

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir?

Mr. Purpy. Did you have any mutual friends?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Yes, we had friends, a friend named Meyer
Panitz, and Jake Rifkin, they were good friends of his.

Mr. Purpy. They were also good friends of yours?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Oh, yes, they were friends of mine in Memphis.

Mr. Purpy. Is there anyone else you can think of that was a
friend of both you and Jack Ruby?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, I don’t. He probably knew everybody in town
on account of this night club he had.

Mr. Purpy. Did you know a lot of people in Dallas also?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Quite a few, yes.

Mr. Purpy. Other than what you have mentioned, did you do
anything else with Jack Ruby, such as travel with him?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, no, never traveled with Jack Ruby.

Mr. Purpy. What knowledge do you have of Jack Ruby’s possible
involvement in any criminal activities?

Mr. McWiLLIE. None whatever, sir.

Mr. Purpy. What is your opinion of Jack Ruby’s personality?
What kind of a man was he?

Mr. McWiLLie. Well, Jack was a man that, he wanted to be a big
man in the entertainment field, I would say, the biggest, and he
was kind of an egotist, I guess, and I don’t know.

Mr. Purpy. Was he a thoughtful man, was he a gentle man?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, he was, he was as far as I know.

Mr. Purpy. Was he ever a violent man?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Not around me, no sir.

Mr. Purpy. Mr. McWillie, did you give a deposition to staff
members of this committee on April 4, 19787

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes sir.

Mr. Purbpy. Mr. Chairman, I ask at this time that that deposition
be entered into the record as JFK exhibit No. F-572.

Mr. PrevEr. Without objection, it will be admitted into the
record at this point.

Mr. Purpy. Mr. Chairman, I also ask at this time that two FBI
interviews of Mr. McWillie be entered into the record as JFK
exhibits F-573 and F-574.

Mr. Prever. Without objection, they will be admitted into the
record at this point.

. l[iI‘he] above referred to JFK exhibits F-572, F-573, and F-574
ollow:
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JFK Exuierr F-572

To: G. Robert Blakey
From: Howard Shapiro
Re: Summary of Deposition of Lewis McWillie
Taken by Jim Wolf and Andy Puxdy, 4/4/78
Chiivy
A. McWillie biographical data

McWillie was born May 4, 1908 in Ransas City, Missouri (p. 4). His
current address is 3627 Eastern Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada (p. 3). He is
currently employed as a floorman at the Roliday Inn casino in Las Ve-
gas (p. 4) and has worked at various casinos for many years.

McWillie worked at the Blue Bonnet Hotel in Dallas in 1941 and
1942 (p. 8), and then worked at the Top of the Hill Terrace in Arlington,
Texas for eight or nine years (p. 7). Then he ran a gambling house
in Fort Sorth for several years called the Four Duces (p. 6).

Following this he worked at the Tropicana and Capri Hotel 4in Cuk__a
(p. 6), and spent some time working in Aruba and Curacao (p. 5). In 1961
he began working in Nevada, at the Cal-Neva Lodge (p. 5), and then at
the Riverside Hotel, Thunderbird Club, Carousel Club (Las Vegas),

Horseshoe Club, ans finally the Holiday Inn casino (pp. 4-5).

B. Relationship with Jack Ruby

McWillie met Ruby in 1951. He would see Ruby occasionally in a
late-night restaurant and was told that Ruby ran the Vegas Club. "Fi-
pally, one night we got up to go out into the lobby of the hotel and he
walked up to me and said, 'Is your name McWillie?' I said, 'Yes.' And
he explained who he was and that he was Jewish and that he was having a
problem with his night club” (p. 9).

Ruby's problem apparently concerned a curdew and possible dis-

criminatory enforcement by somebody (p. 11). McWillie advised Ruby to



speak to an individual named Schepps (p. 9). Between 1951 and 1958
McWillie could not get rid of Ruby and they became pretty good friends
(pp. 9, 23).

The last time McWillie saw Ruby was in 1961 when McWillie was driv-
ing from Miami to Las Vegas and he stayed overnight in Dallas (p. 80).
While in Las Vegas McWillie received several letters from Ruby which
concerned Ruby's Carousel club in Dallas and how nice it was and items
of this nature (p. 79).

Early in 1963 McWillie called Ruby and wanted Ruby to go to a gun
dealer in Dallas (Ray Brantley) and purchase a handgun and send it to
Las Vegas, as McWillie stated that he didn't know where to go in Las
Vegas to get a gun (pp. 19-20). McWillie did not recall asking Ruby
to send him four guns (to Cuba) in 1959 (pp. 21, 69).

‘In 1963 Ruby called McWillie to see if he could help out with Ruby's
labor and union (AGVA) problems. McWillie suggested contacing William
Miller, who was in the entertainment field. Ruby did this and later
called McWillie & number of times to express his thanks for M:Willie's
aid (pp. 17, 71). McWillie had no familiarity with AGVA's operations
in Dallas (p. 71).

McWillie several times denied making statements to the FBI in

1963 and 1964 (p. 113) concerning Ruby.

C. McWillie in Cuba

McWillie was in Cuba from the middle of 1958 until January 1,
1961. Johnny Williams contacted McWillie about a possible job at the
Tropicana in Cuba (p. 82), so McWillie went to Cuba and met with the

Tropicana's owners, Martinez and Pedro Fox (p. 83). He got the job and
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was later promised a percentage of the club's profits if it was a suc-
cess but this did not turn out to be the case (p. 85). When the govern-
ment closed the clubs the Foxes went to Miami (p. 86).

In Cuba McWillie knew Santos Trafficante and Norman Rothman but just
in the sense of casually seeing them (p. 91). He saw Trafficante in
prison once but did not talk to him (p. 92). He did see Dino Cellini
in prison, as Cellini was at one time manager at the Tropicana (p. 94).
McWillie's reason for visiting the prison at all was to see a younger
individual who had been a dealer at the club (p. 95).

McWillie also met Jake Lansky in Cuba (p. 96), and he made a num~
ber of trips to Miaml to deposit money in banks for the Foxes (p. 99).

McWillie stated,that the Cuban government never bothered him (p.

93). After leaving Cuba he had strong anti-Castro feelings.m

D. Ruby in Cuba

McWillie convinced the Foxes that one way to get more business for
the Tropicana would be to have Tony Zoppi, a Dallas entertainment col-
umnist, come to Cuba and then give the club a write-up. To do this Mc~
Willie fnvited Zoppi and Ruby (they were also friendly) to Cuba and he
called Ruby in the spring of 1959 to inform him of this plan (p. 12).
Ruby said that he would get Zoppi to go along with the plan (p. 106), and
McWillie eventually sent two airplane tickets to Dallas (pp. 13, 108).
Zoppi couldn't make the trip so Ruby came by himself, in August, 1959,
which foiled the publicity angle (p. 13). McWillie did not know why

Zoppi did not come (p. 111).



11

McWillie displayed part of a letter writtem by Zoppi to Matty
Brescia Enterprises in whixh Zoppi states that any theories concerning
the assassination and Ruby and Cuban links are not true (pp. 14-15).

Ruby stayed in Cuba for about six days and McWillie believes that
he then went back to Dallas (p. 17). McWillie can't remember what i
did in Cuba besides annoy him (p. 103). McWillie did introduce Ruby
to the Foxes (p. 86), and says that he is not sure if Ruby accompanied
him on any prison visits (p. 133). McWillie dosen't recall a one-day
Ruby visit to Cuba and says that if this occurred in 1959 then he would

know about it. (p. 133).

E. McWillie associates

McWillie says that he knows R.D. Matthews, a Dallas gambler (p.:
40). He knew Joseph Civello in Dallas (p. 59), gnd he knew Jack Todd
and saw Todd once or twice in Cuba, but Ruby wasn't in Cuba at those
times (p. 61). He knew Sam Yaras, brother of organized crime figure Dave
Yaras (pp. 64-65).

McWillie knew George Butler of the Dallas police (p. 74). He knew
Meyer Panitz well (p.’100). He knew Mike Mclaney and worked for him at

one time, in 1975. He also knew Mike's brother Bill McLaney (p. 123).

F. Ruby information

McWillie says that Ruby always had a gun, in order to protect
the receipts from his club, and he remembers the sack wherein Ruby kept
the gun and money (pp. 20, 70).

There was no gambling activity at the Vegas.Club and this club

was full of customers all the time (pp. 23, 26). McWillie was never in
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Ruby's Carousel club. Ruby himself would never gamble on anything

and was not involved with gambling in any way (pp. 33, 36, 54). Ruby

did not know any of the pmuinent Dallas gambling figures (pp. 45-46).
Ruby was a frugal individual (p. 36). He was always courteous to

Dallas policemen and gave them whiskey as Christmas presents (p. 72).

McWillie believes that Ruby had wanted to be a big man around Dallas

and that he shot Oswald iporder to become a martyr of some sorts (pp.

30, 129-130).

G. Ruby associates

McWillie says that two of Ruby's closest friends were Jake Rif-
kin, a gambler, and Mark Panitz, although this may be Meyer Panitz
(pp. 27-28), whome McWillie later describes as ome of Ruby's closest-
friends (p. 101). Panitz is described as a bookmaker.

Ruby knew W.C. Kirkwood, but not his son Pat Kirkwood (p. 33).
Ruby knew the Campisi brothers in Dallas and thinks that Ruby knew
Jack Todd (pp. 59, 62). Ruby knew Gordon Mclendon very well (p. 73).

About four months ago Earl Ruby introduced himself to McWillie
in Las Vegas and said he was in town working on a documentary about
Jack Ruby. McWillie told Earl Ruby that he wasn't interested in talking
to him and that his relationship with Jack Ruby had already caused him

enough problems (pp. 38-39).
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Index of Names for McWillie Deposition

Dick Anconi
Johnny Avon
Barney Baker
+3abe Baron
Dominic Bartone
Sam Benton

Benny Bickers
Benny Binion
Willie Bischorf

(aka Lefty Clark)

Johnny Blaine
* Ray Brantley
James Breen
Bunny Breen
Edward Browder
Fred Browning
Angelo Bruno
George Butler
Billy Byers

Joe Campisi

Sam Campisi

NU Carraway

Dino Cellini
Berle Cheek
Oscar Cheninder
Joe Civello

Jim Clunen
Raymond Cortez
Earl Dalton
Richard Danner
James Henry Dolan
Paul Dorfman
David Elatkin
Marty Field
William E. Fletcher
Martinez, Pedro Fox
Sidney Fruhman
Sam Giancana

Eva Grant

Lois Green

Johnay Grizzaffi
Dewey Groom

Pete Guarisco
Steve Guthrie
Harry Hall
J. Patrick Hemming
John Wilson Hudson
E.Howard Hunt
H.L. Hunt
Paul R. Jones
Fay Kirkwood
Pat Kirkwood
W.C. Kirkwood

35-379 0 - 79 - 2

58

43, 46

64

88

118

118

44, 46

42, 43, 45, 46, 49. 51, 61

87, 88
134

20

67

67

118

7, 44, 45, 46
87

74

57-58

59-60

59-60

56

94-95, 134
43-44, 46

86, 132

59

17

131

7-8, 42, 51-52, 75
126

71

65

132

58-59

131

83, 85-86, 90, 93, 99, 105, 116-117

31
97, 125
38

61

60

58

40

48

57

122

93

127

57, 74

67

32, 35
32-34
32-35, 44



Jay Kosloff
Jake Lansky
Meyer Lansky
Robert Larkin
incent Lee
Mike McLaney
William McLaney
Robert McKeown
Gordon McLendon
Carlos, Vincent Marcello
John Thomas Masen
Elizabeth Ann Matthews
Russell D. Matthews
Joseph Merola
Lawrence Meyers
Ivy Miller
I1zzy Miller
Misty Lane Miller
William Miller
uan Orta
Mark, Meyer Panitz
Tony Pappa
Lenny Patrick
Sid Richardson
T.W. Richardson
Jake Rifkin
Helen Alfonse Roan
John Roselli
Norman Rothman
Earl Ruby
San Ruby
Henry Savadra
Red Scarborough
Julius Schepps
Mike Shore
Sidney Siedband
John Eli Stone
Frank Sturgis

jack Todd

Santos Trafficante
Harry Urban
FNU Ventura
Abe Weinstein
Ben Whittaker
Johnny Williams
Will Wilson
Dave Yaras
Sam Yaras

‘éess Zilliack

ony Zoppi

14

5

95, 134

95

132

71

122-123, 125
123-125

68, 118
72-73

39

7-8, 42-43, 45, 51-52, 75
62

102

18, 135

131

28, 100-102, 135
72

64

56, 58

83-84

27-29, 135

67

96-~97, 125

91, 94

38

39

131

7, 42-43, 46, 51-52, 75
9-11, 22, 75

72

61

63

- 126

12~-14, 16, 24, 81, 100, 106-112, 114~115, 119-120
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

SELECT COMMITTEE ON ASSASSINATIONS

DEPOSITION OF LEWIS J. MC WILLIE, a witness pro-
duced, sworn, and examined on Tuesday, the 4th day of April,
in the year of our Lord 1978, between the hours of 8 ofclock
in the forenoon and 6 o'clock in the afternoon of that day,
in Room 4-003, Federal Courthouse, 210 Las Vegas Boulevard,
before the Select Committee on Assassinations, House of
Representatives of the United States of America.

APPEARANCES:
For the Committee:

" JAMES WOLF,
Deputy Chief Counsel,
Select Committee on Assassinations,
U. S. House of Representatives,
Washington, D. C.

DONALD A. PURDY,

Staff Counsel,

Select Committee on Assassinations,
U. S. House of Representatives,
Washington, D. C.
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LEWIS J. MC WILLIE
of lawful age, being produced, sworn, and examined on the
part of the Committee, deposeth and saith:
MR. WOLF: The record should note that the witness
has been sworn by Magistrate Ward.
My name is Janes Wolf. My co-counsel today is
Donald Purdy and we both have been, pursuant to House
Resolution 222 and Committee Rule 4, designated counsel
empowered to take statements under oath.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. WOLF:

Q. Will the witness please state his name for the
record?

A. Sir?

Q. Will the witness please state his name for the
record?

A. Lewis J. McWillie.

Q. And, Mr. McWillie, you have been subpoenaed by
the House Committee but instead of an appearanhce in
Washington, you requested that this deposition take place
in--

A. (Interrupting) Yes, I just had an operation on
my eye.

Q. Excuse me, sir.

A. I just had an operation on my eyes. I had a de-
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tached retina in my left eye, right eye, too.
Q. And this deposition is taking place at your re-

Qquest, then, to avoid an appearance in Washington, is that

correct?
A. I wanted to be close to my doctors, yes.
Q. Mr. McWillie, you are aware that under our

Committee's rules, you have the right to have counsgel with
you at this deposition.

A. I don't need any counsel, I don't think.

Q. hnd, Mr. McWillie, you have been given a copy of
our Committee Rules and House Resolutions 222, 433 and 760,
is that correct?

A. To tell you the truth, I didn'ft read it. I just
knew it was a subpoena.

Q. Well, are you aware of Committee Rule 4, which is
about the designated counsel taking your statements under
oath? You have been given a copy of the Committee Rules, is
that correct?

A. Yes.

BY MR. PURDY:

Q. Mr. McWillie, could you please state yonr present
address?

A. 3627 Eastern Avenue.

Q. In Las Vegas?

A. Las Vegas, yes.
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N
Q. wWhat is your date and place of birth?
A. Kansas City, Missouri, 1908.
Q. What was the month and day?
A. May 4th.
Q. What is your present occupation?
A. I'm a floorman in a casino.
Q what casino is that?

A. Holiday Inn.

Q How long have you worked there?

A. I've worked there a little over a year, about
14 months.

Q wWhere did you work before that?

A. I worked before that at the Horseshoe Club.

Q. How long did you work there?

A. I worked there on and off many years, since '67, I

Q. Do you recall where you worked prior to that?
A. I worked at the Carousel Club.
Q How long did you work there?
Let me see, about three years, I guess.
That would be 1964 to 196772
A. I would say so. I'm not sure but I would say
that'!s about the date.
Q What city was that?

A. Here in Las Vegas.
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Where did you work prior to 19642

1964 1 worked at the Riverside Hotel in Reno.

How long did you work there?

I worked thére the latter part of '61 through '62.
What was your job prior to that?

What was my job, where did I work prior to that?

Yes.

I worked at the Thunderbird Hotel. I left there

and went to the Thunderbird Hotel.

A.
Antilles.
ferred to

Q

now. Wait just a minute.

How long did you work there?

I worked there about a year.

Where did you work prior to that?

I went to an island named Arruba, the Netherland
I stayed there maybe a month and then was trans-

Curacao. I stayed there about nine months.

Who transferred you to Curacao?

Jay Kosloff, K-o-s-l-o-f-f.

Prior to working in Arruba, where did you work?

I went from Arruba to Curacao, last place I

No, I mean prior to Arruba, where did you work?
Prior to Arruba I worked at the--wait a minute

I skipped one place I didn't tell

you. Before I went to the Riverside, I worked at the Cal-

Neva Lodge. 1In '61 I was at the Cal-Neva Lodge.
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Q. So you worked--

A. (Interrupting) Then I went to the other places.
Q. Then you went on to Arruba and Curacao?
A. Yes.

Q. Prior to working at the Cal-Neva Lodge, where did
you work?

A. Prior to that I worked in Cuba.

Q Did you work in Havanna at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q Did you work at the Tropicana then?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you woxk at any cther--

A. (Interrupting) I worked in the Capri Hotel, I
don't know how long, it wasn't very long, though.

Q. Where did you work prior to working at the
Tropicana and the Capri Hotels?

A. In Dallas.

Q. Where did you work in Dallas?

A. Well, I had a little gambling house, let me see,
in Fort Worth.

Q How long did you run that gambling house?

A. We had it a couple or three years, I guess. I
don!t exactly remember how long.

Q. What was the name of that gambling house?

A. The Pour Duces we called it. Prior to that I
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worked at the Top of the Hill Terrace in Arlington, Texas.

Q. How long did you work there?

A. Oh, I1'd say eight years, nine years.

Q. Who did you work for there?

A. Who did I work for? I worked for a man named
Fred Browning and I worked for Earl Dalton, Ivy Miller and
a fellow named Scarborough.

Q. What kind of work did you do at that club?

A. I was a manager.

Q. You managed the gambling activities?

A. The gambling, yes.

Q. When did you begin the gambling operation at the
Pour Duces?

A. Doggone if I know. I think it was '51, I'm not
sure, not positive.

Q. What kind of gambling went on there?

A. Dice games and 21 game.

Q. Just dice and card games?

A. Yes.

Q Was there any numbers operation working out of

A. No, no, it was a little place.
Q. Where did you work prior to the Four Duces?
A. I told you that, at the Top of the Hill Terrace.

Q. Where did you work prior to that?
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A. Let me see. I worked in Dallas at a place called
the Blue Bonnet Hotel, I believe it was.

Q. Was there a gambling operation there?

A. Yes.

[*X what kind of gambling was there?

A. Dice game.

Q. Who did you work for there?

»

I worked for Miller.

Q. Ivy Miller?

A. Ivy Miller and Earl Dalton, the only two I
know I was working for.

Q when did you begin your work at the Blue Bonnet?

A. Let me see. It was eo long ago. I'd say f4l1 or
'42, I'm not sure.

Q. So you worked at the Blue Bonnet from 1941 to !42
until you worked at the FPour Duces?

A. I don't think I worked for the Blue Bonnet but
about a year. Then I went out to the Top of the Hill.

Q So you worked in Dallas at the Blue Bonnet, then
the Top of the Hill, then the Four Duces?

A. That's right.

Q. So the first club that you owned, what was the
first club that you owned? Was that the Four Duces?

A. That was the Pour Duces, yes.

Q. So the other places you worked for other people,
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is that right?

A. Other people, yes.

Q. Mr. McwWwillie, when did you meet Jack Ruby?

A. Jack Ruby, I've tried to think what year it was.
DO you want me to tell you the whole story about Jack Ruby
from the beginning to the end?

Q. I think that would be a good idea, yes, sir.

A. I believe it was when I was at the Pour Duces
and a couple of dealers and myself would stop in an all-
night restaurant and get a bite to eat when we come in, may-
be 2 o'clock, 1 o'clock, 3 olclock. I noticed a fellow at
the counter with a hat on, whith was very unusual to see a
fellow with a hat on around Dallas. I asked one of the
fellows, I said, "Who is that fellow?" He kept looking at
us. He said, "That's a fellow named Jack Ruby that rune a
club named the Vegas Club out on Oak Lawn", I believe it
was. About three or four nights he was there.

FPinally, one night we got up to go out into the
lobby of the hotel and he walked up to me and said, “Is
your name McWillie?" I said, "Yes." And he explained who
he was and that he was Jewish and that he was having a prob-
lem with his night club. He talked like a real nice fellow.
I said, "why don'tlyou go see Mr. Schepps. a man named
Julius Schepps.” He owned a big liquor distributing place

there and he used to play with us at the  Top of the Hill, a




]

o

~1

24

10

real nice man.
MR. WOLF: Could you spell the name Schepps?
THE WITNESS: 1I'd have to say it was S-c-h-e-
p-p-8.
BY MR. PURDY:
Q- Do you remember his first name?
A. Julius.
BY MR. WOLF:

Q. Also for the record, what year was this that you
first met Jack Ruby?

A. I don't know. I think it was around *51, I be-
lieve. I would have to say it was around !S1, I don't
know exactly. I tried to think what year it was.

BY MR. PURDY:

Q. What was the name of the restaurant you say you
saw him?

A. It wag a place called Webb's Coffee Shop in the
Southland Hotel.

MR. WOLFE: Continue.

A. And then I suggested that he go see him. He was
a big Jewish leader in the city. And he did., PFrom then on
I cald never get rid of Jack Ruby. Jack Ruby was at my
apartment. He was around me all the time. He just appre~
ciated, I guess, what I had done for him.

So, finally, I went to Cuba, I think, in !58, I
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believe.
BY MR. PURDY:

Q. Could we back up just a little bit before we move

on to 'S58.
What was the nature of the problem that Jack Ruby

was having with his club?

A. They were making him close early or something.

Q. Was this a curfew?

A. They enforced a curfew on him, so he said, I don't
know .

Q. Was it your impression that they were enforcing
a rule against him that they were not enforcing against other
clubs?

A. That !'s what he said.

Q. Why did you refer him to Mr. Schepps?

A. He said he was Jewish, therfore, Mr. Schepps was
a big leader in the Jewish community, and I didn't know if he
could do him any good or not, to tell you the truth. But
he evidently did him good. He didn't have no more trouble
after that.

Q. Did Mr. Schepps have good connections with the
authorities in Dallas thatcould help Jack Ruby?

A. He was a well-known man and a well-liked man. He
was just a fine man, Mr. Schepps was.

Q. What was his occupation?
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A. He had a liquor distributing, I think it's Sea-~

grams.

Q. Do you want to proceed with your story about Jack

Ruby?
A. If you want me to.
Q. Please, sure.
A. So when I go to Cuba in, I believe it was the

middle of 'S8, I'm not positive of what date it was, and I
get this job at the Tropicana Hotel, managing the Tropicana
Hotel with a promise of a percentage of the place when it
got to doing good, which it never did much good on account
of the revolution coming up and all that. I stayed there
until, I don't know how long I stayed there. I stayed there
after Castro got there anyway, '59, maybe in the latter part
of 159 or '60. And then I went up--they didn't close it,
the government took it. And from there I went up to the
Capri and stayed there a very short while, I don't know how
long, before the government took it. And from then on I
wasn't doing anything until I went to Miami.

Q. Could you continue on your contact with Jack Ruby
over those years?

A. When I was in the Tropicana, they were hunting for
business, trying to get business, and I suggested that I
call Jack Ruby and have him get ahold of Tony 2oppi. Tony

Zoppi is a well known columnist like Bishop, Earl Wilson,




w

27

13

people like that. That's the kind of a man he was in
Dallas and all society people read his column. He wrote
me back that they'd come over on a certain date. So I
sent him two tickets, which the placemid for. Then I ex~
plained to him we would pay for their room. We figured we
would get a lot of publicity from it and people from Dallas
would come to Cuba.

Later on, if I remember right, Jack came and
said that, what's his name, Tony couldn't make it. That's
the cause of all my problems. Here's a letter. Wauld you
care to see this? 1It's from my brother to me. A fellow
had written my brother a letter and put a piece in there
where Zoppi had--my brother's letter is kind of a personal
letter.

BY MR. WOLF:

Q. Is this the letter you would like us to read?

A. That 's from my brother. It explains that he's
sending me this piece. 1It'sjust a personal letter but in
it he states where he's sending me a--would you like me
to come over there?

Q. Yes, if you would, to explain these.

A. This is part of the letter and this is the man that
sent my brother the letter. This is really what I wanted
you to see (indicating).

Q. This is a copy of a portion of a letter that
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Tony Zoppi sent to--

A. (Interrupting) That's the original letter.

Q. This is the original letter?

A. That's the original part. The other part of the
letter didn't mean a darn thing to me.

Q. Tony Zoppi sent this to whom?

A. To the man's name you've got there in your right
hand.

Q. To Matty Brescia Enterprises?

A. Yes. V

Q. Mr. McWillie, could we retain these for the
record?

A. Could you make a copy of it and give me back
that part?

MR. WOLF: PFor the record, Mr. McwWwillie has
given us part of a letter allegedly sent by Tony Zoppi to
a Matty Brescia, B-r-e-s—c-i-a, Enterprises at 4990
Poplar, Sﬁite 331, Memphis, Tennessee 38117, and I will
read that portion of the letter which Mr. McWillie has
given us.

It states, "Give my regard to McWillie next time
you are in touch. Jack Ruby and I were supposed to visit
him in Havana but I got side tracked. Jack went on ahead
and it has caused Mac/a lot of trouble over the years.

The quick buck artists are saying Jack went down there to
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plan the assassination. He couldn't have planned a gas
station holdup in those days. All of a sudden, he's a CIA
agent, a Mafiadon, et cetera, et cetera, sickening. Keep
in touch and God bless. Keep up the good work and I will
say another prayer for Buddy."

THE WITNESS: That's his kid that got killed

MR. WOLF: "Sincerely, Tony."

Buddy is Tony's son who got killed.

THE WITNESS: They're good friends, both in the
same kind of work. This fellow writes for a variety maga-
zine.

MR. WOLP: You're speaking of Matty Brescia?

THE WITNESS: Tony is a published,man at the
Riveria Hotel.

BY MR. PURDY:

Q. who is Buddy?
A. Read it over about Buddy.

MR. WOLF: "Keep up the good work and I will say
another prayer for Buddy."

A. Buddy was his son, young son. He was sitting in
a window and he fell out of the window and it killed him.
BY MR. WOLF:
Q. Is that Mat Brescia's son?
A. Matty Brescia's son.

You can keep that if you want to if you give me a

35-379 O -179 - 3




o

30

16

copy of it.
MR. WOLP: Surely, thank you.
BY MR. WOLF:
Q You 've not given us the top of the letter. Do
you know approximately what date this was written?
A. It's on the envelope with the date I received the
letter from my brother.
Q. It's stamped Memphis, Tennessee, 18 August 1976.
A. It must have been right around that time, I guess.
Q. To the best of your knowledge, yonr brother for-
warded this to you as soon as your brother had received it?
A. I'm sure he did, yes.

Q. And how did your brother get the letter from Mr.

Brescia?
A. Brescia gave it to him.
Q. And your brother fs located in Memphis, Tennessee?

A. Isn't there a yellow piece of mper in there from
Brescia, a white piece maybe? I think there's a letter in
there from Brescia.

Q Yes, there's a portion of a letter that says,
"Hi, Jim." 1Is that your brother 's name, Jim?

A. Jim, yes.

Q It says, "Thought you'd want to see this letter
from Louie's and my friend, Tony Zoppi, former columnist in

Dallas, now big executive at the Riveria in Vegas. Show




“

31

17
this Louie when you see him. He would like it. Pray for
our dear son and us. It was a t.';.'agic loss. Jim, Monsignor
Clunen, C-l-u-n-e-n, delivered the mass and eulogy. God
bless you always. Your friend and Louie's and your family,
Matty Brescia."

Thank you, Mr. McWillie, we'll make copies and
return them back to you.
BY MR. WOLF:

Q. If you could continue, you were talking about
inviting Jack and Tony down to visit you at the Tropicana.

A. Tony didn't come and he came. I think he stayed
around there about six days. I was at the Tropicana at
the time. He was there every night that he was in Havana
and after that he went back to Dallas. That's the last time
I've seen him in Havana. He never came back to Havana.

Q. And if you would continue your relationship to
Jack after you came back.

A. He'd write me letters. Oh, I'll tell you another
thing about him. 1In, Ilkelieve it was the early part of
1963, he called me up and he was: having some trouble with
the AGVA. That's the American Guild of Variety Artists.

He said, "Macf, do you know anybody that knows the president
of the company?" I explained all of this to the PBI. You
can check‘with them. I don't think I told them about Zoppi.

I forgot about it. I didn't tell them.
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He said, "If you can find somebody that knows the
esident, I'm having a lot of trouble with my competition."
I understand he'd had another place. At that time he had
a place up town right next to this other place. I said,
"4ell, I know a man that might know him", a man named Bill
Miller who was an entertainment director at the Hilton
Hotels. I called Bill and I said, "Bill, there's a friend
of mine that's having trouble with the AGVA." I knew he
knew the president because I had heard him speak of it. I
ran the place in Reno for him. I said, "Is there anything
you could do for him?" I gave him Jack's number. I said,
"call him and see what you can do for him."

So another day or two went by and Jack called me.
If he called me once, he called me five times thanking me,
thanking me, thanking me, like to ran me crazy. Then I
got letters from him. Prior to that he got into some kind
of razor bladedeal, some kind of razor blade that came out
in England, what do they call it, but it was supposed to be
a terrific razor blade. So he sent me three or four packages
in an envelope, just stuff like that.

Jack was a kind of a, he wanted to be a big man,
do you know what I mean. He was kind of an ego!:iu:. That
was about it with Jack. He just wanted to be around me for
some reason. I don't know why. He just did.

Q what were the nature of your contacts with Jack
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Ruby after he left Havana other than that one phone call
where he called you for help with the union?

A. I called him one time, I was working the grave-
yard, they call it the graveyard,at the Thunderbird at the
time. That's from 2 to 12 in the daytime, I think it was
2 to 12. And there were a bunch of people holding people
up around there. If they didn't have any money on them,
enough for them, they would beat them up. So I called
Ruby and asked Ruby to send me a gqun. At that time the
kids were just little kids, six and five, seven or six.

I never did take the gun out. I just let it go back. My
wife was scared the kids would get ahold of it some way
and maybe get hurt.

BY MR. PURDY:

Q. When was that thatyou asked him to send you a gun?

A. Let me see, the gun came, you can check the gun,
check the place where he got it from. It must have been
around August, I would say. I wouldn't know for mire, though.

Q. August of what year?

A. Let me see, I think I was here, the first time I
was here was in '60. I would say the early part of '63 is
when he sent it.

Q. why did you ask Jack Ruby to send you a gun?

A. I didn't know where to buy one here. I didn't

even know you could buy a gun in a store. I hadn't been
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here long enough to know that.

Q. You had been here about two years before you asked
him to send you a gun?

A. I had been here a very short time, '63. I think
I came here in '63. I think when I went to work at the
Thunderbird, I came down from Reno. I think it was the first
part of '63, I think, February of '63. This might have
happened in March, I believe, I don't know. You can check
that out.

Q. What made you think that Jack Ruby could get you
a gun?

A. Because I told him to go to this place because I
had always bought shotguns to hunt with and rifles to hunt
deer with and everything and I knew the man.

Q Do you know if Jack Ruby had been there before?

A. No, I don't.

Q. Was it Ray Brantley?

A. It was Ray's place.

Q. Do you know whether or not Jack Ruby had a gun
prior to that time?

A. Jack always had a gun, he always carried a gun.
He didn't carry it. He had it in his car. He would have
his receipts every night to go drop it in the bank depository.

Q. Did he have more than one gun in his home?

A. I don't know how many he had. I wouldn't think he
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had more than one. I never did see more than one.

QL Do you recall telling the FBI that Jack Ruby had
a number of guns in his home?

A. No, I don't, I don't remember. I don't remember
the FBI even asking me if he had any guns in his house.

Q. Can you presently recall whether or not Jack Ruby
had more than one gun?

A. No, sir, I don't.

\

Q. Did you ask Jack Ruby to send you four guns in

A. No, sir, I don't recall anything like that. I've
been asked that a lot of times. I don't recall that, no.

Q. Did you ever ask Jack Ruby to obtain a gun for
you other than the incident you previously testified to to-
day?

A. The only gun I ever had him get was the one that
I told you about just now.

Q. Did you ever ask him to get you other guns?

A. No, I don't recall anything like that

Q. Did you ever discuss with him how to obtain a gun
other than that particular incident?

A. I knew how to obtain a gun. At this Ray's place,
like I say, I bought a lot of guns, rifles and shotguns.

Q But you never bought pistols there?

A. Not that I recall.
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Q. Did you take any of the guns that you'd bought at
Ray's place with you to Cuba?

A. I left them in Dallas. My wife and I separated
and she took the guns and everything.

Q. Mr. McWillie, between the time that you asked
Julius Schepps to help Jack Ruby or you suggested to Jack
Ruby that he go to Mr. Schepps for help--

A. (Interrupting) I suggested that he go and talk

s
to Mr. Schepps.

Q. (Continuing) --what was the nature of your re-
lationship to Jack Ruby after that prior to the Cuba inci-
dent? What kind of a relationship did you have?

A. I never could get rid of him. He was around me
all the time. I'd have to insult him to get rid of him
Do you know what I mean? He'd come by the apartment and
he'd swim and eat dinner at the house a lot of times. I
just couldn't get rid of him that's all I can tell you.
Not that I wanted to. He was a nice fellow. Whoever
thought he would do anything like this, I didn't.

Q. Did you get to be pretty good friends with him?

A. Yes.

Q. What kindsof things did you do together?

A. Went out to dinner. I dropped by his club maybe
once or twice when he had it out on Oak Lawn. At that time

rock and roll had just started.
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Q. Which club was that?

A. The Vegas Club.

Q. What kind of operation did he have at the Vegas
Club?

A. Let me think. He had a band and he was the emcee
and he served, I think he served beer. I don't believe he
served whiskey,beer. That's about all there was to it.

He had this other club after I left Dallas. I never did
even see that place. That was the one up town.

Q. Was that the:. Carousel Club?

A. Yes, I never saw that.
Q. You 've never been in the Carousel Club?
A. No, never in my life.

Q. Did any gambling go on at the Vegas Club, to your
knowledge?

A. No.

Q. wWhat can you tell us about Jack Ruby's political
views? Did you ever discuss politics with him?

A. No, I never did. When I wasaround Jack Ruby, I
think Eisenhower was president, I believe he was.

Q. That would be the 1950's?

A. When was Truman president, do you rane.nber?

Q. Prior to 1952.

A. Truman was president. And I met Jack right around

the first part of the '50's, I'd say the first part of the
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'50's and Truman was president and Eisenhower was president.
Q. How did he feel about Truman and Eisenhower?
A. I never discussed politics with him.
Q. Do you know how he voted?

A. He wouldn't bet anything. I don't think he ever

bet a nickel on anything

Q. I was asking who he voted for. Do you know who

he voted for?

A. I don't know. There would be noway I'd know.
Q. Did you discuss with Jack Ruby any major events

in the country that went on in the 1950!'s? Did you discuss

the Korean War, for example?

A. Nothing. We never discussed politics.
Q. Did you ever discuss Cuban-Amer ican relations?
A. No, I did not.

Q. Did you ever discuss Castro or Batista with Jack

Ruby?

A. No:; I never discussed any kind of politics with

Jack Ruby at all.

Q. Do you ever recall Jack Ruby talking about the

Kennedys, how he felt about the Kennedys?

A. Just what I read, I think it was in Tony Zoppi's
office right after it happened and he was crying and carrying
on, what I read in thepaper and you did, too, I'm sure. But

I never recall him saying one word about the Kennedys.
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Q. You don't recall him expressing a great love
for the Kennedys?
A. No, I don't, because Kennedy wasn't pesident.

Eisenhower was president, I'm sure.

Q. What kind of man was Jack Ruby toward people?

A. Like I said, Jack Ruby wanted to be a bigman. EHe
wanted to be the biggest night club operator in Dallas.
That's my assumption. Like I said before, he was kind of
an egotist and wore a hat all the time, which was very un-
usual I thought at the time. Nobody else ever wore a hat
around Dallas. -

Q Did you find him to be a violent man?

A. No, sir, he sure wasn't. Now, in his club if
someone got out of line, that means fighting or samething,
he would just take them and put them out. I never saw him
hurt anybody

Q. You never saw him even strike apyone?

A. No, I never did.

Q Did you ever know of him beating up anyone?

A. I don't recall ever hearing him beat up anyone.

Q Did Jack Ruby ever get in any arguments with you
or anyone else over any subject?

A. He never got in an argument with me for sure. I
can't recall him ever having an argument. He had a lot of

friends around Dallas, different people.
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Q. Do you remember him getting in any arguments
about his union troubles?

A. No.

Q. Do you remember him getting in any arguments about
paying his employees?

A. No.

Q. Do you remember him getting in any arguments about
the strip-tease shows?

A. Like I said, when I was there, he didn't have a
strip-tease joint. I don't think it was strip tease. I
don't think he ever had strip tease out at the place.

Q. Please continue.

A. I think all he had was a stage in the middle of
the place, a room a little bigger than this one. He had
a stage up against one wall and he would come out and do the
emcee and everybody would laugh because he didn't know how
to talk, you know.

Q. That was the Vegas Club?

A. Yes: he had a band and as far as I can recall, I
don't believe he had any strip tease. I'm almost positive
he didn't.

Q. How successful was the Vegas Cluwb?

A. He said it was doing all right. I wouldn't have
any way of knowing. It was full all the time.

Q. Did he ever ask you for money?
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A. No.

Q. Do you remember if he ever got money from any
other individuals?

A. No.

Q Do you remember that he had any business partners?

A. No, I don't think he did, to tell you the truth.
No, I'm sure he didn't

Q. Do you remember if he ever got in any financial
trouble?

A. What, sir?

Q. In financial trouble.

A. No, sir, I don't think he ever did as long as
I knew him, he didn't. At least he never said anything
about it

Q. Did Jack Ruby have problems with his income taxes?

A. Not that I know of. I didn't know him that well
to know all his business, you know, his personal business.
He could have had anything and I wouldn't know it.

Q. Did he ever propose any business deals with you?

A. Never, never

Q. Do you know any people who were particularly good
friends with Jack Ruby?

A. Well, I know two real good friends of his. One
fellow named Jake Rifkin, he's dead. He died a year or s©

ago. And another one named Mark Panitz, P-a-n-i-t-z. They
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were two of his close friends.

Q. What did Jake Rifkin do for a living?

A. He was a gambler.

Q. Where 4id he gamble?

A. Axound Memphis, around, let's see if he ever dealt
any gamblingy houses, yes, he has dealt in gambling houses,
I don't recall which one, around Memphis years and years
ago, many years ago.

Q. How did Jack Ruby get to know him?

A. Through me. They were friends of mine.

Q. Did Jake Rifkin gamble in Dallas?

A. I think he worked around Dallas, I believe dealing
around there some.

Q. Do you know who he worked for?

A. He might have come out and worked for me a couple
of times up at the Top of the Hill, a few times.

Q. Dur ing what period of time did he get to be good
friends with Jack Ruby?

A. Did he get to be? I'd say about the same time I
did. They were both my good friends.

Q. So that would have been late '40's or early 'S0's?

A.  1'd have to say the early '50's. I'm pretty.lufe
it was early, it could have been the late '40's, but I think
it was early '50's.

Q Por how long a period of time wag Jake Rifkin and
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Jack Ruby good friends?

A. Let me see, I'd say six or seven years, eight
years maybe.

Q. Why did they stop being good friends?

A. I don't really know. They were still good
friends as far as I know. I don'‘t know. Jake left there.
Let me see, I think he went to Hot Springs. He used to go
to Hot Springs every year.

Q Do you know--

A. (Interrupting) And he could have worked over
there, too, I don't know.

Q. wWho were some of the people Jake Rifkin gambled
with in Dallas?

A. I really wouldn't know. I wouldn't know, differ-
ent gamblera. I wouldn't know.

Q. What type of gambling would he have been involved
in?

A. Oh, hell, he'd do anything, shoot dice, bet on
horses, baseball games, football games. He'd bet on any-
thing.

Q. Did Jack Ruby have any other friends who were in-
volved in gambling?

A. I can't think of any, no. But these two fellows,
they were friends of his.

Q. How did you know they were good friends of his?
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A. They would be at my apartment and we would
swim and they would be there all the time.

Q. I believe you stated that Jack Ruby thought very
highly of you?

A. Hedd. On account of me doing him so many favors
I guess. Like I told you about the union, straightened
that out, Bill Miller. And he called me later and said,
what kind of people are you having me call, calling me.
Well, what the hell, pardon me, I didn't know that Jack
Ruby was going to do what he did. There wasn't any way in
the world I would know that. I thought he was harmelss.
And I still think that he did it I thought he thought it
would make him a big man, that 's all I can say. And I've
told everybody that. And that's exactly the reason I ﬁhink
he did it. He thought it would make him a martyr or some-
thing.

Q. Was Jack Ruby very interested in money for what
it could buy for him?

A. I didn't get that, sir.

Q. Was Jack Ruby very interested in money for what it
could buy for him?

A. He didn't seem to be, no, he really didnft. Wwhen
I was around him, he seemed to be perfectly happy with his
place.

Q. You're saying he was much more interested in be-
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coming a big man around town?

A. That's what I think, yes. I really think that,
in the entertainment field.

Q. Did he see you as a big man in Dallas?

A. I guess he might have thought that.

Q. wWhy would he have thought that?

A. I don't know why he thought hat. He evidently
did think that the way he hung around. I always conducted
myself in the proper manner.

Q. Who were some of the influential people in Dallas
that you had good connections with?

A. That I had good connections with? I didn't have
any good connections with any of the big legitimate pecple.
I did know a man pamed Sidney Fruhman. We wed to play gin
at his house a lot of Sundays. That was about the extent
of my running with.the legitimate people, if you know what
I mean.

Q Did you say with illegitimate or with legitimate?

A. Legitimate, with legitimate people, I mean
business people.

Q. How do you spell his last name?

A. FP-r-u-h-m-a-n.

He's dead, too.
Q. What was his occupation?

A. He had a chain of hat stores named Rhelle, Rhelle

35-379 O - 72 - 4
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Hat Stores. 1 don't know if they 're still in operation.

I'm sure they are.

Q. Did Jack Ruby frequent the Top of the Hill Club?

A. No, I think the Top of the Hill Club was closed
when I met Jack Ruby. I'm pretty sure, I'm positive it
was, almost positive.

Q. Did any gambling go on at the Top of the Hill Club?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was the dice and the cards that you spoke
of before?

A. We had a roulette wheel or two and dice games,
maybe three, and one twenty-one game.

Q. Did Jack Ruby frequent the Cellar Club in Fort
worth?

A. The Stéller Club, I never heard of it.

Q. The Cellar Club.

A. Costello?

Q. Cellar, C-e-l-l-a-r.

A. I never heard of it.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Pat or Fay Kirkwood?

A. Yes, that's where I was at in Fort Worth. Dontt
get them mixed up. One of them is the son and one is the
01d man. The old man that I was with was mmed W. C. Kirk-
wood. Pat is kind of a hippie type young fellow. He was

young then. He's not young now.
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Q- Did Jack Ruby know W. C. Kirkwood?

A. Just to say hello to him. He may have been out
there maybe once or twice.

Q. What was the name--was it a club that Mr. Kirkwood
ran?

A. It was a home. We were sneaking gambling is
what we was doing.

Q. Over what time period was there gambling in Mr.
Kirkwwood 's home?

A. I'd have to say, I believe from '51 to 153, I'm
not sure. While I was there, he had some gambling there
before. But when I was there 'Sl to '53, I'm not positive
but I think so.

Q. And you say you think Jack Ruby may have gone
there once or twice?

A. That's all.

Q. Did Jack Ruby gamble there?

A. No, he woualdn't gamble. I told you he wouldn't
bet anything, on anything.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Pat Kirkwood?

A. No, I'm sure he didn't.

Q. What occupation was Pat Kirkwood in?

A. Last I heard of Pat Kirkwood, he had a hippie,
we call it a joint, a hippie joint where they lay on the

floor on pads. I never wag in it but I heard about it.
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He grew a beard and long hair and prior to that he had been
a race driver but he opened this place and kind of went, I
don't krow, it was during that hippie period, wasn't it,
around the '50's.

Q. What time period did Pat Kirkwood operate that
place?

A. Pat Kirkwood, I just don't know. Let me see, I
left there in '53. 1I'd say he must have started around '56,
I bel ieve. I'm not positive, though. I couldn't say for
sure.

Q. What was the name of Pat Kirkwood's place?

A. I don't know. I just heard about it.

Q. Where was it located?

A. It was in Fort Worth in the city, I think.
Q. Now, you said Pat was W. C. Kirkwood's son?
A. His son, that's right.

Q. Do you know where he is now?

A. I have no idea.

Q. When was the last time you had communication with
Pat Kirkwood?

A. I haven't had communication with Pat Kirkwood, I
haven't heard from Pat Kirkwood in years, even thought about
him. I've seen his father. His father's been out here maybe
once or twice. He's half blind.

Q. Where does W. C. Kirkwood live now?
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A. I'm sure he still lives at the same place. He's
been there many, many years.

Q. Where is that?

A. 2222 Jacksborough Highway.

Q. In what town?

A. Fort Worth.

Q. You were describing the place that Pat Kirkwood
ran as having pads on the floor.

A. I just had people telling me about it. I was
never in there, don't even know what street it was on and
where it was at. But I heard people laaghing about it
and talking about it

Q. Basically they were talking about the fact that
he had sexual activity going on in his place?

A. No, they were just talking about what a bunch of
crummy looking people patronized it, you know. At that
time everybody was growing a beard. It was the start of the
hippie period.

Q. What were the pads on the‘floor for?

A. I don't know, to sit on, I guess. I mean that's
hearsay té me. I haven't been there 8o I couldn't tell you
for sure. But I'm sure that you could £ind out very easy.

Q. Did you know a Pay Kirkwood?

A. That was W. C.'s wife, a very nice lady. She had

a dancing horse and she'd ride in rodeos every once in a
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while at that time.

Q. Did she ever run a club?

A. No: she was strictly a rodeo performer.

Q You stated previously that you didn't know any
times when Jack Ruby was in particular financial trouble.
Were there any times when he was particularly successful
financially?

A. No, I think he just made a certain amount of
money. I have no idea what he made but he couldn't have
made too much money. He made a comfortable living. It
was nothing to brag about

Q. would you describe him as a free spender or was

he frugal?

A. I'd have to say he was frugal. He wasn't a free

spender.
Q Are there any incidents you can describe that
demonstrate that he was frugal?

A. Like I'd go out to eat with him and he'd never

offer to pay a check. That's one way he was frugal. That's

the only way I would know he was frugal. I never saw him

throwing any mohey away

Q Did you and Jack Ruby ever go out for drinks to-

gether and he offered to pay?

A. No.

Q. Did Jack Ruby drink?
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A. I don't Jack Ruby even drank, to tell you the
truth. I never did see him take a drink.

Q. Did you ever travel outside of Dallas with Jack
Ruby?

A. No, not that I know of

Q. Do you know of Jack Ruby traveling outside of
Dallas other than the Cuba trip?

A. The only trip I know is right there. The FBI
asked me if he had been out here. He's never been cut here
as far as I know.

Q. During the time that you knew Jack Ruby, did he
ever travel to Chicago?

A. I don't recall him ever going to Chicago. I've
heard him talk about Chicago. I think he was from Chicago.
I'd have to say he was. I don't recall him ever going any-
where.

Q wWhat do you recall Jack Ruby saying about Chicago?

A. Nothing. That he come up in a poor neighborhood
and how rough it was for him. He had a tough young life.
That's about it.

Q Do you recall him talking about his family living
in Chicago?

A. I think his family lived in Dallas. His sister
out there and he always said she was sick or something. He

had a brother. I think he had two brothers. One of them
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was a little, I don't know, he said he was sick.

Q. He said who was sick?

A. The brother, the brother and sister both he said
were a little sick some way, I don't know.

Q. Was he talking about them being physically ill?

A. He just said they were sick.

Q. Did you ever meet any of Jack Ruby's brothers or
sisters?

A. I want to tell you samething that happened here
about, it's been about four months ago. I don't think I
ever saw any one of his family in Dallas. I might have
seen his sister.

Q. His sister was Eva Grant.

A. Eva Grant, yes, that's the one I'm talking about.
I think I saw her in a restaurant one night;. with him and I
didn't even go, I went to the counter to keep from going
around them. He's got a brother named Earl Ruby. He was
out here about fow months ago and he came by to see me.

I was working. He came in the pit. We call it the pit, you
know. He said, "Mr. McWillie?" I said, "Yes." He said,
"I'm Earl Ruby.” Well, I like to fell down.

I said, "Earl Ruby?" I said, "What do you want,
Barl?" Well, "I just want to say hello to you." I've
never seen him in my life before. I said, "What are you

doing out here?" He said, "We're going to make a docu-
g
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mentary", NBC or one of the others. I said, "Listen,
will you do me a favor? Would you just get on out of
here and get away from me. I've got enough problems about
your brother already uncalled for." I don't know if he
got mad or not but he left. He was there about five
minutes. That's the first time I had ever laid eyes on
him.

Didn't he have two brothers?

Q. Yes, he had a brother named Sam. Did you ever
meet Sam Ruby?

A. No, I didn't meet him. Have you ever seen any
of them? It seemed like he had a little bitty skinny
brother. What the hell was his name? But I didn’'t meet
him anyway. I've seen him. But this Earl, I had never laid
eyes on him. And when he came into the pit and sayd, "I'm
Earl Ruby”, well, I like to fell out. I didn't want to see
any Rubys any more.

Q Did Jack Ruby ever travel to New Orleans?

A. To New Orleans? If he did, he traveled after I
left Dallas. I don't ever recall Jack Ruby ever leaving
Dallas the whole time I knew him.

Q. Do you know whether or not Jack Ruby knew Carlos
or Vincent Marcello?

A. Is that the fellow in New Orleans? 1I wouldn't

think so, no. I wouldn't think he'd know him.
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Q. Did‘you know Carlos or Vincent Marcello?
A. No, sir, I sure don't.
Q. Never met them?
A. Never met them in my life.
Q. Did Jack Ruby know a man named Pete Guarisco?
A. who?
Q. Pete Guarisco.

A. Not that I know of.

Q- Did you know Pete Guarisco?

A. No, never heard of him.

Q. Did Jack Ruby travel to Shreveport, Louisiana?

A. Not that I know of.

Q Did Jack Ruby know Elizabeth AnneMatthews?

A. Elizabeth Anne who?

Q. Matthews.

A. Elizabeth Anne, no. I mean I don't know whether
he knew them or not. He could have known all of them, I
don't know, but I don't think he did.

Q. Do you know R. D. Matthews?

A. Oh, yes.

Q Did you know his wife, Mrs. Elizabeth Anne
Matthews?

A. No; I met her just I think one time.

Q. Do you recall when you met her?

A. I met her at the Horseshoe, I think.
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Q. was she married to R. D. Matthews at the time?

A. I really wouldn't know. I'm sure this is the
lady he's married to now. I don't know. I didn't know
R.D. too well, I mean not intimately, do you know what I
mean. He worked there a while.

Q. Do you recall when Jack Ruby came from Chicago
to Dallas?

A. I have no idea.

Q. Do you know how long after he came to Dallas you
met him?

A. No, I don't have any idea. The first time I ever
saw him in my life was like I told you sitting there with
that hat on, and it just attracted my attention and I kept
looking at this fellow.

Q. Does it refresh your memory to know that Jack Ruby
came to Dallas around 19477

A, No, I wouldn't know when he came there because I
didn't know him, hadn't heard of him.

Q. What is your best recollection as to when you met
Jack Ruby?

A. I'd say the first part of the !'50's because I
think I was in Fort Worth. I either went over there in
51 to '53 or '53 to !'56. I don't recall the exact dates,
I met him while I was at the Four Duces.

Q Prior to Jack Ruby's arrival in Dallas in 1947,
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what was the status of gambling in the Dallas area?

A. I don't understand what you mean, the status.

Q. What kinds of gambling was going on in the Dallas
area in the time, say, 1945t 19477

A. Well, there were a few crap games and a few horse
books is all I know of.

Q. Was there any betting on sporting events?

A. Not that I know of. I never bet on them myself.
It could have been, I don't know.

Q. Who was involved in this gambling that you de-
scribed in 1945 to 19472

A. In Dallas?

Q. In the Dallas area, Dallas-Fort Worth area.

A. I don't really know. I knew a fellow named
Scarborough, Red Scarborough, and like I said, Miller and
Earl Dalton.

Q. How much numbers activity was there in Dallas?

A. I have no idea about the numbers. At the time
I was a dice dealer when I was in Dallas.

Q. Did you kiow of any numbers activity in Dallas?

A. No, sir, I wouldn't have any way ofknowing that
because--
Q. (Interrupting) Were you aware of Benny Binion's

numbers operation in Dallas prior to 19477

A. No.
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Q. Did you know Benny Binion at that time?
A. Know him to seq him.
Q. You knew him to see him at that time?
A. Just to see him.

Q. Did you know that Ivy Miller and Red Scarborough
worked for Benny Binion in a numbers operation?

‘A No, I dian't.

Q. What gambling activity did you know that Ivy
Miller and Red Scarborough were involved in?

A. They wer e involved in the Southland Hotel and
could have been imvolved in the place where I worked, Blue
Bonnet, and they were involved in the Top of the Hill.

Q. What gambling activity was Benny Binion involved
in at that time?

A. I have no idea.

Q. Was Benny Binion involved in any gambling at that

time?
A. I don't know. There's no way I'd know.
Q. Did you ever see Benny Binion gamble?
A. Ever see him gamble, no, never did ,

Q. Did you know Johnny Avon?

A. Johnny Avon, not well. He had had a gambling
place around there before I ever got there. He wasn't in
gambling when I was there.

Q. Did you know Berle Cheek?
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A. who?
Q. Berle Cheek.
A. Berle Cheek, yes, I knew him, too. He had been
in gambling prior to my going to Dallas.
Q. What kind of gambling was he involved in?
A. I don't really know but I knew he was a gambler.
Q. Was he involved in gambling while you were there?
A. NHo. Let me see, wait a minute now. We borrowed

some money from Berle Cheek, I think, while I was at the
Top of the Hill, I don't know, $10,000 or something.

Q. When you say we, you mean you and Fred Browning?

A. Me and Kirkwood at the Four Duces.

Q. You and W. C. Kirkwood?

A. Yes.

In two or three days we gave it back to him

because we didn't want his money.

Q. Was there any loan sharking activity going on
in the Dallas area at that time?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Did you know Benny Bickers?

A. Yes;, very well.

Q. What gambling activity was Mr. Bickers involved
in?

A. I don't know. I really don'tnow what he was in-

volved in.
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Q. Did you know that he worked with Benny Binion in
a nuwbers activity in that area?

A. No.

Q. Did you know Ben Whittaker?

A. Very well.

Q What kind of gambling activity was Mr. Whittaker
involved in?

A. Mr. shittaker had race horses and all he did, that
I knew of, was bet on his own horses, go to the track, a
very nice man.

Q. Did he run a gambling operation?

A. Not that I know of. He didn't run ehe while I
was there.

[*% What kind of gambling was Fred Browning involved
in?

A. He was involved in the Top of the Hill Terrace.

Q. Was he involved in any other gambling?

A. No, he had the Top of the Hill for years.

Q Did he ever work with Benny Binion in gambling ?

A. Fred Browning?

Q. Fred Browning.

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Benny Binion?

A. No.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Ivy Miller?
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A. No.

Q. Would Jack Ruby have known of Benny Binion?

A. I don't think so. I wouldn't know why he would
have known him.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Johnny Avon?

A. No.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Berle Cheek?

A. No, not that I know of. I have to say not that I
know of because I'm positive he didn't.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Red Scarborough?

A. No.

Q Did Jack Ruby know Benny Bickers?

A, I don't think so.

Q Did Jack Ruby know Ben Whittaker ?

A. No.

Q Did Jack Ruby know Pred Browning?

A I think we were cloesed. I don't believe he did
know Fred Browning. We were closed when I met Jack, I'm
positive of it.

Q How organized was gambling in the Dallas area?

A1 really donft know. There's no way I'd know
how it was organized.

Q- Was Dallas an open or a closed city?

A. It had a few crap games in it. TI'don't know if

you'd call that open or closed or whatever it was. But it
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crap games like more cities in the United States

at that time.

Did the individual who was running a particular
have to get anyone else's permission to do it?
Have to do what, sir?

Get anyone else's permission.

I really don't know. I was just working there.
When you ran your gambling places in the Dallas
you have to pay any money to anyone?

No, sir, we were sneaking as I told you a while

You were what?

We were sneaking, what we call sneaking. I don't

know how to explain it. We were doing it against the law

I guess you'd call it.

Did any of these secret gambling operations have

troubles with the police?

Yes, they got raided every once in a while. The

Rangers would raid them. Hell, the sheriff would raid them

a lot of times.

When you say the Rangers, you mean the Texas

Yes.
Did anyone ever have to pay off the police?

Not that I know of. I wasn't in a position to
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know that but I wouldn't think so. I really don't know
about that because I wasn't involved in it.

Q. Did anyone have to pay off the proeecuter?

A. I wouldn't think so.

Q. Were you aware of a crackdown on gambling in the
Dallas area in 1947 when a ne+# prosecuter came into office?

A. Yes, there was a crackdown, sure was. I don't
know if it was the prosecuter.

Q. Would that have been when Steve Guthrie became the
sheriff?

A. I really don't recall.

Q What effect did this crackdown have on gambling?
How successful was the crackdown?

A. There just wasn't any more gambling. I thought it
was Kefauver that did it. I'm not sure. What time was
Kefauver, '587? WwWas it that late, !58?

MR. WOLF: Early '50's.
MR. PURDY: Kefauver was early '50's.

A. As I understand that was the crackdown in gamt;linq
everywhere.

BY MR. PURDY:

Q. But you recall a crackdown in Dallas in 1947
either with the new sheriff or when Will Wilson came in?

A. I remember we got closed up, we got raided around

Dallas.
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Q. Did this crackdown cause anyone to leave Dallas?

A. I'm sure all the dealers left.

Q. Do you recall people leaving Dallas and going to
Las Vegas around 19472

A. A number of them, yes, a number of people came
out here. Most everybody came out here.

Q. Do you remember Benny Binion leaving at that
time?

A. Yes.

Q. Who else do you remember left at that t:i.me""

A I don't know if it was at that time or not, but
1 remember Benny Binion left there. Wwho else left there?
Let me see, a fellow named Jess Zilliack.

Q How do you spell his name?

A. I don't know, Zilliack.

[*X Who else left Dallas ad went to Vegas, do you
remember ?

A. Fred Browning even came ot here but he didn't

come out here to do business. He brought race horses

out here. He had a track out here about that time. There's

a lot of people. Everybody came out here over the years

because there wasn't any place to gamble but here

Q. After the crackdown on gambling in the Dallas area,

could you please describe for us how much gambling went on

in the Dallas area between 1947 and, say, 1958 when you last
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had contact with Jack Ruby in Dallas?

A. Well, they had stag parties. We did have stag
parties for a while where they run them in the country
clubs. That was the extent of the gambling around Dallas.

Q. what type of gamblimg went on at these stag
parties?

A. Dice games.

Q. How often were they held?

A. Maybe once a month, most every two months.

QU Did Jack Ruby ever go to any of those stag
parties?

A. Never

Q. Did you ever go to them?

A. Sure, I went to them.

Q. If Jack Ruby had gone to them, would you have
known about it?

A. Oh, yes, I would have seen him. If you saw him
once, you'd never forget him with the hat on.

Q. If Jack Ruby had gone to the stag parties, would
you have seen him there?

A. Yes, I wouldn't have known him, but I would have
seen him, I would have remenbered him because I do remember
faces.

Q. Was there any link between Dallas and Las Vegas

in terms of gambling between, say, !47 and 19607
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A. 1'd have to say no.
Q. Did you know Harry Urban?

A. Didn't know him intimately I knew him to speak

to him
Q. Did you know he was a partner of Benny Binion? .
A. No.
Q. Was Harry Urban involved in any gambling in

the Dallas area?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Were you famiiiar--qo ahead.

A. I forgot what I was going to say.

Q. Which clubs were the stag parties held in?

A. The stag party was held at the, let's see, it was
the country club out on, there was one downtown. I can't
think of the name. The Main Street Club or something. It
was at the corner of Field and Main. We held them there.

I mean I ran them a pretty good while, maybe six or seven
times There was a country club out on the, kind of a
freeway there. They changed the name of it since then. I
don't recall the name of it. Then there was one named the
Cipango Club.

Q Who ran the operation at the Cipango Club?

A. Ivy Miller and Earl Dalton. Scarboroughwas dead.

Q. During what time period did they run that?

A. Like I said, I don't recall. 1I think it was the
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late '40's maybe, I don't know.

Q. Did they run the Cipango Club at all during the
150'8?

A. The club is still there, I think, but not gambling.

Q Did they have any of the stag parties at the
Cipango Club during the '50's?

A. That 's what they call stag parties but they let
their wives come, too. They just called it stag parties.

Q. Did that go on during the '50's?

A. No, it stopped, I'd say, in the late '40's.
There wasn't too many out there, maybe five or six.

Q. Who ran the operation in the country club when
they had the stag parties?

A. Who ran the gambling? I ran it myself but the same
two people I menticned, Scarborough and Miller.

Q. You had said Datton and Miller?

A. I meant Dalton and Miller. Scarborough was
dead

Q. Did you also run the operation at the Cipango Club
with them?

A. Yes, I ran the stags for them.

Q. And did you also run the operation at the club on
Main Street with them?

A. Gambling, yes.

Q. Were any of the stag parties held during the
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1950's?

A. No, I'd have to say no. I'm not for sure, but
I'd have to say no for sure.

Q. What kind of gambling went on at the stag parties?

A. Just dice games.

Q. I believe previously in respomse to my question
about gambling between 1947 and 1958, you said stag parties
were held. Are you now changing that and saying that they
didn't go on in the !50's?

A. I don't recall, to tell you the truth. It could
have gone on in maybe 'Sl. I don't know for sure. There's
no way I can remember. But I told you that I did run them
for them. That's all I can tell you. I don't know what
years exactly. The last years I don't know. I just don't
know. It could be and it could not be, I just don't know.

Q. Did any gambling go on in Dallas in the 1950's?

A. No.

Q Was there any gambling in private homes in the

A. ThHere could have been, I don't know about that.

Q. You left for Cuba, you said, in 19587

A. 58.

Q. So if there was no gambling in the !50's, that
means that--

A. (Interrupting) It was in the '50's in Fort
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Worth. I told you that I was running this place sneaking

over in FPort Worth.

Q. wWas Jack Ruby involved in any gambling in the
1950's?

A. He was involved in nothing in the way of gambling,
no way.

Q. Were you interviewed by the FBI in Las Vegas on
November 25, 19637

A. Yes, sir. I don't know if it was the exact date
or not. They like to ran me crazy. I'd be working and they
would call me out of the pit to talk to them. I finally
asked them, I said, "Please come out to my home add let me
talk to you." I was interviewed by them many times.

Q. Did you tell the FBI on November 25, 1963, that
Jack Ruby had been involved in gambling as a player?

A. No, I did not because he never had been involved
in gambling as a player. Like I say, Jack Ruby wouldn't
bet 25 cents on anything.

Q. The FBI report dated November 27, 1963, which is
a report of your interview with the FBI on November 25, 1963,
whiéh was conducted in Las Vegas, Nevada, by special agents
Stevens and Salisbury, that report says that you stated, the
report says, "He stated he does not know Ruby to have ever
been involved in any bookie activity or in any gambling of

any nature other than as a player."
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A. He never played in his life. I hever saw him
play.
Q. Does that accurately reflect what you told the
FBI on November 25, 1963, that Ruby was involved as a player?
A. No, s8sir, I didn't tell them that. I did not tell
them that. I have never seen Ruby gamble on anything.

And, incidentally, when I went to Arruba, the day
I left, the FBI went to my mother, went to my sisters, my
brothers, and Jack Ruby had happened to be visiting me in
ny gpartment when my mother and sister were visiting me, and
they thought he was the finest man in the world and that's
what my mother told the PBI, I'm sure. So I asked Mr.
Stevens, I said, "If you don't mind, my sister has been with
the Veterans Hospital for many years and she's the head
nurse there in the operating room, charge of the o‘r.erating
room", I gave him a number at home, and I said, "If you
will call her after 5:30, she'll invite youw out to the
house and talk to you." Well, they went up there and like
to scared her to death.

So the day I went to Arruba, Mr. Stevens, I'm glad
to remember that name, he came out to the house and told my
wife I had been cleared of any wrongdoing and my wife asked
him, "Well, what's he been cleared of, he hasn't done any-
thing." "gJust known this nut", which it turns out he was.

I didn't know he was that nutty.
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Q. When was that that your family members met Jack
Ruby?

A. I don't know, it was in the !'50's, It was in the
150's. I can only recall the year. I'm sure they have a
record of it, my mother and my sister both. He had a
habit of, if he met anyone, like he'd meet you, he'd want
to know your name, he'd want to know yur address, what your
birthday was, and he would send you a birthday card, a
Christmas card. I don't know why he did that but that was
a habit he had.

Q. when was it that you went to Arruba?

A. Arruba in '64, I bdieve.

QL Was it just a coincidence that the FBI came to you
the day you were leaving for Arruba?

A. It was after I went to Arruba and Mr. Stevens told
my wife:that I had been cleared of anything. I don't know
what the devil he was talking about.

Q. Do you know any oilmen in Dallas, the Dallas area?

A. A lot of oilmen played at the Top of the Hill,
quite a few.

Q. Who were some of those oilmen?

A. Hell, I don't recall the names any more. Let me
see, there was a fellow named Carraway, he was an oilman,
8id R chardson would come out there, he didn't do much

playing. I don't think he played at all. Billy Byers, a
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man named Billy Byers, he played out there. Big oilmen,
H. L. Bunt, he played out there.

Q. How often did H. L. Hunt gamble out there?

A. Not very often. He would go upstairs and eat.
We gave away the food. And he would take 12 people up
there and wouldn't tip the waiter but he would gamble, he
did gamble.

Q. Was Jack Ruby ever there when any oilmen were
there?

A. No, I never knew Jack Ruby when the Top of the
Hill was open. I'm almost positive that I met Jack Ruby
after it was closed.

Q. Did you know Harry Hall?

A. I knes a dealer years and years ago by the name
of Harry Hall. Hell, he's been dead 30, 40 years.

Q He also went by the name Harry Sinclair, Jr.

A. No.

Q. Or Harry Haler, H-a-l-e-r?

A. No.

Q. Regarding Mr. Bill Byers, do you recall an inei-
dent when a number of people considered ;obbinq him?

A. No, I didn't know he ever got robbed. He lived
in Tyler, Texas. He didn't live in Dallas.

Q  Did Jack Ruby know H. L. Hunt?

A. No, I'm positive he didn't.
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Q Did Jack Ruby know Bill Byers?

A. No, he never knew any of those people that I'm
talking aout.

Q. Did Dick Anconi ever came to the Top of the Hill
Club?

A. No, I knew Dick Anconi. Dick Anconi was a big
oilman. Heded a number of years ago.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know him?

A. No.

Q Were you familiar with the Petroleum Club?

A. No, I know where it was but you couldn't go in
there unless you were an ocilman.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Sid Richardson?

A. No.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Dewey Groom?

A. Who?

Q. Dewey Groom.

A. How do you spell it?

Q. C-r-o~o-m.

A. I don't know. I don't know who he knew. 1I've
never heard of him.

Q. You've never heard of Groom?

A. No.

Q. Do you know Marty Pield?

A. Marty who?
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Q. Marty Field.

He used to work at the Sands a few years ago,
also used to work in Cuba, also went by the name of Marty
Schwartz when he was a fighter.

A. No, I don't think I knew him.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Joe Civello?

A. Joe Civello, I don't think he did.

Q. Did you know Joe Civello?

A. I knew him, yes. I didn't know him intimately,
but I knew him to speak to him,

Q. what did Joe Civello do for a living?

A. I have no idea. He had a whiskey store, that's
where I met him, in a whiskey store.

Q. Did he ever gamble, to your knowledge?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q Did he ever go to any of your clubs?

A. No, never did.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Joe or Sam Campisi?

A. I'm sure he did, yes. They have a restaurant
there.

Q. what restaurant did they run?

A. Egyptian Lounge.

Q. Were you ever with Jack Ruby when he was with
either of the Campisis?

A. I could have eaten out there with Jack Ruby but
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that was all.

Q. There might have been a time when you all ate
together?

A. They would come over and say hello probably or
something like that. They were ;.retty good hosts.

Q. Do you recall having dinner with Jack Ruby and the
Campisis in 1954 or '55?

A. I don't recall it but it's possible.

Q. Were you ever present with either of the
Campisis when Jack Ruby was present when business deals were
discussed?

A. No, they would have no business dealings with
Jack Ruby.

Q Do you know whether or not the Campisis ever went
to Ruby's club?

A. Everybody went to Ruby's club to see those hippies.
I don't know that they did, but I‘'d have to say they had
been.

Q. Were the Campisis ever involved in gambling?

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Did they ever come to your club?

A. No.

Q Did you know Johnnie Grizzaffi?

A. No, not that I recall him. I don't recall knowing

him. WwWhat did he do?
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Johnnie Grizzaffi was an associate of LOis Green
Binion.

No.

Did you know Sidney Siedband?

wWho?

Sidney Siedband, S-i-e-d-b-a-n-d.

No.

Did you know Jack Todd?

Jack Todd, yes, I knew Jack Todd.

What did Jack Todd do?

Jack Todd, to tell you the truth, I don't know
Todd did. He was in Cuba, too.

What did Jack Todd do in Cuba?

Just came over there visiting.

Did he see you when he was in Cuba?

I saw him once or twice, yes.

When was that that he visited Cuba?

I don't know. I don't have any idea.

Would that have been the late !50's?

It had to be the late '50's.

Was Jack Ruby there at the time Jack Todd was

I don't think he was. I'm positive he wasn't. I

can't say for sure but I'm positive he wasn't.

Q.

Did Jack Ruby know Jack Todd?
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A. I'm sure he did. 1I'm not positive he did but I

would say he did. Everybody who went to that club knew

Jack Ruby.

Q. Was Jack Todd a safe cracker?

A. I don't really know. I wouldn't have any way of
knowing.

Q. Did Jack Todd gamble?

A. I don't recall ever seeing him gamble.

Q. Did he have any business dealings with you?

A. Not any with mé, no.

Q. Do you know anyone he had business dealings with?

A. No.

Q. Are you familjar with Sue's Used Car Lot?

A. wWhose?

Q. Sue 's Used Car Lot.

A. What city is that in?

Q. In the Dallas area?

A. No, never been around a car lot in my life.

Q. Do you know that Jack Ruby and Jack Todd often
frequented Sue's Used Car Lot?

A.  No, I didn't.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Izzy Miller?

A. It's possible. They're both Jewish, it's possible.

Q. Did you know Izgy Miller?

A. Yes.
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Q. What did he do for a living?

A. I don't know what he did. He was a crap dealer
for avhile.

Q. Did he ever gamble at your club?

A. No.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know John Eli Stone?

A. wWho?

Q. Johnny Eli Stone.

A. Not that I know of.

Q. Do you know him?

A. I wouldn't know. I don't know who he knew. But

I wouldn't think so. I never heard of him.

A.

You never heard of Johnny Eli Stone?
How do you spell the last name?
S-t-o-n-e.

I know Johnny Stone, yes, but Jack Ruby would

never know Johnny Stone. Johnny Stone, when I knew him,

ran a bar
Q.
A.
Q.
A.
Q.
Dallas?

A.

35-379 O =70 - 6

up on, called it the Turf Bar.
Was there any gambling at the Turf Bar?

Not that I ever saw.

Do you know why Jack Ruby moved to Dallas?

I have no idea.

Did you and Jack Ruby ever discuss why he came to

No, never.
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Q. You said before that Jack Ruby discussed Chicago
with you generally.

A. He said he came up in Chicago and he came up in
a poor neighborhood and he would talk zbout what a rough-
time he had when he was a kid amd that's the extent of his
talk about Chicago.

Q. Did he ever discuss anyone he grew up with?

A. No.

Q. Did he ever discuss any people he still knew in
Chicago?

A. No, never.

Q. Do you know if Jack Ruby knew Barney Baker?

A. Barney Baker? Barney Baker, no.

Q. Did you know Mr. Baker?

A. No, I did not.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Lenny Patrick?

A. Lenny Patrick, I have no idea. He could have.
don't even know who Lenny Patrick was myself,

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Dave Yarag?

A. I don't know. I don‘'t think so.

Q. Did you know Dave Yaras?

A. I knew wiohe was.

Q. Rad you ever met him?

A. I don't think so. I knew his brother. He had a

brother named Sam Yaras. I don't think I ever met Dave.

I
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name Dave? Is that the name? I don't think I ever

I met his brother. His brother had slot machines.
a glot machine man, repaired slot machines.

Where did he repair slot machines?

Right in his building.

What city was that in?

I believe it was Field Street, I'm not sure. I

wouldn't say for sure.

What city was that in?

Dallas.

In fact, his brother died in Dallas.

Do you remember when Sam Yaras came to Dallas?
Who?

Do you know when Sam Yaras came to Dallas?

I have no idea.

Do you know if Jack Ruby knew Sam Yaras?

No, he didn!t know him.

Did Jack Ruby know Paul Dorfman?

I have no idea. I don't know who Paul Dorfman is.
Did Jack Ruby know Lawrence Meyers?

Lawrence who?

Meyers.

I don't know. I don't know him.

Did myone from outside of Dallas consider moving

to Dallas to get into gambling operations?
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A. I don't know. I really don't know.

Q Did you ever hear of outside gamblers wanting to
come into Dal las?

A. No; it's a possibility that it would happen and I
wouldn't know anything about it because it wasn't any of my
business.

Q Was Jack Ruby involved in any prostitution related
activities?

A. Prostitution?

Q. Related activities.

A. No.

Q. Were any of his employees involved in prostitu-
tion?

A. Not that I know of, no. I don't know about the
Carousel, that'!s a different proposition. I don'!t know about
that. I don't think he would be, no.

Q. Was it common in Dallas for club employees to be
involved in prostitution?

A. No, I don't think so. I never heard of it.

Q- Was there much prostitution in Dallas?

A. Not too much, by George, there wasnit too much.
Q. Where was the prostitution that there was?

A. I don'!t know where it was,

Q. Did it operate out of hotels?

A. It!s a possibility they worked out of hotels.
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Q. Did you know a woman named Helen Alfonse Roan?

A. Helen Alfonse what?

Q Roan, R-o-a-n.

A. Not that I recall, no.

Q. Do you know if Jack Ruby had close relations with
any of his exnployeeé?

A. No, I donlt.

Q. Do you know whether or not there was any narcotics
activity in the Dallas area?

A. Never heard of it, never.

Q. Did you know Paul Rowland Jones?

A. No, I didn't know of him. I've read about him.
It seemed like he got into some trouble in Mexico. It seemed
like when I read about him, he got into some kind of trouble
in Mexico. I never knew him.

Q- Did Jack Ruby know him?

A. No: I couldn't say for sure but I wouldn't think
so.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know James or Bunny Breen, B-r-e-e-n?

A. I never heard of them. See, a lot of these people
you're asking me if Jack Ruby knew, he could have known
them and I didn't know it. But as far as I know, I didnlt
know them myself.

Q. Was there any illegal gun sales in Dallas when

you were there?
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A. No, not that I know of.

Q. Was there any transportation of guns to or from
other places?

A. Not that I know and I'm positive that there
wasn't.

Q. Did you know Robert Ray McKeown?

A. No, I never heard of him either. I read about

him in some of those articles about him but I never heard
of him.

Q. You didn 't know if Jack Ruby knew him?

A. No. 1If he had, I think he would have told me if
he knew of those people you said about. Hel!s that kind of
a fellow. I never heard of any of these people you're asking,
most of them.

Q. Did you know of a John Thomas Mason?

A. No, John Thomas Mason.

Q Did Jack Ruby know of him?

A. I don't believe so. Like I tell you, I don't know
who he knew. He could have known several of those people
ad I wouldn't know it, you know.

Q. Did you know Joseph Merola, M-e-r-o-l-a?

A. No.

Q Did Jack Ruby krow him?

A. I don't know.

Q To your knowledge.
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A. I have to keep telling you I don't know who Jack
Ruby knew, but I wouldn't think so. Maybe he did, I don't

Q. You stated previously that you did not ask Jack
Ruby for four guns in 19547

A. I don't recall that, no. I've been asked that
several times and I don't recall it.

Q. Does it refresh your recollection to know that
Jack Ruby said that you requested four Cobras in 19597

A. No, it doesn't. The only gun I ¢an remember is
a gun he sent out here and I let it go back, didn't take
it out of the--

Q. (Interrupting) Can you think of any reason you
would have wanted gunes in 1959?

A. No reason I would have wanted guns in 59, I was
in Cuba. 1I'd get myself killed if I had guns over there.

Q. You stated previously that, to your knowledge,
Jack Ruby only owned one gun?

A. One gun as far as I know. He could have avned
two or three but I didn't know about it. There wouldnft
be any way I!d know it.

Q. Do you recall being intarviewed by the FBI in
June of 1964 by special apnts McFPaul and Stevens in Las
Vegas?

A. I remember being interviewed by the FBI a 1ldt
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of times. I don't know the exact dates.

Q- Did you tell the FBI in June of 1964 that Jack
Ruby kept a couple of guns at his residence although he was
not a gun collector?

A. If I did, I don't recall that. The only gun I
ever saw that Jack Ruby had was a gun tha he carried in a
sack,when he closed up at night, he'd take his gun out of
his sack and put it in his pocket and go deposit his money
and then put the gun in his glove compartment. That's all
I recall.

Q. If you told the PBI in June of 1964 that you had
seen a couple of 0ld gune in Jack Ruby's residence, would
that have been the truth at that time?

A. That I saw a couple of old guns? 1It's a possibili-
ty that he had two guns. I don't remember, to tell you the
truth. But I do remember the gun that he always had on
him when he went out to his club.

Q. You mentioned earlier a couple of times when Jack
Ruby asked you for help. One was with reference to the
curfew problem and one was with reference to AGVA.

Did he ever call you for help on any other matter?

A. No, not a thing.

[*X Did you ever ask him for help on anything?

A. No.

QU Why did Jack Ruby think to call you long distance
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to ask about his problems with AGVA?

A. He was just like that. He would call me on most
any of his darn problems. He was just like that.

Q. Did he call about any other problems?

A. That's the only problem he had, I guess, was the
AGVA and Miller, he got it taken care of that same day, I
belive. It must have been a minor thing or something.

QU Did you have any previous contacts with AGVA that
would make him think that you could help him?

A. No, I don't think he would know I had any con-
tacts. He just called me and asked me if I knew anyone that
knew the president of AGVA. It just happened that I did
know Miller and I called Miller to help him.

Q- Were you familiar at all with AGVA in Dallas?

A. Not at all.

Q. While you were there.

A. No.

Q Did you know Vincent Lee?

A. Who?

Q Vincent Lee who worked for AGVA in Dallas.

A. vincent Lee, no, I didn't.

Q Did you know James Henry Dolan who worked for
AGVA in Dallas? '

A. It seems like I met him. Did he work for AGVA?

Was that the union he worked for?
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Q. He did for a while.

A. He worked for some union. I didn't know what
union it was. I met him once or twice, I think.

Q. Do you know anything about his activities with the
union?

A. Nothing. I didn't even know it was AGVA. I knew

it was a union.

Q. Did you ever have any dealings with any other
unions?
A. None whatsoever.

Q Do you know Tony Pappa?

A. No.

Q. Do you know Mike Shore?

A. No.

Q. What can you tell us about Jack Ruby*s relations
with the Dallas Police Department?

A. I can just tell you~--I‘'ve been asked that before,
too. He was always, I don't know, I guess he thought it
would help his place. He was always courteous to them. At
Christmas time I think he would give some of them presents,
whiskey or something. That'!s my idea. I don't know for
sure. He was very close with them. A TV announcer there
named, I can't think of his name, but one of the TV
announcers, he just liked to get everywhere.

Q. Was it Gordon McLendon?
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A. I think that's the name, yes. He knew Gordon
very well. I'd hear him speak of him all the time.

Q. I'm sorry, you would hear Jack Ruby speak of
McLendon?

A. Yes; maybe he ran ads with him or something, I
don't know. Just like Tony, I think the reason he knew
Tony was on account of his ads in the papers and things, I
would say.

Q. Did you know Gordon McLendon?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did Jack Ruby ever talk to you about Gordon
McLendon?

A. To tell you the truth, he either introduced
Brescia,in that letter I@ave you, to Gordon or Brescia
introduced him to Gordon McLendon. I'm not sure which way
it was. But Brescia used to come to Dallas with a pro-
fessional basketball team. ‘What'!s the name of that trick
team?

Q. Globetrotters?

A. It wasanother one. It was a well-known team.
And Brescia was a publicity man for them.

Q. Did Jack Ruby have any friends with the Dallas
Police Department?

A. I really donft know. I have no idea. I wasn'ft

that familiar with him to know who his friends were.
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Q. Did Jack Ruby ever tell you that he had pull with
the Dallas Police Department?

A. No, he didn't.

Q. To your knowledge, did Jack Ruby ever exercise any
pull with the Dallas Police Depar tment?

A. Not to my knowledge, no.

Q. Were you familiar with the Dallas Police Associa-
tion?

A. No, sir. I don't think I knew many policemen in
Dallas.

Q. Did you know Lieutenant George Butler who formerly
headed the Dallas Police Association?

A. I didn't know him intimately. I knew who he was.

Q. What did you know about Lieutenant Butler?

A. I think he was the head of the vice squad, I be-~
lieve. I'm mot suwre.

QL How did you happen to know him?

A. I don't remember how I met him.

Q. wWas he an associate of H. L. Bunt?

I wouldn't think so.
Did Jack Ruby know Lieutenant George Butler?

A. Did Jack Ruby know Butler? I wouldn't think so.
He could have, I don't know.

Q Did Jack Ruby ever complain that he had some prob-

lems with the police other than that one curfew incident?
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A That'!s the only time I ever heard of. I think
it was about a curfew. I sent him to Schepps. He said
he was being harassed because he was Jewish and I said the
wman for you to go to see is go see Mr. Schepps and explain
it to him. Maybe he can straighten it out.

Q. Did members of the Dallas Police Department ever
come to Jack Ruby for information?

A. Not that I know of.

Q Did members of the PBI office in Dallas ever come
to Jack Ruby for information?

A. I don't know but I wouldn't think so.

Qe During the time you were in Dallas, did organized
crime have any impact on activities in Dallas?

A. Organized crime, no. Like I told you, the people
that had the gambling there was Miller and Scarborough and
Dalton, as far as I know.

Q. So it was your impression that it was a local
operation?

A. Local operation.

Q. Was there anyone from outside who had an influence
on Dallas that you know of?

A. Not that I know of. I would have to say no.

QU On November 20, 1963, what contact did you have
with an agency of the federal government?

A. on what?
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Q. On November 20, 1963, did you have any contact
with any agency of the government?

A. Maybe it was the FPBI Questioning me.

Q. That was prior to the assassination.

A. Was that prior?

Q. Yes.

A. I don't know of any in 163, no.

Q. Do you recall on November 20, 1963, that you
applied for the renewal of a work card in Nevada?

A. Sure.

Q. Do you remember around that time that you had to

get a renewal?

A. 163, let me see, '63, that was when I got into the

Thunderbird, yes.

Q. What did you have--

A. I got a sheriff's card.

Q A what?

A. A sheriff's card. You had to get a sheriff's
card. 1I've got one in my pocket. Do you want to see it?
Would you like to see it?

Q. Sure.

A. Everybody that works here has to have one of
these.

Q. So the fact that you were applying for the work

card was not because you were in any kind of trouble?
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A. Of course not.

Q Did you have a card previously?

A. I had a card. I've got it somewhere. Here's one
I had downtown (indicating).

MR. PURDY: Mr. McWillie is showing me a Law
Vegas Police Department registration card, A-58376, which
is a permanent card. He's listed as a pit boss. His
address and signature and the signature of the Chief of
Police are listed.

THE WITNESS: That's a sheriff's card. I got that
in '63 when I came here.

MR. PURDY: He's also handed me a Clark County
Sheriff's Department ID card, No. 63658, which is dated
February 15, 1963. His name is listed. He has signed it
and it is signed by Sheriff Ralph Lamb, L-a-m-b.

THE WITNESS: And it shows where I worked at the
Thunderbird, they scratched it out. This other card was a
pemanent card. When you work downtown, you have to have
one of these (indicating), it was permanent. Now you have
to have one of these (indicating). You don't have to have
this combined now with the sheriff.

BY MR. PURDY:

Q So rightmw all you need is a card from the police
department and you don't need 3 card from the sheriff's

office?
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A. You have to have a card from the sheriff's office,
not this card (indicating).
Q. Not the Las Vegas Police Department card.
A. The sheriff is more or less a police chief now.

Q  since you still have and obviously had or was
issued in February of 1963, what reason would you have had
in November of 1963 to apply for any other kind of card?

A. 1963, maybe that was when I was going to Arruba.
I had to go to the police chief, I think, and I had to get
a letter from the police chief to get cleared down there be-
cause they cleared you through Scotland Yards and the PBI
and the local here. That!s the only thing I can recall.

Q Do you recall a Mr. Robert Kellerer, an identifi-
cation officer with the Reno Sheriff'!s Office?

A. No, I don't.

Q. Did you~--

A (Interrupting) I had a card up thmre, too. I
threw it away I think.

Q On November 20, 1963, would there have been any
reason that you would have needed to contact the Reno
Sheriff's Office for a renewal of a card or for any other
reason?

A. Maybe they contacted them down here. That's
probably what happened.

Q. By November 20, 1963, you had already moved from
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Reno to Las Vegas, is that right?

A. November !63, yes, I came here in '63 at the
Thunderbird. Now, it's a possibility that checking me out,
they checked with the Reno Police Department. I would have
to say that they might do that. They would do that, wouldn't
they?

Q. Mr. McWillie, you stated previously that you re-
ceived a phone call from Jack Ruby sometime in 1963 about
his problems with AGVA?

A. That !'s right.

Q. About when in 1963 was that?

A. It was the early part of 1963, I think. Let me
see. !63 now. I went to the Thunderbird in '63. It had
to be the early part of !'63. Doesn't the FBI have it on
its report? I told them about it. I'm sure they do. 1It's
hard for me to remember dates.

Q We understand. I think you're doing very well.

Now, that communication had been in the form of
telephone calls, right?

A. He must have called me three or four times. The
PBI even asked me why he called me.

Q After that contact with Jack Ruby, what other
contact did you have with him prior to the assassination?

A. He would write me letters about his club, the new

club he had and how beautiful it was and about the razor
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blades, he sent me some razor blades once or twice,
Sheffield razor blades I think they called them..

Q. Did you and Jack Ruby ever talk agadn on the
phone prior to the assassination?

A. Prior to the assassination?

Q. Right.

A. Just about the AGVA.

Q Did you see Jack Ruby again after those phone
calls about the AGVA and prior to the assassination?

A. No, never saw him again.

Q. When was the last time that you saw Jack Ruby
prior to the assassination?

A. The last time I saw Jack Ruby prior to the
assassination, I was driving from Miami to Cal-Neva Lodge
where I was going to work in June in 196l. I stopped at
his house and slept there that night and then drove on.

Q Did you see Jack Ruby again after the assassina-
tion?

A. Never, never seen Jack Ruby after that time I
saw him.

Q. Did you and Jack Ruby ever exchage any letters
after the assassination?

A. Bo, sir. I had all I wanted of Jack Ruby. Every
time I turned around the PBI was questioning me about him.

You know I wouldn't write him. I'm not that silly.




95

81

Q. Did you and Jack Ruby ever talk on the phone
after the assassination?

A. No, sir.

Q Did you and Jack Ruby ever send any messages of
any kind to each other after the assasgination?

A. No, sir. After the assassination I didn't want
to hear his name again.

MR. WOLF: Let the record reflect that wefve re-
turned to Mr. McWillie the original letters that he received
from his brother concerning Tony Zoppi and the trip to Cuba.

THE WITNESS: My brother got it from Matty Brescia
and Matty Brescia got it from Tony Zoppi.

BY MR. WOLF:

Q Mr. McWillie, I'd now like to question: you con-
cerning the time when you were in Cuba and several indivi-
duals you may have met while you were there.

- You ve testified that you moved to Cuba in approxi-
mately the middle of 1958, is that correct?

A. I went there in /58, yes, right.

Q was that your first trip ﬁo Cuba?

A. I had been to Cuba, I took my mother and wife and
daughter to Cuba in the f40's, just for a trip overnight on
a boat. We took a ship over there, the Plorida, I think
they called it.

Q. Had you been there any other time prior to the
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middle of 19587
A. No.
Q. Oon your first trip in 1958, how long did you
stay in Cuba?
A. I stayed until we broke relations with Cuba in

‘61, January 1, 1961.

Q And you testified that when you moved to Cuba,
you went to work at the Tropicana Hotel, is that correct?

A. That's right.

Q. And how did you obtain the job at the Tropicana
Hotel while you were in Dallas?

A. A fellow called me from Cuba and asked me if I'd
be interested in going over there to work and I set up an
appointment and went there and talked to them and then went
back to Dallas and went back to Cuba in about a week, I
believe.

QU So you did return to Dallas after the first trip

A. I think maybe a week, ten days.

Q Who was that who called you?

A. A fellow named Johnny Williams.

Q How did he get your name?

A. I met him in Dallas. I don't know how I met him
but I did meet him and he found out I was in the gamgling

business and he said, "Maybe I can get you a good job over
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in Cuba." Sure enough, he called me a week or so ater he
left Dallas.

Q. Where did Mr. Williams work?

A. Mr. Williams didn't work. I don't know what Mr.
Williams did, to tell you the truth.

Q. wWhere did he live?

A. He lived in Boston.

Q. And where did you first meet Mr. Williams?

A. I met him in Dallas.

Q He was just visiting at that time?

A. Sir?

Q. He was just visiting at that time?

A. He was just visiting Dallas. I don't recall how
I met him, but I met him in Dallas.

Q. And who did you see when you first weht to Cuba
for the interview?

A I went to see the Foxes. They had a meeting and
there was Martinez Fox and Oscar Cheninder.

Q. was Pedro FPox present?

A. Pedro Pox, that's Martinez's brother. There were
several Cubans there and an interpreter.

Q Were the Paoxes the owners of the Tropicana?

A. They were the only owners. 1 was the only
American in there.

Q Do you know Mr. T. W. Richardson?

A. Yes, sir, sure do.

|
|
|
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Q And how do you know Mr. Richardson?

A. How long have I known hin?

Q How long have you known and how do you know Mr.
Richardson?

A I've known Mr, Richardson since I started dealing
dice about 40 some odd years ago, 47 years ago.

Q. You met him in Dallas?

A. No, I met him in Mississippi. I was dealing dice
in Mississippi then.

Q Did Mr. Richardson have any connection with Cuba?

A. I think T. W. had something to do with the
managing the Capri. |

Q. Did you see him while you were in Cuba?

A. Didn't see him too much. I did see him in Cuba.

Q. A Did you see him that first time when you went over
to take the job at the Tropicana?

A. Ho, I didn't see him. He didn't know I was there.
T. W. was in the Riverside Hotel and he left. He was the
manager of the Riverside Hotel. I took his place when he
resigned in !'62, I think. But I've known T. W. for years.
Be's avary..nice man.

Q You stated that you met the Foxes when you first
went over to interview for your job with the Tropicana and
you also stated that you were promised a percentage of the

Trppicana if things were successful.
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A. Martinez promised me a percentage if it ever
did any business, but it never did any business. That
was right at the time of the revdlution. Do you have what
date I went over to work there?

Q Approximately September of !58.

A. I was going to say August. It must have been
September .

Q Was the Tropicana successful prior to the revo-
luation?

A. It had been successful. It was a very beautiful
place, beautiful shows, beautiful gaming room.

Q. Were the Foxes financially well off?

A. Yes, I'm sure they were.

Q. Were they the whole owners of the casino?

A. Were they what?

Q. Were they the whole and sole owners of the
casino?

A. Yes, I would say they were. I'd have to say I'm
almost positive.

Q They had no partners?

A. No.

QU Do you know if they wver received financial backing
from anybody?

A. They didn't need any financial backing.

Q Did they ever get any loans from anybody?
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A. I wouldn't think so because they had a big business
that made mthing but money for years and years. They had
the numbers and every other thing.

Q. Do you know, did Jack Ruby know the Poxes?

A. Yes, I introduced him to the Poxes.

Q. When he came to Cuba?

A. When he came there, I tntroduced him, yes.

Q Did he have any other dealings with the Poxes?

A. He ran around with me. The whole time he was there
he was running around me except when he went to bed.

Q. wWhat happened to the Foxes when the government
closed the hotel?

A. Well, they eventually all went to Miami.

Q. They did not stay in Cuba?

A. Sir?

Q. They did not stay in Cuba?

A. They stayed there for a while but eventually they
left and went to Miami.

Q. And you took a job at the Capri Hotel, is that
correct?

A. Right.

Q. wWho did you know at the Capri Hotel to get the
job?

A. If I remember correctly, I think it was Martinez

told me to go up there, that I could get a job up there if
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I'd go up there. And I went up there and saw some fellow,

Angelo, I don't krow his last name, but his first name was

Aggelo.
Q Could the last mme have been Bruno?
A. No.
Q. DO you know a Mr. Angelo Bruno?
A. I've known him to see him in Cuba. Ilve seen him

in Cuba. I don't know Mr. Brumo.

Q. You hever met Mr. Bruno?

A. No, just to say hello. He knew who I was because
in this business I'm a pretty good man in the gamabling
business. Ilve besn in it so many years.

Q Do you know a Mr. Willie Bischoff?

A. Lefty Clark, that was his name. Wasn't his name
Lefty Clark? I never did know his right name.

Q. Yes, also known as Lefty Clark.

A. I took his place in the Tropicana. They let him
go and I took his place there.

Q. Why was Mr. Bischoff let go, do you know?

A. Well, it had samething to do wikh the Black Jack
getting cheated or something, something like that. That's
what I heard. I dom!t know why they let him go.

Q. Did you associate with Mr. Bischoff at all af ter
he was let go?

A. No, just to say hello.
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Q. Do you know if Jack Ruby knew Mr. Bischoff?
A. No, I'm sure he didn't.
Q. DO you know a Mr. Babe Baron?
A. No, I know who he is. If it's the fellow I'm
thinking about, he used to be at the Sands.
Q. Yes .
A. I don't know him but I knowwho he is. He may be

dead. 1Is he living?

Q He's still alive.

A. I didn't know that. But I know who he is. They
call him the General. But I never met him in my life.

Q. Did you know that he was in Cuba?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Do you know if Jack Ruby knew him at all?

A. If Jack Ruby met him?

Q Right.

A. I wouldn't think so.

Q. Who were the owners of the Capri?

A. I don't know. I don't have any idea. I went in
there and took charge of the day shift and I don't know
how long I was there to tell you the truth. But it wasn't
too long. I went to open up one morning and they stuck .
machine guns in my stomach and I gave them the keys and
turned around and walked off.

QL Did you ever work at the Riviera Hotel?
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A. No.

Q. Did you have any affiliation with the Riviera?

A. No.

Q. When you were at the Tropicana, what were your
primary duties?

A. To manage the casino.

Q. Were you familiar generally with the prior
management of the casino operation?

A. No, not the bookkeeping and all that kind of
thing. I was familiar with running, seeing that the games
didn't get cheated and the dealers and everything stayed
in line.

Q. Were you responsible for hiring individuals to work
in the casino?

A. No, they hired all them. There wasn't nothing but
Cubans working there when I was there.

Q. Did the casino have to pay a tax to the Cuban
government to operate?

A. I really don't know. I wouldn't know.

Q. Did Cuban officials have to be bribed to have
a casino oiaeration?

A. I don'tmow. There wouldn't be any way I'd know
that.

Q. Were you familiar with any of the Cuban officials

in the government at that time?




[S)

104

90
A. No.
Q. Do you recollect any of their names?
A. No, I could not recollect one name. Ventura, I

think he was the chief of police, I believe it was, but I
.ddn't know him. I'd see him come in there with his body
guards.

Q Do you recall any other names of Cuban officials?

A. Officials?

Q. Officials who would have responsibility to super-
vise casinos.

A. Supervise the casinos?

Q Or involved generally.

A. No. Ventura didn't havemthing to do with
the casino. I just knew him to see him because he was
supposed to be a very vicious fellow.

Q How about any other Cuban officials in the govern-
ment generally, can you recall any of their names?

A. No, I wouldn't have any reason to know any of them.

Qe Did the casinos make payments tO any non-government

officials to continue operating, the owners of the casinos?
A. No, I wouldn't think so. It belonged to them,
Q. The Foxes never discussed that with you?

A. I didn't understand.

Q. Did the Poxes ever discuss the general operation of

the casino with you?
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A. No, in fact, they couldn't even speak English.
One could speak English, Pedro.
Q. Do you know a Mr. Norman Rothman?
A. I know him to see him.
Q. Have you. ever met Mr. Rothman?
A. It was in Cuba, yes. He'd come in and out of the

Tropicana every once in a while. He came up and introduced
himself to me and shook hands with me. I'd see him gambling
there when I'd go around to different places.

Q. Did you ever have any discussions with Mr. Rothman?

A. No.

Q. Do you know a Mr. Santo Trafficante?

A. Know him to see him.

Q. Have you ever met Mr. Trafficante?

A. Like I say, he knew who I was and he shook hands
with me when he saw me, but that was it. I've been asked
that a lot of times, too. But I didn't know Mr. Trafficante
intimately, no.

Q Did anybody introduce you to him or did he intro-
duce himself to you?

A. Maybe Pedro did, 1 don‘'t know, when he would come
| in a party or something.

Q. Did you ever meet Mr. Trafficante apart from being
in Cuba in the casinos?

A. Not that I remenber, no.
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Q. You never met Mr. Trafficante in the United States?
A. Not that I recall. Maybe I did, I don't think so.

Q. Are you aware that Mr. Trafficante was imprisoned

A. Yes, there were a bunch of them imprisoned.

Q. Were you in Cuba at that time?

A. Yeah.

Q. Do youknow why Mr. Trafficante was imprisoned?

A. To tell you the truth, I don't. I think they
just wanted to get them out of there myself.

Q. Did you visit Mr. Trafficante in prison?

A. ‘ I didn't visit him. I went out there once or
twice to visit a fellow, he was a dealer. He had a young
son and a wife and he gambled all his money away. At times
we would take up a collection amongst dealers and give him
money. I went out thare once or twice to see him.

Q. Pid you see anybody else in prison?

A. I saw everybody out there. Trafficante, I think he
was in there.

Q. Did you see Mr. Trafficante?

A. Imw him but I didn’t talk to him.

Q. You saw him but you could not talk to him.

A. I didn't know him that intimately.

Do you know of anybody who did visit Mr. Trafficante

in prison?
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No, I don't. I went out there with someone but I

don 't recall who it was.

know why.

you?

you?

Q

A.

Q.

A.

A.

Do you know a John Wilson Hudson?

Who?

A John Wilson Eudson.

Hudeon?

Yes.

No, sir, I don't.

Were you afraid of being imprisoned yourself?

They never did bother me for some reason. I don't
They never did the whole time I was there.
Do you have any accounting for that?

Sir.

Do you know any reason why they would not bother

Sir?

Do you know any reason why they would not bother

I don't know. It could have been the Foxes, I

don't know. I don't know why they didn't but they didn't.

I never was arrested there. If I'd have stayed there, I'd

probably have gotten arrested after we broke relations with

them.

Q

I left the first day of January 1961, I think it was.

Was Jack Ruby in Cuba visiting you during the time

when you went to visit the prison and saw Santo Trafficante
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there?

A. I don't think so. He could have been but I
don't think so. He could have been but I don't really think
he was. I don't remember what date Jack was there.

Q Did you discuss with Jack Ruby the imprisonment
of many of the people that were working in Cuba?

A. No, I didn't discuss things like that with him.

Q. What other individuals did you see dur ing your
visit to that prison? Do you remember the names of them?

A. I saw Dino, Dino Cellini. He was the manager of
the place, too, where I had worked.

Q. wWhich place was that?

A. Tropicana. Then he was at the Riviera.

Q. And you knew Mr. Cellini?

A. I didn't know him initimately. I knew him to talk
to him, how's business and this and that.

Q Did you ever hawe any business dealings with Mr.
Cellini?

A. Never .

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Mr. Cellini?

A. No, he wouldn't know Dino.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Mr. Trafficante?

A. No.

Q. Was Mr. Rothman put in prison?

A. I don't think so. I don't beliee he was.
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Q Did you visit Mr. Cellini when he was in prison?

A. sir?
Q- Did you visit Mr. Cellini when he was in prison?
A. I said hello tohim because I knew him.

Q But the primary reason for your going to the
prison was--

A. (Interrupting) To see this fellow Degeorgio or

whatever his name was.

Q Was there only one prison where all the people
were kept?

A. No, they had two prisons. They had one they
called Principle, was a real bad prison. This one didn't
look like a prison. It had a wire fence around it.

% What could you do to try and help a friend of
yours who was in prison to get out?

A. I wasn't trying to help him get out. I just went
out there to say hello to him.

Q. Was there anything one could do, even if not
yourself, generally?

A. No, I don't think so. I wouldn't know, but I
wouldn't think they could get them out.

Q. Could you bribe anybody to get them out of prison?

A. I don't really know about that, I don't know.

Q Did you know Mr. Meyer lLansky?

A. No, sir, never laid eyes on him in my life. I know

35-379 O - 79 - 8
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his brother, knew his brother.

Q  Jake?

A. Jake, very fine man.

Q. How d&id you know Jake?

A. I knew Jake in Cuba.

Q. How did you first meet Jake?

A. I don't recall how I met him. I just don't re-
call. I did meet him. It might have been through Dino.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know Jake Lansky?

A. No, positive he didn't.

Q What was the nature of your relationship with
Jake Lansky?

A. Just to say hello and that's all.

Q. Did you ever have dinner with him?

A. No.

Q. What casino did Mr. lLansky operate at?

A. Mr. Lansky was around the Riviera. I don't know if
he operated it or what but he was there, Jake Lansky I'm
talking about.

Q Did you know Mr. John Roselli?

A. I didn't know him. 1I've seen him around town here
like I told the FBI and then Mx. Fenton. I've seen Mr.
Roselli aroundhere. Any time I would go in the Sands to see
a show, I would see him there.

Q. Did you ever see Mr. Roselli outside of Vegas?
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A. Never in my life.
Q. You never saw him in Cuba?
A. I don't think he was in Cuba when I was there.

Q. Did you ever talk to him while he was here in

A. I never talked to him while he was there. He's
kind of a belligerent fellow. I had no reason to say any-
thing to him.

Q. Do you know a Mr. Sam Giancana?

A. No.

Q. Have you heard of Mr. Giancana?

A. I don't know him.

Q. You never met Mr. Giancana?

A. No.

Q. Do you know if Mr. Roselli or Mr. Giancana had
interests in Cuban casinos?

A. There wouldn't be any way I'd know that.

Q Had you heard that before?

A. I never heard of it, no. What attracted me to Mr.
Roselli was any time I ever saw him he had on dark glasses,
and he was a well dressed fellow and a fellow you would
notice in a crowd, you know, especially with the dark
glasses on.

Q You stated that you were the only American working

at the Tropicana, all the other employees were Cuban?
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A. That's right.
Q. Was that characterisatic for most of the other
casinos?
A. No, the other casinos had mostly Amer icans on

them, especially on the dice games, you know. The dice
games are pretty hard to deal and understnd and learn. so
it was mostly American dealers.

Q. When you were hired at the casino, did you have
to apply for an employee work card like you've shown us for
here in the state of Nevada?

A. No, I had t}) go to Dallas and get, after Castro
got there, I had to go to Dallas and get a letter from the
sheriff.

Q. What type of letter?

A. Sir?

Q. What type of letter from the sheriff?

A. As to my character, you know, I hadn't been .in
trouble there.

Q. That was after Castro took over?

A. - Yes; and I took it back and gave it to the Poxes.

Q. Prior to Castro taking over in 1958 or !59, 1958,
did you have, in September of !58 when you first got your
job at the Tropicana, did you have to apply for a work card
through the Cuban government?

A. No, I just went in there and talked to them and
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got the job and went to work.

Q. When did you leave Cuba?

A. January 1, 1961.

Q. You stayed approximately two years, then, after
Fidel Castro took over?

A. '59, '60, yes, almost two years.

Q. Prom 1958 through 1961, did you ever return to the

United states for visits?

A. Many times, yes. I used to bring money and
deposit it for the Foxes.

Q And where would that be deposited?

A. Sir?

Q. Where would that be deposited?

A. Well, I deposited money in the PanZmerican Bank
and I deposited money in the, I think it was a Miami bank,
I don't know.

Q. Were mat of your trips to Miami?

A. Sir?

Q Were mat of your trips from Cuba to Miami?

A. To the banks, yes.

Q. Did you ever go anywhere else besides Miami when
you returned for a visit?

A. No.

Q How did you keep in touch with your friends in

the United States while you were in Cuba?
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A. I didn'‘t keep in touch with them.

Q Did you write them at all?

A. Very few of them.

Q Did you phone them at all?

A. No.

Q Did you ever make any phone calls while you were
in Cuba back to the United States?

A. I don't recall getting any. Maybe Jack Ruby
called about Tony Zoppi, maybe, said they were cominga
something like that. Otherwise I never got any calls.

Q. Did you ever place any calls from Cuba to people
in the United States?

A. Not that I recall. I don't know who it could
have been.

Q. You told us about Mr. Meyer Panitz.

A. Sir?

Q Mr. Meyer Panits, P-a-n-i-t-z.

A. R Panitz, yeah.

Q. Did you ever call Mr. Panitz in Miami?

A. It's possible that I did because he's a very
close friend of mine.

Q Could that phone call have been right after Jack
Ruby visited you?

A. Oh, no, I think Panitz was in Cuba when Jack Ruby

was there. I believe he was in Cuba.
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Q. He wag a close friend of Jack Ruby, is that
correct?
A. Panitz, yes.
Q. what activities did Mr. Panitz engage in?
A. Years ago, many years ago, he was a book maker.

Q. Bow many years ago was that?

A. Oh, Christ, I'd say 35, 40 years ago.

Q. After that, what type of activity did he engage
in?

A. He could have worked in Cuba, I'm not sure. I
think he worked in Cuba.

Q. You knew him in Dallas, is that correct?

A. Yes; Memphis, too.

QU And did there come a time when he moved to Miami?

A. Did what?

< Did Mr. Panitzmove to Miami?

- -A. © He was in Dallas, he worked in Dallas. EHe worked
for me at the Top of the Hill, what we call, box watching
the crap games, sitting down. Where else did he work? EHe
could have worked around the Top of the Hill, I remember
that, and I believe he warked in Cuba. I believe he worked
at the Capri too in Cuba.

Q What period of time was that?
A. I don't have any idea. I'm suwe he worked there.

Q Did Jack Ruby see Mr. Panitz while he was in
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Cuba?

A. I couldn't say for sure.

Q. You assume he would have if Mr. Panitz was there?

A. I'm sure if Panitz was there at the time, yeah.
Like I say, I don't know what year he was -thcro.

Q. Is Mr. Panitz alive today?

A. He's dead.

Q. And you don't recall calling Mr. Panitsz from Cuba
right after Jack Ruby was there?

A. Right after Jack Ruby was there?

Q. Right after Jack Ruby visited you, you don't
recall calling Mr. Panitz in Miami?

A I don't recall calling him. It's possible.

Q. Do you know Misty Lane Minex?

A. Yes.

Q How do you know Ms. Miner?

A. I used to go with her for a few months. She was
in Cuba, too.

Q. When was she in Cuba?

A. I don't know. She wasn't there to see me. S5She
just cameaver there. We had broken up a couple or three
yeoars before. I think she was there around a week, I'm not
sure.

Q. Did she see you when she was in Cuba?

A. Yes, I said hello to her.
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Q. Did she give you any message from Jack Ruby?

A. No.

Q. Did Jack Ruby know her?

A. He knew her, sure.

Q- How long did Jack Ruby stay in Cuba when he visited
you?

A. To the best of my recollection, I'd say six days
maybe, not over a week, I don't think.

Q Can you remember what activities Mr. Rudy did
while he was down there?

A. He was right out there where I worked. Every
morning when I got up he was there. When I left the place,
he went with me to eat and went to bed.

Q. Were there any special shows during that pariod
of time that Mr. Ruby wanted to see or things to do?

A. The best show down there was at the Capri. Maybe
he went there once or twice.

Q Do you remember anything in particular that Mr.
Ruby did during that week?

A. I don't remember a darn thing he did but bug me
all week.

Q When was this that Mr. Ruby visited you in Cuba?

A. I'd have to say it was in !59.

Q. DO you remember the month it was?

A It might have been august. I don't recall. I be-
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lieve it was August. I don't know for sure.

Q. How do you pinpoint the date of August?

A. It just seems like to me it was in August.

tdld Mr. Fenton that, I believe.
Q Is there anything particular that sticks

your mind?

A. No, it just seems like it was the middle of the

year. 1I'd have to say it was right around August,
I'm not sure. There's no way I could tell you for

Q. Was it during hurricane season?

A. No, I don't think so. I think the hurricane

season starts in September, I'm not sure.

Q. Did Mr. Ruby, to your knowledge, ever visit Cuba

at any other time?

A. Not that I know of. I would say no.

Q He never discussed any other visits with you?

A. I would say no because I never did see him there

any more. I know if he had been there, I would have seen

him.

Q. When he was:-in Cuba, did you discuss the Castro

situation with Mr. Ruby?

A. No.

Q. You have no idea how long prior to Castro's taking

over he was down there?

A. No, 1 don't, I realy don't. I know that Castro
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had taken over when he was there, that he had already taken
over. I think he took over New Year's of 1959, I believe.

Q. To clarify the dates of Jack Ruby's visit in
Cuba, to the best of your recollection, it was August of
19597

A. That's what I'd say. I don't really know. Look
at the FBI report, maybe they know. I'm not trying to be
smart but I don't know the date. .

Q I understand that. We're trying to clarify it
for the record.

In other words, it was definitely after Castro
took over?

A. Definitely, yes. It was definitely after Castro
took over. That's when they really needed business. That's
the reason I called him. They were trying to get Toay to
come down there. I couldn't say for sure, but I'd have to
say it was around July or August.

Q So due to the Castro takeover, you needed business,
and you suggested to the Foxes--

A. (Interrupting) I suggested this thing to them
before that, too. They finally made up their minds after
business got so bad, they was doing anything to try to get
business because not many people came over there, tourists,
after Castro got there.

Q So you suggested to the Foxes that you knew Jack




19

N

120

106

Ruby?

A. I knew Tony Zoppi and I knew a man that could get
him to bring him over there.

Q. And when did you first meet Mr. Zoppi?

A. I'd say in the middle '40'a, just to speak to
him. I didn't know him well. He was a columnist and he'd
make night clubs and you'd see him around night clubs and
restaurants.

Q. Why didn't yourcall Mr. Zoppi directly to see if
he would come over?

A. Because I didn't know him that well. Jack Ruby
did business with him with the paper. He was with the
Dallas Morning News. 1In fact, he was with Zoppi, like I
told you, when President Kennedy got shot, I believe. I
believe he was there the next day or the same day. I mean
I'm going by the papers, what the papers said.

Q. How did you first get in touch with Jack Ruby
about inviting Tony Zoppi and himself to come down to Cuba?

A. I believe I called him on the phone, I'm noc sure.
It's possible that I did. I might have written him a
letter, I don't know.

Q. And what was Mr. Ruby's reaction?

A. It was all right. He said he could get him to

come. He was supposed to come.

Q. What did you do in response to Mr. Ruby's reaction
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A. I just told him it would help us out at the

Tropicana if he could get Tony down there and give us some
writeups in his column.

[*3 Did you wait until Jack Ruby called you back to
get in touch with Tony 2Zoppi?

A. I don't recall. I know Tony agreed to ccme down
there. I even called him or he called me, I don't know
which.

Q. Did you call Tony directly?

A. No, I called Jack. I didn't know Tony well enough
to talk to him.

Q. After your first phone call with Jack Ruby, what
period of time elapsed until either Jack called you or you
called Jack back to--

A. (Interrupting) It was a pretty good while.

Q. It was a long time?

A. I would say it was a few months.

Q So, then, you probably called him sometime in the
spring of 1959 and then it would be a few months, it
would be August until he finally came down?

A. I1'd have to say that, yeah, then he came by him-
self. If Tony would have came with him, then all this
wouldn't be going on here. It's an unfortunate thing that
he didn't come with him. I think I sent him two tickets,

I'm not sure. I'm positive I sent him two tickets.
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Q. You sent Jack Ruby two ticketsa?

A. Two tickets, one for him and one for Zoppi.

Q. And that was after Jack Ruby told you that Zoppi
had agreed to come?

A. That he would come, yeah. 1'd have to say that's
correct.

Q And the two tickets were being paid for by the
hotel?

A. They paid me the money. I bought the tickets.

Q. You bought the tickets?

A. Yeah, I bought the tickets but they gave me the

Q They gave you the money?

A. Oh, sure. It wasn't a hotel, it was a night club.
The Tropicana wasn't a hotel.

Q. And they did not expect to be paid back for these
two tickets, did they?

A. Oh, no, it was part of their publiecity. They
spent a’lot of money advertising. In fact, they had a sign
across the causeway in Miami about 2 block long for years.

Q. And you prepaid the two tickets and sent them to
Jack Ruby, is that correct?

A. I paid for them with money, is tha what you mean,
prepaid?

Q. Yes.
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A. Yes.

Q. Did you also tell Mr. Ruby that or make for Mr
Ruby any accommodations for where they would stay when they
got down there?

A. I told them that they would be taken care of in
any hotel they wanted to, the bill would be taken care of
because that was the agreement I had with the Poxes.

Q. And that was not prepaid in advance, was it?

A. No.

Q. Where did Jack Ruby stay when he got down there?

A. They didn't pay his way when he got there because
he didn't bring Zoppi. He stayed at a little hotel there.
I was living at the Foxa at the time, F-o-x-a, it was an
apartment building. He stayed in a little hotel. I could
look out my window and see it down on the corner.

Q. Was his ticket still paid for even though Tony
Zoppi didn't come?

A. We went ahead and paid that, they did rather. I
didn't get it back.

Q The letter you've given us today from Tony Zoppi,
the portion of the letter you gave to us today, do you still
have the top of that letter?

A. The whole letter?

Q Yes.

A. No, it was a personal letter to this fellow here.
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That's the only part I had of it.
Q. The letter was addressed to?
A. The letter that Tony sent was sent to Brescia.

QL Right. And did he give you the entire letter or
just the bottom portion?

A. He gave me the eatire letter but I tore off the
bottom part because that was the only part that concerned
me. It was all personal.

Q. And you destroyed the top portion? Yo no longer
have the top portion of the letter?

A. There wasn't anything in there that anyone would
be interested in. I just read the bottom part where he
concluded his letter and tore it out.

Q. Do you still have the top part?

A. No.

Q. Was there any reason you didn't give that letter
to Mr. Cline and Mr. Penton when they came to talk to you?

A. I told them I had it.

Q. Did they ask to see it?

A. They told me if I got subpoenaed to bring it with
me, I'm pretty sure they did. I'm positive I brought it
up to them. You see, when they interviewed me, I was at a
friend of mine's house, staying overnight, because they were
gone out of town and they were scared scmeone would break in

their house and they came over there. In fact, I went down
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and met them.

Q. Do you know why Tony Zoppi couldn't go to Cuba?

A. Sir?

Q Do you know why Tony Zoppi couldn't go to Cuba on
that trip?

A. why he didn't come?

Q Yes.

A. No, I don't. I have no idea. I guess he was
busy or something, couldn't make it.

Q. Why did Jack Ruby come?

A. He just wanted to use the free ticket, I guess.

Q. Before Jack Ruby came, did he tell you tha Tony
Zoppi would not be coming?

A. No, he didn't tell me. I would have told him to
stay there then I wouldn't have had all this.

Q. Do you recall being interviewed by the PBI concern-
ing Jack Ruby's visits to Cuba?

A. I recall them interviewing me about Jack Ruby, yes.

Q Did you tell the FBI about Tony Zoppi?

A. I don't think I did, to tell you the truth. I
didn't think about it until I got the darn letter. Then it
all came back to me why he was coming down there.

Q And this letter is the letter you received in 197672

A. I received a letter in 1976 from my brother, yes.

Q So from 1963 to 1976, you had just forgotten?

35-379 O =79 -9
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A. I had just forgot about it, to tell you the
truth. I was all shook up-about the darn thing happening and
it just slipped my mind.

Q. Wasn 't really the only reason for Ruby to come
visit was to get Tony 2Zoppi?

A. That's right.

Q. Isn't that the primary reason for him to visit?

A. That's the only reason that he came down there
was he was supposed to bring Tony Zoppi and he didn't bring
him.

Q. It wasn't to give Jack Ruby a vacation, was it?

A. No, I don't think so. It might have been what I
told the FBI because like I say, I was so shook up when I
talked to them that first time and I didn't know what to
tell them.

Q. In an PBI interview dated June 9, 1964, and the
intexview being conducted on June 8, 1964, by special agents
Stevens and McPaul, let me read you part of what you said
about Jack Ruby's visit to Cuba. You stated, "In 1959, date
unrecalled, he wrote to Ruby and asked him if he wotld like
to come to Havana for a week. He stated there was no ulterior
motive and that he had been a close friend of Ruby's and
axtended this invitation as one would to a brother. He
realized Ruby was working hard with his Dallas night club and

felt that Ruby mewled a rest. Because thecst of plane
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tickets in Havana could be paid for bypesos for approxinitely
one fifth of the cost of the ticket in the United States,
he purchased a ‘round-trip ticket for Ruby at his own ex-
pense and mailed it to Ruby in Dallas after which Ruby
boarded a plane and flew to Havana for a visit."

Later in the report, if I may just read another
paragraph, it states, "with further regard to the airline
ticket purchased by McWillie, he stated that as best he
can recall, the peso evaluation of this ticket was about
$75 and that he had personally absorbed the cost. He could
not be certain whether Ruby repaid him for this ticket after
Ruby reached Havana, again explaining that he purchased the
ticket at Havana and mailed it to Ruby at one fifth of what
it would cost Ruby to buy a éonpl:lbln ticket in Dallas.

He does not recall standing any other expenses for Ruby in
connection with the trip and was unable to state whether
Ruby had repaid him for the cost of the ticket or not."

Now, is that an accurate account of whatyu ﬁold
the PBI?

A. I may have told thea that but Zoppi was supposed
to come with ﬁuby. It just slipped my mind about Zoppi,
that's all. I'm sure I sent him two tickets. I paid for
them out of my pocket but I got the money from the Foxes.

[+ The agents questioned you in fairly explicit de-

tail, is that not correct?
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A. Sir?

Q. The agents questioned you in fairly explicit de-
tail, is that not correct?

A. They questioned me pretty good, yes.

Q. I mean they specifically asked you whether or not
there was an ulterior motive for your sending a ticket to
Jack Ruby. Don'‘t you think you would have remembered about
Tony Zoppi at that time?

A. I didn't remember until I got that letter, to tell
you the truth. I did not remember about it until I got the
letter and then it all hit me at one time and I said to my-
self, well, I should have told the PBI that.

Q. There's also an FBI report dated November 27, 1963,
the interview being conducted November 25, 1963, by special
agents Stevens and Salisbury concerning Ruby's trip to
Cuba. Again it says, "McWillie said he had gone to Cuba
to work at the Tropicana at Navana, Cuba, and while there--

A. (Interrupting) I didn't understand you.

Q. I'm sorry, the report states, "McWillie said he
had gone to Cuba to work at the Tropicana at Havana, Cuba,
and white there sometime in 1959, Ruby had been in Cuba for
about a one week's vacation and he had seen Ruby there at thay
time. He said he knew of no interests Ruby might have had
in Cuba."

A. He.didn't have any interests in Cuba and he did
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take a vacation when he came by himself. He darn sure did,

Q. And again you did not recall that Tony Zoppi
was the primary reason that Jack Ruby--

A. (Interrupting) No, I didn't. To tell you the
truth, I didn't until I got that letter and it hit me and
I said, my, God, I should have told the FBI that.

Q Even when questioned about the cost of Ruby's
trip?

A. I‘didn't recall it. Like I say, it was such a
terrible thing that happened that I was just shook all up.
They came out there the same day, I think.

Q You are sure, however, that Jack Ruby's trip to
Cuba was after Castro took over? Are you sure of that now?

A. I'mmpsitive of it, yeah.

Q. And the reason you can date that is--

A. (Interrupting) 1I'd have to say,yes, it was after
he took over.

Q. And what's the reason you can date that?

A. I wasn't there--do you have it there when I went
to Cuba? You said September?

Q. September of 1958.

A. It would have to be after Castro was in.

Q. And the reason you're dating that again is because
of the decline in business due to Castro's takeover, is that

correct?
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A. That's correct. Business declined when Castro
got there.
Q. How was business generally when you first moved

to the casino in 19587

A. How was what?

Q. How was business at the Tropicana?

A. It wasn't any good. It was going down then.
There was talk in all the papers about Castro going to

arrive there and everything. It had declined:

Q. It had declined at that time?

A. Real bad.

Q. Could the Foxes have asked you at that time or
you had suggested to the Foxes at that time to get in touch
with Tony Zoppi?

A. 1 had suggested to the Foxes that we might get some
business out of Dallas if we would get him to write articles
in his colwnn about it.

Q. When was the first time you uade‘that suggestion
to the Poxes?

A. I made that, I believe, when I first went there.

I believe I did. I'm not positive. Then when it got so bad
after Castro got there, I went to them again and they decided
to go ahead with it.

Q. When ou first made the suggestion to the Foxes, when

you first got there in September of '58, did you tell Jack
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Ruby that, in fact, you had made that suggestion?

A. Did I tell--

Q (Interrupting) Did you tell Ruby even though
nothing had been definite with the Poxes?

A. No.

Q. You never told Jack Ruby you had made the
suggestion until the Poxes 0.X.'d the deal?

A. In '58? '

Q.  Right, in '58.

A. I don't think so. I think it was after Castro
got there.

Q. You never told him you had made the suggestion
until the Foxes 0.K.'d the deal?

A. No, I didn't call him until after they O.K.'d the
deal.

Q You stated that you asked or you might have asked
Jack Ruby to send you a gun in Cuba just because you could
get yourself killed down there, a lot of people had guns.

A. Well, it was awful bad down there. It was scary,
little kids carrying machine guns.

Q Was there much gun running into Cuba?

A. Sir?

Q. Was there much gun runnint into Cuba?

A. I don't know about any gun running. No way I'd

knoy about that.



(&

132

118
Where did all the guns come from?

Castro brought them with him.

Do you know how Castro got his guns?
No, I don't have any idea.

Do you know Mr. Robert McKeown?

No, sir, I sure don't. You asked me that before.
Do you know Dominick Bartone?

No, sir.

Have you ever heard the name before?
Dominick Bartone?

Bartone.

Never heard of him.

Mr. Edward Browder?

Edward who?

Browder.

No, sir.

You never heard that name before?

No. McKeown'smme I've read in articles about

But you never met him personally?
No.

You just read that.

I wouldn't know him if I'd see him.
Do you know Mr. Sam Benton?

who?
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Q. Benton, B-e-n~t-o-n.

A. No, sir. «

Q. We're tuwrning for a moment to Ruby's trip without
Tony Zoppi to Cuba.

A. 0.K.

Q. Mr. Zoppi has written an article on the subject.
Are you aware of that fact?

A. No, I'm not.

Q  In Mr. Zoppi's article, he states that the trip
was supposed to be in Decerber of 1958, which is prior to
Castro's taking over.

A. Maybe I did call him before '59. But I did call
him in '59 again. If 1did make a call in '58, then I did
make a call in '59.

Q. Could you explain that? I'm not sure I understand.

A. It's possible that I didamll in !58.

MR. WOLF: Off the record.

(Thereupon, a short discussion was had off the
record.)

MR, WOLF: On the record.

BY MR. WOLF:

Q. As we were stating, Mr. Zoppi has told us and
written that to the best of his recollection, it was in
December of 1958 when he was supposed to come down to make

this review and, in fact, one of the reasons he did not go
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was he had another show in Las Vegas to review. That was
the reason he did not go down to Cuba with Jack Ruby. He
states that he intended going down after the review but did
not go down to Cuba because Castro took over. And that's
how he places the dates of December 1958 because he's
certain that since Castro took over January 1, 1959, he then
did not go down.

A. Well, it's possible that I could have called in
158. But I know I called in '59, too. But it's possible
but I'm not sure.

Q. That's what we were asking before. The Poxes did
not approve Jack Ruby and Tony Zoppi coming down together
until 19597

A. The first time, it might have been '58, the latter
part of '58. I'm not positive on this. 1It's been so long,
it 's been 20 years ago, you know. But I did know that I
called Jack Ruby in '59 and he told me he would Mring.Pony
Zoppi. He said, "Don't worry, I'll bring him down there."
Now, it's possible that I did call him in !58, too, I dontt
recall it.

Q And Jack Ruby, when he was in cm, was that be-
fore or after Castro took over?

A. Jack Rubywas in Cuba after Castro took over.

[*R And, to the best of your recollection, that was

August of 1959?
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A. I'd have to say August. I'm not sure, though.

Q. I'm saying though to the best of your recollection,
it was August?

A. I don't know.

Q. Subsequent to your returning to the United States,
you were involved in an incident at Miami Airport, is that
correct?

A. That's right.

Q. And is it fair to characterize you as anti-
Castro? '

A. I was in an outfit called Pair play for Cuba. I'm
not very proud of it but I was just mad.

Q. It would be fair to characterize your political
philosophy as anti-Castro?

A. I wasn't trying to do anything. This fellow was
talking about the United States and President Eisenhower
and different people and what a bum country it was in
America, it's lucky I didn't jump on him there because if
I had I would have been in jail but I wanted until I got to
the States. I called the FBI and I explained it to them.
He was a school teacher up in Chicago.

Q Subsequent to your return to the United States,
were you ever approathed by any individuals regarding
assassinating Pidel Castro?

A. Oh, God, no, of course not.
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Q. Did you ever discuss the politisal situation
in Cuba with any individunl;?

A. Nobody. It was a very dangerous thing to even
talk to Cubans about Castro or anybody else.

Q Even in the United States?

A. In the United States?

Q I'm saying subsequent to your return from Cuba,
not while you were in Cuba but subsequent.

A. While I was in Cuba?

Q After you left Cuba and came back to iho United
States.

A. I would rib Cubans about Castro being a Communist
and things like that.

Q Was that here in the United States?

A. In the United States.

Q Which Cubans?
: ‘A I don't know, just anyone I1'd see, viva Fidel,
rib them. That's what they all said when Castro got there.

Q. Do you know Mr. Jerry Patrick Hemming?

A. Who?

Jerry Patrick Hemming, H-e-m-m-i-n-g.

A. No.

Q You stated you knew Mr. Mike McLaney?

A. Very well.

Q. How did you know Mr. MclLaney?
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A. I met Mxr. MclLaney at the, I met him years ago
in Miami. He had a restaurant in Miami. I met him one
night in there. I was at the races,

Q. Was that before or after--

A. (Interrupting) This was in the early '40's,
'46 or '47. He had a restaurant called Liaglan, I don't
know how to spell it, a French restaurant. I was introduced
to him.

Q. Did you meet Mr. McLaney while you were in Cuba?

A. I met him in Miami first. The next time I saw
Mr. McLaney, just introduction, my name, his name, he
probably forgot about it. The next time, when I went to
Cuba, he had the National Hotel. I used to go over and
visit with him, you know, like you visit with people.

Q Did you have dinner with him occasionally?

A. I don't think I ever did have didner with him, no.
I'd just go overand say hello. - And then I worked for Mclaney
in Haiti, too, Porta Prince, Haiti. I stayed down there
nine months.

Q. What period of time did you work in Haiti?

A. 1975, I believe. I didn't stay but nine months.
I got sick down there.

Q. Did you know Mr. McLaney's brother?

A. Oh, yeah, a very good friend of mine, Bill.

QL How did you know Bill?
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I met Bill in Cuba.
Is that the first time you had met him?
The first time Bill, yeah.

After you left Cuba, did you continue to maintain

a friendship with him?

A.

Q

Oh, sure, we're still friends.

How often would you see him after you left Cuba

or speak to him?

A.

Q

A.

After I laft Cuba?
Yes.

I never saw him again until I went to Haiti.

No, I worked for him at the Carousel here. They owned the

Carousel, McLaheys.

Q

A.

Was that in Nevada, Cal-Neva?

No, didn't I tell you about the Carousel Club?

I gave you a resume of every place I worked.

MR. PURDY: You're talking about the Carousel in

lLas Vegas?

A.

THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. WOLF:

And they own that club?

'‘They own that.

What did Bill Mclaney do in Cuba?

With his brother, I don't know what he did. Helped

with the casino, 1 guess.
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Q Did they own it jointly?
A. I have no idea how they owned it.
Q. Did you ever discuss political attitudes toward

Castro with the MclLaneys?

A. Never, had no reason to.

Q. After your return to the United States, did the
McLaneys ever discuss their attitude toward Castro?

A. Never, never mentioned Castro to me.

Q. Were you aware that the !;.cuncyn were involved
in anti-Castro activities after their return to the United
States?

A. No.

Q You never heard that before today?

A. Never heard it. I think I read it in a book, too.

Q. But you were not aware of that?

A. No,

Q When was the first time that you became aware of
John: Roselli's or Sam Giancanca's efforts to assassinate
Fidel Castro?

A. About what ?

Q  About John Roselli's or Sam Giancana's efforts to
assassinate Fidel Castro.

A. Read it in the papers.

Q You had never heard of it before that?

A, Never.
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Q. Do you know Mr. Prank Sturgis?

A. No.

Q. Have you ever heard of Mr. Sturgis?

A. I've read books about him.

Frokini

Q. A Mr. Prank

A. No; I read in the books, though, that he was in
Castro's army. That's Sturgis, too, isn't it?

Q Do you know Mr. Richard Danner, D-a-n-n-e-r?

A. Mr. Danner used to be an FBI man in Dallas.

Q. How did you first meet Mr. Danner?

A. I don't recall. It seems like he was looking for
some--I don 't recall how I met him but I did meet him one
time.

Q. Just one time?

A. That's all. I've seen him here.

Q. That was in Dallas?

A. One time here is all I've seen him.

Q. Did you ever see Mr. Danner in Cuba?

A. Never.

Q. You only saw Mr. Danner aone time in lLas Vegas?

A. I went in thereto look for a job.

Q. Do you remember where when you say you went in
there?

A. The Prontier. He was working for Suma, you,know,

he's the general manager of the Sands and at that time they
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didn't need anyone.
Q. You never discussed with Mr. Danner Mr. Roselli
or Mr. Giancana, did you?
A. Of course not. I didn't know those people.

Q. Do you know Mr. E. Howard Hunt?

A. The one that was in Watergate?
Q. Yes .
A. No.

Q. You never met him?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did anyone ever approach you after your return to
the United States about getting involved in a plot to kill
Fidel Castro?

A. No, sir.

Q When the Bay of Pigs invavasion occurred, do you
remember where you were?

‘A I was at my mother 's home in Caral Gables, Florida.

Q. Had you been living in Florida?

A. I went there from Cuba. I stayed there until
June lst and then went to work in the Cal-Neva Lodge.

Q It was fairly common knowledge around Miami at
that time that a large invasion was about to occur. Wexe
youaware of that fact?

A. No, sir, I wasn't.

Q. You were not aware of that fact?

35-379 O -79 - 10
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A. I might have heard rumors, but I didn't pay any
attention to it because I didn't think it was true. There
\unia possibility that it was true but I didn't think:so.

Q When Jack Ruby killed Lee Harvey Oswald, where
were you at that time?

A. Sir?

Q. Where were you when Jack Ruby killed Lee Rarvey
Oswald?

A. I was working at the Thunderbird Hotel.

Q. And what was your reaction when you heard the
news?

A. Where was I when it happened?

Q. When it happened.

A. I was at home. We've got a TV in the kitchen.
My wife was up early and I was working night, and she came
running in the bedroom and said, “Come in the kitchen,
somebody just shot Oswald." And I jokingly said, "Well, I
hope I don't knoQ who did it", just joking. At first they
said a manlnaned Siegal, I think they said. Then a few

minutes later they said, "we made a terrible mistake. The

man's name is Jack Ruby." wWell, I like to fell out. I told

my wife, I said, "Margaurita, the FBI will probably come
here to see me today or tomorrow." And she said, "Why?”
I said, "Well, I knew this man in Dallas." And

sure enough in about three hours, the kids and I, I forgot
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what was going on this day, could it have been possible
that the funeral of President Kennedy was going on thac
day? There was some ceremony in the rotunda, we were
watching it on the TV, the two kinds and myself and my
wife. About three hours later there was a knock on the
door and my some, he was about six years old, went to the
door and said, "Dad, two men want to see you." Well, I
didn't want the kijds to hear him. I just took them in the
kitchen and shut the door and that's wherewe talked.

Q Do you know how the PBI got to your house so
quickly?

A. No, I don't know. It was a mystery to me. I don't
know how they got there that quick. 1I'd say it was about
three or four hours they were thera.

Q. Did you call any of your friends or associates
right after you had heard that Jack Ruby--

A. (Interrupting) No.

Q Do you know, to your knowledge, did anybody hire
Jack Ruby to kill Lee Harvey Oswald?

A. Do what, sir?

Q Did anybody hire Jack Ruby to kill Lee Harvey
Oswald?

A. Sure not. 1It's like I've told everybody that has
been questioning, I've been questioned by reporters and

everything, I think he did it just to--are you all listening
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to me? I think he did it just to make a big man out of
himself. He was that type of a person.
BY MR. PURDY:

Q. After the assassination and after the shooting of
Oswald, did you discuss Jack Ruby with anyone other than
your wife and the FBI agents?

A. I don't know, I don't think so. I didn't want
anybody to know I even knew him, to tell you the truth.

Q Did you discuss fack Ruby with anyone who already
knew that you had known Jack Ruby?

A. Who?

Q. Did you talk to anyone who knew Jack Ruby and who
knew that you knew him after this happened?

A. No.

Q. After the assassination.

A. No, I don't think so.

Q. You haven't talked about Jack Ruby with any
mutual acquaintances, then?

A. No:; I might have said scmething about, whatdo you
think about that nut doing what he did or something like
that. I didn't want people to know. It was embarrassing
to me when I was working for the FBI to come in and take
me Ooff to the side. Like I say, I asked them to see me at
home and they did. '

Q. Did you know Juan Orta? -

A. Who?
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Juan Orta, O-r-t-a.

No.

Cuban? I don't recall his name.

Did you know William E. Fletcher of New York City?

Yes, I've known him for years. He's from Dallas,

How did you know him?
I met him around Dallas.
Pid he gamble with any of the other oilmen?

There were two Fletchers. Is he the oilman you're

speaking of? His brother was a gambler.

Q

A.

What was the gambler 's first name?

I can't think of his first name but there were

two brothers and I knew both of them.

Q.
A.

dead.

the Capri

The FPletrcher brothers.

The Pletcher brothers. In fact, one of them is

Did Jack Ruby know either of the Fletchers?

Jack Ruby, I wouldn't think so.

Did you know Raymond B. Cortez?

No.

Did you know Henry Savadra, a former employee of
in Cuba?

Henry Ssvaadra, he was a cashier there, I believe.

Did Jack Ruby see him when he came to Cuba?
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A. No, he wouldn't have any reason to see him.

Q. Did you know David Elatkin in Cuba?

A. wWho?

Q E-l-a~-t-k-i-n.

A. No.

Q Did you know Robert Larkin?

A. Robert Larkin, sure I know him. He's a loéuri_t.y
guard. He worked for Abe Weinstein. He's a bouncer.

Q Did he use to manage the Vegas Cluba work with
Jack Ruby with the Vegas Club?

A. I don't think he did. I don't believe he ever
worked for Jack Ruby. I think he worked for Weinstein.
He's working as a security guard here in the Premont Hotel,
he was the last I heard of him.

Q. Do you think he knew Jack Ruby?

A. Did he know Jack Ruby? Yes, he knew him.

QL Did Mr. Larkin ever gamble in Dallas?

A. I never saw him gamble anywhere, no. I don't

think he made enough money to gamble. BPBod Larkin, that's who

you're talking about.
Q Earlier you mentioned an Oscar Cheninder.
A. Cheninder.
Q. Could you spell that name for us?
A. I couldn't spell it. C-h-e-m-i-n-d-e-r. He's

dead, too, though.
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QU I believe you previously stated that when Jack
Ruby came to Cuba that that was the first time he'd gone
to Cuba, is that correct?

A. That's what he said. I've never seen him befcre.
He had never been there when I was there.

Q Did he go to Cuba after that?

A. I wouldn't know. I'd have no way of knowing. I
never saw him, vhen I came through Dallas that time. I
don 't think he did. The FBI even asked me if he'd been
here. 1I've never seen him out here. v

Q. Do you have perscnal knowledge as to whether or
not Jack Ruby went to Cuba in September of 1959 for one
day?

A. ¥o.

* % DO you believe you would have known if he had?

A I would have known it, I believe. I beliere he
would have called me. Can't they look up the airline tick_ot*
and check it out?

Q. Did Jack Ruby visit the prison when he was in
Cuba?

A I really don't know. It's possidble he could
bave but I don't think, i1f he did, he went with me and I
don't recall it but he could have. I don't know for sure.

Q You said you thought it was possible that someone

had gone to the prison with you.
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A. It's possible that it might have been Jack Ruby.

[*) Did the person who went to the prison with you speak
to anyone that was in the prison?

A. Just to this Degeorge and I spoke to Dino and
Jake Lansky.

QL Did you say hello to Trafficante there?

A. Just said hello. But I talked to Jake because
Dino was a friend of mine. I mean not a parsonal, intimate
friend. I used to go down and visit him when he was
working. SO-tiuo-' he'd drop by and see me.

Q After you left Cuba, how did you get a job in
Nevada?

A. I got a job in Nevada through a friend of mine
named Johnny Blaine. He was a book maker years ago. He
called me and ahked me if I wanted to go up to Cal-Neva
Lodge. He said I could go up there and see Sandy Waterman.
He used to manage a casino. I went up there. The 15th of
June I went up there.

QU Did Mr. Blaine have anything to do with the Cal-
Neva Lodge?

A No, he didn't. He knew Sandy Waterman from old
days or something.

MR. WOLP: Mr. McWillie, that's the conclusion
of our questions. If you have anything to add that would

help the Committee, we would be most appreciative.
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THE WITNESS: I don't know what I could tell
you because, like I said, all the contact I had with Ruby
was about the union thing. I don't even remember when it
was, in '63. It must have been the early part-of '63.

I know that whoever Bill Miller did call and to this day
he don 't talk to me any more because I had Ruby call him.
I had no idea Ruby was like he was.

MR. WOLF: Do you have anyone else you could
suggest we should talk to?

THE WITNESS: The only ones I could suggest are
those two fellows I named. They were very close with him
in Dallas. They were Rifkin and Panitz.

MR. WOLF: They're both dead.

THE WITNESS: They died a couple of years ago.
They were just friends of his. Nobody ever dreamed in the
world this man would do anything like this. He was just a
harmless fellow. I don't know what to tell you. I can't
tell you anything else. I'‘ve told the truth, everything
I've told you. But I did leave out the thing about Zoppi
withithe FPBI. I'm sorry I did but I just forgot it. I was
shook up that I knew this fellow.

MR, WOLF: Mr. McWillie, we very much appreciate
your cooperation. This transcript will be typed up and

sent to us in Washington. We will then send you a copy of

it for you to- read. There will be a little statement at the
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end for you to sign that it's an accurate and true account.
If you want to make changes in the transcript, you should
get in touch with me. 1I'll send you a cover letter with the
transcript.

THE WITNESS: I don't have either one of your
cards.

MR. WOLF: We'll leave a card with you. If you
get in touch with us, we'll send you a statement to sign.
If you sign that and return it to us, then we'll send you
an official copy of your transcript so you'll have one for
your own records.

Thank you very much. That will conclude the

deposition.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day

of 19 .

My commission will expire day of

Notary Public
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United States of America, )
(

State of Nevada, ) ss.
(

City of Las Vegas. )

1, Joseph L. Ward, U. S. Magistrate, do certify
that, pursuant to notice, there came before me, in Room
4-003, Federal Courthouse, 210 Las Vegas Boulevard, in Las
Vegas, State of Nevada, Lewis J. McWillie, who was by me
duly sworn to testify the whole truth of his knowledge touch-
ing the matter herein; that he was examined and his examina-
tion at the time reduced to writing in Stenotype by Naomi
Bolstad and that such examination has been correctly trans-
crived and is fully and accurately set forth in the 136 pre--
ceding pages; that the deposition is a true record of the
testimony given by the witness, that his said deposition so
given was by sald witness subscribed and sworn to; that said
deposition was taken on the day, between the hours and at
the place in that behalf aforesaid, and that said deposition
is now herewith returned.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand at
my office in this day
of 1978.

138
United States of America,

)
State of Nevada, § 8s.
City of Las Vegas. §

I, Naomi Bolstad, do certify that I accurately
and correctly reported in Stenotypy the complete proceed-
ings had in the taking of the deposition of Lewis J. McWil-
lie, and have accurately and correctly transcribed the same

in the preceding 13 6 pages.

“lssne. W

Naomi Bolstad, Court Reporter
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Rub/, ;hc!c LAallT

i LEWYS J. kNC WILLIE, 3627 Eastera, Las Vegas, e
Nevadz, was interviewed on November 25, 1963. MuC VWILLYE .
ormerly worked for FRED DROUNIKG at the" Top of theé BiII"""" .. 7
lub betyeen Dzllas and Ft. Worth, Texas, in Tarrant' COunty. -
This was_an 1llegal ramblirg: operation \iher%vgéked . oe-t.
during the 1940's. EFe stated that he has knowa JAUK RUBY -~ . -
since 1947 or 1948, and that RUBY formerly opsrated.ibe R
Vegas CIv' =rcd now also operatcs.the Carrousel -Club-4n’’
Dallas. o sald tbat he has known RUBY for somewhere
between 15 a2nd 20 years, first getting acquainted with ¥ .
hin in Dallas, but krew him.only as an operator of a o2 : ‘e
night club. FEe stated that to his.knowledge, RUBY has : - . .
never been involved in any other kind of enterprise L -
-and to his knowledge no one else was assoclated \lith him -
in the Yegas Ciub. He said that as far as he. knew, RUBY,
operated this establishmeat within the law and ‘'was not - R
known to him to be involved\in gambling, prostitution, e
.or illegal liquor sales. He s21d that he did know that'- . .ot
RUBY.bad come to Dallas from Chicago, but did hot “Know
.of any particular sssociates of"*RUBY. He said RUBY bhad’
visited_the Top of the Hill, but was nouﬁwﬂﬁgto{ -
there., Ee said he wouid minL_i;hai:_RUB‘.’_px;_bably knew -
riost of the n embers._of_the Dallas_Police Department; ° - Lo
sinply because of the type of establishment tbat he ran, - C .
but felt that this would be thg;.mlx basis of any . .
2ssociation with the Dallas Police Department since he - o .
£e3T ﬂ:—t' tho operatlion was a legakl ome.

. EC WILLIE saild that he bad gone to .Cuba to work
at the Troplcana in Havana, Cuba, and while there someuina
in 1859, RUBY bad bsen in Cuba for about a jone wesk's
vacation and be had seen RUBY there at that tiwe. He sai.d .
be knew-of no interests RU'BY might have had in Cuba.

1C WILLIE sald th:t he re»urned from Cuba on SO
January 2, 1561, on tho sawms.plans which caxried,some othaxr -
p’ssenvers at lea.,‘b one of. whom expressad a- dis‘.lihe .
forxr Presionn.. I:ISI:N'hO‘Tm and Anerica 8, actions in rogards . -

on __ 11/25/63 C R& 4

)

LED A, STIVERS & \'APRI."¥ E. SLJ.S"”J‘!
S 44

<€onicins nelther tacommendotions nor coneluatons of the FBi. h h |)u ,vu,- ly ol n.. }‘nl ond s leansd lo
end s £ontanta ufe not Lo de dletribuled oul-uo your azency. -
R i

o __Las Vegas, Nevada File § __ XV 44-8

11/?6/63

= Date dlcro.su
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to Cuba and it was his recollection that this ipdividualivas
2 member of the Fair Play for Cuba organizatioa.! He stated.’
that he had become highly incensed over the remarks this N
individual made while waiting for the plane in Havana. )
and during the travel to the! United States, but that he
had controlled his emotions concerning this man's remarks *
un%til after the plane's arrival in Miaml, whereupon he bad:
piy:ically attacked this individual because of the remarks ST
he bhad rade concerning the United States. He said that )
this matter received local publicity in Miami press and’. - -
that bhe was also interviewed by the Federal. Bureau of ™ .-
Investigation in Hiami concerning this situation. He S
stated that it would be his belief that JACK RUBY would -
also be very much opposed to any such orgéinization and =

also pointed out that he had talked to. JACK RUBY following

this incident and RUBY bad remarked to him that he bad T
(done the right thimg in attacking this man.

LA *

Ho stated that he bad correspondence with RUBY .
and maintained contact with him principally through this’~
means and sometime in early: 1963 had felt that he needed
some type of protection around the house and bad requested
RUBY, bellieved by letter, to obtain a gun for bim., ~ He '
stated ke did not specify what kind of gun he wanted but
that he had subsequently learned that a COD package awalted
him at tke Post Office. He:stated that he bad discussed
this matter with his wife and they had decided not to |
pick up the gun which bad been mailed from Dallas, Texas,
as they were afraid their children might find the gun. Xe
stated he was sure that this-gun was sent to him tbrough
RUBY's efforts based upon bhis initial request. He stated
be does not krow wbat disposition might bave been made

of the gun. i . R ¢
. MR : .
i

He said his last contacts with RUBY were about - .° .
two months ago when RUBY contacted:'binm via telephone ‘ -
concerning some trouble he was having with a sbow, as a |
result of which hs referred.RUBY to (BILL MILLER} the ownex “.
-0f the Riverside Hotel in Reno, vhere LC WILLIE bad formerly. . .
beea Club Manager. . Thelr discussion on this occasion had LR S
to.do only with the club's :ict with which RUBY was conoerned.

-
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¥C WILLIE sald that since RUBY's name bad first .
come to his attention in connection with the killing of .
OSWALD,- he had searched his mind concerning a.possible” *° :
.motive and had come to the conclusion in his own mind that - |
. RUBY must have been brooding over the death of the T :
President and that this was an insane act on the part of
RUBY. He stated that he is certain in his own mind that .
RUBY has no underworld connections, although he might be :
- acquainted with some figures in gambling and other illegal
activities and stated that the only person that he could
suggest who night be on 2 more intimate basis with RUBY
other than tha members of the immediate family, was a girl
he went with in Dallas, Texas, for about four years by the -
-name of ALICE. - : .

. ¥He stated be has never known RUBY to visit Las®
Vegas and is certain ‘that 1f RUBY did he.would bave bsen . .
in contact with him, as RUBY knows where he works and how ; .
to contact him. ¥He also feels that thelr acquaintance is . )
such that RUBY would not pass through Las Vegas without being. -
in touch with him. He stated he does mot know RUBY to -
have ever been involved in any bookie activity, or in any . -
gambling of any nature other than as a player. .

MC VWILLIE advised that ELAINE MYNIER is a Dallas
girl vho worked at the Avis Rental in the Dallas Adrport
Terninal Building and is acquainted witb RUBY. He recalled .

" . she visited Havana, and stayed for about two weeks. He .

denied having used ber as a courier between RUBY and himself,
cxplaining that there was no restriction at tbe time ard haad -
be wanted to gat a message to RUBY, he would kave telepbonsd
him. . - - I L.

v ! R N - ey

PN . DI . s - -

2sY
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LEWYS J. MC WILLYE was interviewed at his residence,
3527 Eastern Avenue and advised as follows:

. He went to Cuba in Sepuember, 1958, and :lmmediately

“weat to work at the Tropicana Casino, remining there as mansjed
‘until May, 1960, after-which he left and worked at tha Cupri
Hotel-Caslno t*om Hay, 1960, to January 2,-1961, as a pi:iboss.

. Re stated the Tropicani was Cuban owned and th:.t he did sot-
know the owner of the Caprl, but that he worked undar ong -

" ANGELO DI CHBISTOYMO (Phonetic)

’ . In. 1959 date unrecalled, he wrote to RUBY and asksa:
hin if he would like to come to Ka.v;ns for a week. Ee stated
‘ there was no ulterloxr.motive and that he had been a close

ST friend of RUBY's zndsextended this invitation as one would to
a brother. He -realized RUSY was working hard with his Dallas,
» night club and felt that RUBY needed 8 rest.  Because the
cost of plane tickets in Havana could be paid for by pesos

for approximately 1/5 of a cost of n ticket in the United stateg !
he purchased 2 round trip ticket for RUBY a2t his own expexse and’

. mailed it to. RUBY in Dallas, after which RUBY boarded a plana and

" flew to Havana for a visit. A . .

Ny

.  He arranged for RUBY to stay in a small hotel ahon.
three blocks from the Kacional Hotel, name unrecalled. R!.'BY,
during his stay in Bavana, would come out to the Tropicana
where MC WILLIE was working from nine P.M. to two A.)M., and

- wait for MC WILLIE to get off duty, after which they would have
a fow drinks togethex. 'He does not know of any contacts made
by RU3Y, if any, and believes that RUBY was sightseeing as -
a2ny o\.he:; tourist during his Cuban stay. . -

: With regaxd to the relationsh:lp between CASTRO .
supporters and the Havana gambling community, MC VILLIE .
advised that as soon as CASTRO came into power, all Amaricans
had to leave and that as far as he krows, prior to this time,
there was no understanding between representatives of the
ganbling ,industry and CASTRO's supporters. He recalled
that as soon as CASTRO.took over, the hired help, such as the
waiters, rebelled against casino management and Amerxrican .
ownership was forced out of the gambling business. Prior to

6/8/64 ot Las VYepas, )sn_mm._______ Filo § _ LY 44.48

SA WILLIAX T. MC FAUL

SA LEO A, STEVENS:LAS/bmr “gd 6/3/64
. P Dote dictotod

by

Thie & walthor nor conclusions of the FRI, It ts thy propeciy of the FH1 ond ls Joonsd to
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_that time there had been only speculation ms to the fate of

gambling interests should a chapge in Govermment come
about but NMC WILLIE khew of no arrangements oxr liaison
between the gambling interests and CASTRO.

_}IC WILLIE characterizes RUBY as being completely’

'npolitica.l and to his knowledge has no connections with

the CASTRO or BATISTA supporters. He never heard RURY
mention politics or any political connections except cn one
occasion in Dzllas. HC WILLIE indicated an acquaintance

with Conzresscan BRUCE ALGER, either a Repxesentative -or -
Seaator from Texas, whose: vire vas a patron of RUBY's nigkht
club. This zcguaintance was nore socirl and personal than .
political, Otber than ALGER, MHC WILLIE knows RUBY to be

- wall zeguainted with wvirtually every offlcer of the Dallas

Police Zorce und had an arrangemont whereby off duty policemen)
wexre hired rt RUBY's exponse to maintain order in his night :

club. Nexe agaln HC WILLXE aid not feal that RUBY's
acquaintance with police officexs stemned from politicnl
intexest but rather that RUBY had a genuine liking for law
onforcenent officers. MHe also noted that RUBY is not a
pacbler and does not know the gambling business, furthex -
indicating to him' that RUBY had no motive in visiting Cuba
other than Xor & week of rest amnd relaxation.

Regarding prisoners of war, ue WILL"R stated
that he had not been imprisoned noxr were 2ny of his

‘friecds; however, he had keard that HARVEY HARR, who

hnd worized at the Nzclonal Casino had been 1nnr:lsoned

for a year afteor CASTRO took contxrol. He has since

seen BARR in Las Veges but does not know his present
vhareabouts. He stated HARR was arrested aftex he,

EC WILLXE, left Eavana, HC WILLIR recalled that diplomatic
rolations between Cuba and the United States wera abrogated
on January 3, 1951, tho Qay afier XC WILLIE left Cuba and
that EARR had rexmained in Cudba after MC WALLYS's depaxtuxe.
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‘He ddes not knov way HABR was arrested but erpre=sed ths. .
belief that al) Awmericans who had not heeded a Warning
to leave Havaua faced arxrest, To his knovledge, HARR
and RUBY zxe mot acquainted, XL WILLIE stated that he
personally left Havana fo‘avolid arrest. He recalled a
Ceptain HOREAN whor he had known cazually who had been ..
with QASTED in the mounfdains and wvhom he later under-
stond had been arrested by CASTRD and put betore a firing
sguad bs~an3e he was nst Completely sympathetic with . .
CAS",O'S cause, Ee stated he does not know a REOBERT

YL ZEDEN,

) HC WILLIE deniea that he bad had apy contact
with anyoner concexrninz sale of jeeps or guns or the
smuggiing of refugees out of Cuba or release of any of
CASTRG's p.':i'so‘ners. He ‘stated that likewise to his °
knovledge’ RJB’I had taken no action in behalf of such
erigoners.” He did recall’'that RYBY kept a souple of -
o:].d uns at’ hid residence,’ although he was not a gun
cdl.ler stoxr, " These were 2ept for his personal ‘use as
rzotection against intruders and not for any active
aggrasalve'use-to the best ‘©f his Xnowleldge, Ne feels
cexrtzin that RUBY had 65 cbntact with any -one ‘interested
in tke male of weapons or-Jeeps under any circunmstances,

ith furthexr regard to the aixr line ticket

purshaged” by MC WELLIE} he stated that as best be can
recall, thz peso evaluation of this ticket was about
573,.%6, and- that-he had personally absorbed thbe cost.
}Ee"e:ould not ‘ba certain”whether RUBY repaid him for
thiz ticket '2fter RUBY reazhed Havana, . agaln explzaining
that he purchased the ticikef at Havapa snd mailed it
to RUBY at 1/8 of what it would coat RUBY to buy a
conparable ticket in Da].las. "He does not recall standing
any othex ’ ezibenses fox BUBY in connegtion with the trip

nd wa< unable to state whethdy. RUBY had repaid hin for
thp cost o2 'the ticket ox not. e

K}
St .‘_.,\‘\‘,' .
~r . . - M
P AT

35-379 O - 79 - 11



158

LY 44-43
4

XEC WIILIE did not see or hear from RUBY after
}IC WILLIE Treturmned to the United States except that-in
June, 1951, -MC WILLIS, then in Floxida, obtained employment
at lLake Taboe, Nevad.a., and er xoute Zrom Miami to Lake
Tahoe stopped in Dallas where he stayed over night in RUBY's
apartment., He saw RUBY only for about two or three hours
on this occasiqm, during which time RUBY did not express any
interest in politics or any othexr,item of sigoificance,
concexrsation centoring around thelr pexrsonal lives and RUBY'S -
night club oparat:l.on as separated :troxn any politicnl matters,
COncerning more recent contacts, ¥C WIL..IE stated

he czunnot be certain whethexr he wrots or called RULBY from
Las Vegas to Dallas, Texas, regquesting RUSY to obtain.a
pistol. He Stated he krew RUBY could obtain 2 weapon in
Dallzas, ‘probably morae roasodably. thar KC WILLIE could procure
one in’Las Vegas and that he had asked RUBY to send a weapon
to him. ¥He 'knows RUBY caused a weapon to be sent to-him -
~S he was ‘hotuied of a parcel at the post office but that he -

.14 not want to’'go to the post office and pick it up and
let it refurn ‘to the dealer without evexr seeing the weapon
or tsking 1t oyt ot tha pos*' of:tice. .

o He also believes RUBY called him at the Thundexbixd
Fotel-Czsino where MNC WILLIE is employed regarding some union
troubie RYBY was having in Dallas and requesting )C WILLIE
put  him in touck with someon® who could help hinm-in this -
natter. EHC WILLIE contacted BILL HILLER who formexly operated
the Riverside Eotel at-Reno, Nevada, and beliaves he may have
czlled RU3Y back from-his, MHC WILLIE's, residence adv:.sing

RUSY to contact MILLER, He believes ELBY later cnllad L.
Bie backl npt rec..ll:mg whetber at the hotel. or his residence,
'xf’vising luc WILLIE that he' was goix:g to New Yozl to meet . ~
vith.tho AGVA (American ‘Guila: ol ‘Variety. }.rtists) president,
ie believes ‘that KOBY later sent him a‘post card; Lrom New ,
Yoxk' stating.that he had met’ phs AGVA president and had
ironed o-.xt all hj.s t:rcmbleis e KT
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LV 44~48 .
5

.

. He stated he does not recall ever calling RUBY
fror the Thunderbird Hotel because of the complications.
of billing his personal calls through the hotel switck-
 board and that he definitely dié not call from any of tha
Thunderbird pay stations. He stated that when he called
RUBY, the call was on his residence phone and that he can
: recall no phone calls other than those mentioned above.

. He stated he has had no contact w:lth RUBY since
the assassination of President KENNEDY and could not have
anticipated RUBY's killing of.OSWALD. He stated he had had .
no contact with RUBY's attorneys but that a reporter thad = -~
called him from Dallas regarding the sale of arms and
Jeeps to CASTRO's interesis. He stated that took place
during the RUBY trial-and that while he did not relish the
thought of talking to a reporter, he very truthfully replied
to this inquiry that he did pot know weat the reporter was
tulking abont. - ) =

In summation, Mc WILLIE stated that his associa.tion
with RUBY was strictly social ard personal without any

intertwined business interests or gambling interests, knowing

that RUBY is not a gambler and does not understand the
gambling business. He did not know of any political

interests or activities on RUBY's part nor of any particular

affinity RUBY might have for Xormer President KENNEDY, He
stated he can only assumé in retrospect from his knowledge .
of RUBY's personality that RUBY felt he would become a
national hero by exteminatins President XENNEDY's assassin.

(\/ /\) I} t:':l__‘/

-
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Mr. Purpy. Mr. Chairman, I have no further questions at this
time.

Mr. PreverR. The Chair recognizes Mr. Stokes to question the
witness for such times as he may consume.

o Chairman Stokes. Mr. McWillie, when did you first move to
uba?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Sir?

Chairman Stokes. When did you first move to Cuba?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I believe it was September 1968, I believe.

Chairman Stokes. How long was it before you obtained employ-
ment in Cuba?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I had employment when I went to Cuba.

Chairman Stokes. And where were you employed in Cuba?

Mr. McWiLLIE. The Tropicana Night Club.

Chairman StokEs. In what capacity?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Casino manager.

Chairman Stokes. And who had arranged your employment
when you went there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. A fellow that I had met in Dallas. I don’t remem-
ber exactly how I met him. He asked me about if I had been in the
gambling business and I said yes, and he said, well, maybe I can
get you something in Havana.

Can you hear me, sir?

Chairman StTokEes. Yes; I can.

Mr. McWILLIE. So, a week later I did hear from him and he had
asked me if I would like to manage the Tropicana. He thought he
could get me a job there. I went over there and had a conference
with the owners there and agreed to come back a week later, and
then I went back to Dallas and returned to Havana.

Chairman StokEs. Who were the owners that you had the confer-
ence with? '

Mr. McWiLLIE. Owners of the Tropicana?

Chairman SToKEs. Yes, sir.

Mr. McWiLLIE. There was a fellow named Martin Fox, Pedro
Fox, Oscar Cheminder. That’s all, the only ones I know. They are
all Cubans.

_ Chairman StokEes. Were there any so-called silent partners?

Mr. McWILLIE. Silent partners?

Chairman StokEs. Yes, sir.

Mr. McWIiLLIE. [ wouldn’t think so.

Chairman Stokes. How many other major casinos were in Cuba
at that time?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Let me see, I'd say six, maybe.

Chairman Stokes. Can you tell us the names of those casinos?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, the Riviera, the Capri, National, the Hilton.
There was one down in old Havana. I don’t really recall the name
of it, but I do know the man’s name who ran it, it was Batista. He
wasn’t any kin to——

Chairman Stokgs. To the President?

Mr. McWiLLIE. To the President.

Chairman StokEes. To others you just named for us, can you tell
us who the owners were of those?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I have no idea, sir, who they all are.
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Chairman STOKESs. Just the one you are aware of, besides Tropi-
cana.

Mr. McWiLLIE. Sir?

Chairman StokEes. Besides the Tropicana, you are just aware——

Mr. McWiLLIE. That’s the only one I was aware of.

Chairman SToKEs. Are you aware of any individuals who might
have had ownership interest in more than one casino?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir, no way I would know that.

Chairman Stokes. Did you know whether or not Santos Traffi-
cante had an interest in any casino there?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir, I didn'’t.

Chairman Stokes. Did Jack Ruby know the Fox brothers that
you just mentioned?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Did he know what, sir?

Chairman Stokgs. Did he know the Fox brothers?

Mr. McWiLLik. I think I introduced Jack to them when he came
out to the place while he was there.

Chairman Stokes. But he didn’t know them prior to your intro-
ducing them?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman STokks. I see. At some time, did you change jobs and
move to the Capri Casino?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Yes; I did. I managed the Tropicana some time
and then the government took it over and I was sent up there by
Marfin who said you can get a job up there; go up there.

Chairman Stokes. Who is Martin?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He owned the Tropicana, Martin Fox.

Chairman Stokes. Then he sent you to the Capri; is that right?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Right.

Chairman Stokes. When was this?

Mr. McWiLLie. Either early 1960’s or the late 1950’s; I don’t
know which. I don’t recall.

Chairman Stokes. Can you tell us who owned the Capri?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No; I didn’t know.

Chairman STokES. Do you know whether or not Santos Traffi-
cante had an interest in the Capri?

Mr. McWiLLIE. If he did, I never did see him in there.

Chairman StokEes. If I said to you that the FBI files which this
committee has gotten hold of in the case indicates that Santos
Trafficante had substantial interest in the Capri, would your
answer still be the same?

Mr. McWiLLiE. That he had a substantial interest in the Capri?

Chairman SToOKES. Yes, sir.

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I don’t know about that, sir.

Chairman StokEes. You know nothing about it?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir. There would be no way I would know who
owned the place.

Chairman StokEis. During the time you were in Cuba, can you
tell us what was the relationship between the casino operators and
the Cuban Government?

Mr. McWiLLIE. None that I know of sir.

Chairman Stokks. Were there contacts between the casino
owners and the government officials?
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Mr. McWIiLLIE. Not that I know of, sir. There would be no way I
would know that. All I did was manage the casino; they didn’t
discuss their private business with me.

Chairman Stokgs. Well, prior to Castro coming into power, are
you aware of whether or not casino operators had to make payoffs
to individuals in the government in order to remain in business?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. No, sir, I don’t.

Chairman Stokes. In 1959, did individuals who had casino inter-
ests take special precautions to avoid confiscation of their assets by
the government?

Mr. McWILLIE. Not that I know of.

Chairman StokEes. Well, isn’t it true that you made trips to
Miami?

Mr. McWiLLIE. To take money for Fox——

Chairman Stokgs. From Cuba to deposit money?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, sir.

Chairman StokEes. Explain that to us, tell us what you were
doing.

Mr. McWiLLik. They would ask me to, if I would go to Miami and
deposit some money for them, and I would do it.

Chairman StokEs. By what you were doing, you were sort of
running for them, is that right?

Mr. McWILLIE. Well, I was a casino manager, and if they wanted
me to do that for them, I did it.

Chairman Stokes. The effect of what they were doing is they
were getting their money out of Cuba into banks or deposit boxes
here in the States, is that right?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, the money I took over there was—I took it
to a teller and she put it in their account.

Chairman StokEs. In the bank?

Mr. McWILLIE. In the bank; yes, sir.

Chairman Stokes. Was this for the Fox brothers?

Mr. McWiLLE. This was both the Fox brothers and Cheminder,
too. Cheminder was one of the partners.

Chairman Stokes. Did you do it for anyone else?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman Stokes. How about when you moved to the Capri, did
you do it for anybody there?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir.

Chairman Stokes. Following the takeover by Castro, did a point
come when some of the Americans living there were put in prison
or otherwise detained?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I think so; yes.

Chairman Stokgs. Can you recall about when this was?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Why, you say?

Chairman StokEs. No; can you recall when this occurred?

Mr. McWiLLIE. When this occurred? Either the latter part of
1959 or the early part of 1960; I'm not sure.

Chairman Stokes. Were all Americans who had gambling inter-
ests there detained?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir.

Chairman StokEs. Do you know why some were detained and
some were not?

Mr. McWILLIE. I never did know; no.
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Chairman Stokes. And do you know where they were detained?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Yes; they were detained in two prisons, Principal
and another one. I don’t know the name of that one. That’s the one
they were detained in.

Chairman Stokes. Would that be Trescornia, a place called Tres-
cornia?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I think that’s the name of it; yes.

Chairman Stokes. Can you tell us the names of some of the
people whom you know were detained?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I didn’t understand you.

Chairman STOKES. Are you having difficulty hearing me?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, sir; it is alright, I can hear you.

Chairman STokEs. Can you hear me now?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes.

Chairman Stokes. Can you give us the names of some of the
people who were detained?

Mr. McWILLIE. In this prison?

Chairman STokES. Yes, sir.

Mr. McWiLLie. Well, Trafficante was in there, Jake Lansky, Dino
Cellini, and a fellow named Guiseppe who worked in the Capri, had
worked in there, and I don’t recall anyone else.

Chairman Stokes. Was anyone from the Tropicana detained in
there?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Was anyone besides Tropicana?

Chairman STokEs. No; anyone from the Tropicana?

Mr. McWILLIE. From the Tropicana; no.

Chairman Stokes. How about the Fox brothers, were they de-
tained?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman Stokes. Can you tell us why they were not detained?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I really couldn'’t tell you, sir. I don’t know. I guess
because they were Cubans, I don’t know.

Chairman Stokes. Did you ever have occasion to visit Trescor-
nia?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I went out there to see a fellow named Guiseppe.
He had been a dealer around the Capri and he was a fanatic
gambler, gambled his money away. He had a wife and a little kid.
- We used to give his wife, take up a collection and give his wife
money so they could live. I did go out to see him once or twice.

Chairman Stokes. What was his full name?

Mr. McWILLIE. I really don’t remember it, sir. Guiseppe De some-
thing. I don’t recall what it was. Guiseppe De George.

Chairman StokEs. I am sorry.

Mr. McWILLIE. Guiseppe De George.

Chairman StokEs. De George.

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes, sir.

Chairman StokEs. Do you recall how many times you went out
there? I think you just said once or twice——

Mr. McWiLLIE. I would say about twice.

hCh%irman Stokes. Do you recall the first time that you went
there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, I don’t recall the date; no.

Chairman STokEs. Can you approximate the date for us?
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Mr. McWILLIE. I believe it was some time in 1959. I'm not posi-
tive though. Could have been early 1960’s; I'm not sure.

Chairman Stokes. How about the second time you went back to
visit De George?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. It is possible I could have went back to see Dino
the second time, but I’'m not sure.

Chairman Stokes. To see who?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Dino Cellini. He had been the manager of the
Tropicana before Clark was there. And I became friendly with him
and talked to him about casino work and different things. Its
possible that I did go see him; I don’t know.

Chairman StokEks. So that I understand your testimony properly,
it is that you went there twice. You think it was late 1959 or early
1960, possibly. The first time you went to see De George. The
second time you may have gone to see Cellini; is that correct?

Mr. McWILLIE. It 1s possible that I went to see both of them.

Chairman StokEgs. Can you tell us why De George was in Tres-
cornia?

Mr. McWiLLIE. They just picked him up like they did everybody
else. I don’t know why they picked him up.

Chairman Stokes. And what was your reason for going to see
him?

Mr. McWiLLIE. See De George?

Chairman StToKES. Yes.

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Because he had a wife and a child and we had
been giving them money. I had rather, taken up a collection
amongst the help to live on. I went out there to let him know they
were being taken care of.

Chairman Stokes. Was Cellini in there the same time you went
to see De George?

Mr. McWiLLIE. ] think, I'm positive he was.

Chairman Stokes. Do you know what he was in for?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Why he was in there?

Chairman StokEs. Yes, sir.

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman StokEs. How many people were in the same area
where De George and Cellini were?

Mr. McWILLIE. Quite a few people there, Cubans and Americans
that I didn’t know.

Chairman Stokgs. Did they have them all housed together; that
is, did they have the Americans——

Mr. McWILLIE. Well, it was a kind of a, [ would say, a playroom
where they all sat around and read and talked, whatever.

Chairman Stokes. Well, in the room where you visited them?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Yes, sir.

Chairman StTokEs. Can you describe that room for us?

Mr. McWILLIE. As [ recall, it was just a large room, had chairs in
it. It had a yard outside where they could walk around. It wasn'’t
really a prison. They had a wire fence around it. But, I guess it was
pretty well guarded.

Chairman StokkS. In this room where you visited with De
George and Cellini, were other people visiting in the same room
with prisoners?
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Mr. McWiLLIE. I don’t recall, sir, I really don’t know who was
visiting. It could have been—— _

Chairman Stokes. Well, on your first trip, did you see both De
George and Cellini?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. It seems to me like I did; yes. I said hello to
Cellini; yes, sir.

Chairman StokEs. Is it your opinion that both of these men were
imprisoned because of their gambling activities or for some other
reason?

Mr. McWILLIE. I would have to think that they were trying,
going to deport them, myself.

dg)hairman Stokes. And do you know why they were being deport-
ed’

Mr. McWiLLIE. Castro was taking over the casinos. I would think
that is one of his ways of doing things.

Chairman StokEes. And you think it would be in connection with
their gambling activities?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I would think so; yes. Is it all right if I smoke?

Chairman StokEs. Certainly; help yourself.

On your first visit there, can you tell us the names of some of the
other prisoners you recall seeing there?

Mr. McWiLLiE. Well, I recall seeing Trafficante. I recall seeing
Jake Lansky, Dino Cellini, and Guiseppe.

Ch%irman StokEes. And did you have occasion to talk with any of
them?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I did talk to Cellini. I think Jake Lansky might
have been there. I didn’t talk to anyone—and De George—I didn’t
talk to Trafficante because I didn’t know him that well, just to
speak to him. ‘

Chairman Stoxkes. But you did talk, you think, with Jake Lansky
on that occasion?

Mr. McWILLIE. Just asked how he was, when he was going to get
freed, and different things like that.

Cha‘l?irman Stokes. You say you did not talk with Mr. Traffi-
cante?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir.

Chairman StokEs. Did you know Mr. Trafficante?

Mr. McWILLIE. Just to see him.

Chairman Stokes. And how often would you have seen him?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Oh, maybe every once in a while. It might be a
month or so if I would see him. When I'd see him, I would say hello
to him, and he would say hello to me.

Chairman Stokes. On your second visit out there, besides the two
men that you have named, whom did you see on your second visit?

Mr. McWiLLIE. The same ones were in there.

Chairman Stokes. And can you tell us on that occasion how
many of them you talked with?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Just Guiseppe. I could have talked to Dino again
just to say hello and pass the time of day.

Chairman Stokes. Did you speak to Lansky?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Yes, he’s always with Dino. They were together.

Chairman Stokes. Do you recall speaking with Mr. Trafficante
on that occasion?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I didn’t know Mr. Trafficante that well.
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Chairman Stokes. Have hou ever spoken to Mr. Trafficante?

Mr. McWILLIE. Just to say hello.

Chairman Stokes. Do you recall when that was?

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir.

Chairman StokEes. Do you recall when that was?

Mr. McWiLLiE. No, I don’t I'd see him numerous times around
Havana.

Chairman StokEes. Do you recall whether you said hello to him in
the prison on either one of those occasions?

hMr. McWILLIE. I probably said hello to him the second time I was
there.

Chairman Stokes. Did you do anything else, shake hands with
him or anything like that?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman Stokgs. Probably just said hello.

Mr. McWiLLIE. That’s all.

Chairman Stokes. Mr. Chairman, at this time I ask that JFK
exhibit F-436, which is a rough sketch of the layout of Trescornia,
obtaiged during a committee trip to Cuba, be entered into the
record.

Mr. Prever. Without objection, JFK exhibit F-436 is entered into
the record.

[The above referred to JFK exhibit F-436 follows:]
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JFK ExHisrr F-436

Chairman Stokes. Was someone in that prison by the name of
Charles Tourine?
Mr. McWiLLIE. Who?
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Chairman StokEgs. Charles Tourine?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No; I don’t know.

Chairman StokEes. You don’t know anybody by that name? How
about Charles Del Monico?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Del Monico?

Chairman StokEs. Del Monico?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No.

Chairman StokEs. Lucian Rivard?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Not that I know of.

Chairman StokEes. Jake Lansky was there; right?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Jake Lansky was there; right.

Chairman Stokes. How about Henry Savaadra?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No.

Chairman StokEes. And Cellini was there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Cellini was there, yes, Eddie Cellini—I mean
Dino.

Chairman StokEs. Now, on your two visits there, on either one of
those visits, did either De George or Cellini or anyone else ask you
to do anything for them outside of the prison?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman Stokgs. Who went out to the prison with you?

Mr. McWILLIE. Who what, sir?

Chairman Stokes. Who went out there with you to the prison?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Jack Ruby could have been out there one time
with me. I don’t think he was. I went out there, I think, by myself.

Chairman StokEgs. Well, you said to us, you just said to us he
could have gone out there with me.

Mr. McWILLIE. I don’t know if he was there at that time or not.
If he was, I could have taken him out there with me, yes. I'm not
positive about it.

Chairman StokEes. Let’s talk about Mr. Ruby a little bit. When
was Mr. Ruby there?

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir?

Chairman Stokes. When did Mr.Ruby come to Cuba?

. Mr. McWIiLLIE. I don’t know; it was August or September; I don’t
now.

Chairman Stokgs. Of what year?

Mr. McWILLIE. 1959.

Chairman StokEes. And tell us why he came to Cuba?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, he came over there—I tried to get Mr. Ruby

“to bring a columnist from Dallas over there in 1958, and so he
didn’t bring him, he couldn’t bring him or something. I don’t know
what it was. In 1959, I called him again. I believe I called him or
wrote him and asked him if he could possibly bring Tony Zoppi in.
He said yeah, I will get him and bring him over here. I explained
to him that his hotel bill and plane fare would be taken care of. In
fact, I sent him two tickets; I am almost positive it was two tickets.
When he came over there, he was by himself. He said, Tony
couldn’t come. I think he just more or less came over there to take
a vacation. Course, I never heard from Tony again.

Chairman StokEes. So that we understand it, Jack Ruby came to
Cuba at your invitation?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Yes, he did.
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C})hairman Stokes. And you are the one who sent him the tick-
ets?

Mr. McWiLLIE. But he was supposed to bring Tony Zoppi, ex-
columnist.

Chairman StokEes. But instead of bringing Zoppi——

Mr. McWiLLIE. He came by himself; yes, sir.

Chairman StokEes. In order to try and get a better idea of when
Ruby was there, what is your best recollection as to whether it was
August or whether it was September or whether he came in
August and left in September?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He was just there a week, 6 days, maybe.

Chairman Stokes. I am sorry.

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir?

Chairman Stokes. I didn’t hear you?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He was there 6 days. I don't recall the exact date
when he was there.

Chairman StokEes. Can you recall any holidays around that time?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, no, I can'’t.

Chairman Stokes. Now, would it help refresh your recollection if
we said to you that there are people who saw Ruby in Havana on
September 5, September 6 and September 7? Would that help
refresh your recollection.

Mr. McWiLLie. That would be the time he was there then, if
people saw him there.

Chairman StokEes. Now, Mr. Chairman, I would ask at this point
that the following exhibits be entered into the record: JFK F-575,
which is a segment of a letter written by Tony Zoppi; F-576, which
is a committee interview with Mr. Zoppi; F-577, which is an FBI
report of an interview with Jack Ruby; F-578, F-579, and F-580,
which are statements of persons who saw Jack Ruby in Havana,
Cuba; and finally F-582, which is an FBI report that further sug-
gests that Ruby went to Cuba.

Mr. Prever. Without objection, JFK exhibits F-575 through
F-580, and F-582 are entered into the record at this point.

[The above referred to JFK exhibits F-575 through F-580 and
F-582 follow:]
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JFK ExHiBir F-576

. = M /", 574 —- KENNEDY
ssm:c'r commrrm-:s ON ASSASSINATIONS )

Name _Tony zZoppi " Date 3/31/78 Time z.lgnpd

Adéress Place goppi's office at the - »
Riviera Hotel s
Las Vegas, Nevada

Interview:

< 1450'SY
He stated that Dallas was a fairly clean c1tynwhlc had no
syndicated or organized crime that he was aware of. Zoppi said
the Dallas Citizens Charter Group (whose head was "Uncle Bob
Thornton”, a banker) was a leading civic group in 1950 -~ 1963
and was pretty good about keeping the city clean. He had heard
the syndicate might have attempted to move into Dallas in the 1950°
from Chicago but was sent back. Upon questioning, he said
it could have been in the late 1940s when attempts were made to
bribe Sheriff Guthrie. He thought Ruby moved to Dallas because
he had a sister operating a club there. Zoppi described Eva as a
"tough gutsy yenta", and the club as never doing very well but
staying above water.

Jack Ruby was aggressive, always trying to improve himself.

Joe Bonds was Ruby's first partner in the Sky Club. Bonds

was subsequently arrested for sodomy, jumped bail and left. The
club went downhill after Bond's arrest. Ruby he recalls, moved to
the Bob Wills ranch house in approximately 1952.

Prior to 1950, the Sopango (possibly Cipango) Club operated as a
club for millionaires only and did have gambling. Gambling at the
Top of the Hill Club stopped in the late 1940s. He said there was
very little gambling in Dallas into the 1950s and that which
existed was locally organized, not national. He doesn't know
Harry Urban.

Zoppi knew McWillie, but not well.

It was Zoppi's impression that there was little gambling in
Dallas itself. It was more prevalent in the greater Dallas/
Fort Worth area. There was extensive football betting which

operated very discretely. Each bookie had perhaps 10 customers
and was not part of a large organization.

Interviewer .»lgnatu'e d’g/ tb /){ g&!&g ﬂ

Typad Signature J. L Wolf ?L\Aq -

Date transcribed 4/18/78

Caryl Emanuel

By:

Form #4-;



170
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Zoppi knew Ben Whitaker ran a gambling operation when Dallas
was wide open in the 1940s. He knew Ray Ryan, (now deceased)
and that he took millions from H. L. Hunt in gambling dealings.

Zoppi doesn't know and never heard of Harry Hall (Haler or
Sinclair).

Zoppi knows Babe Baron who is also currently working for the
Riviera in an informal, largely cerimonial role. Baron's first
name is Charles. He is a general in the Army Reserves and a
close friend of General Curtis LeMay. (We subsequently learned
that Baron was visiting LeMay the following week).

Regarding gambling clubs in Dallas, he stated they were the only
places you could go for mixed drinks. A curfew was in effect

at midnight. There were no real problems with the police, but
there were sometimes problems with the State Alcoholic Control
Board. Zoppi said his average contacts with Ruby were once

or twice a month, usually when J. R. wanted his club acts plugged
in Zoppi's newspaper column. Sometimes there could be a few in

a week.

Ruby visited Zoppi at 10:30 on the morning of the assassination
with a picture of an ESP expert he wanted Zoppi to plug. Ruby

was gonsidering using the picture in an ad in the newspaper.
Rubyﬁiater said, ks was a "highly emotional person” and Zoppi
believed him to be too calm that morning to have been involved

in a conspiracy. Ruby told him he was moving into a new apartment '
starting Monday that cost $190 a month (up from the $100 that Ruby
had been paying). The new address was 21 Turtle Creek. When
Zoppi questioned about it, Ruby said "I've scrimped all my life
and now I want to live a little.” These were Ruby's last words

to Zoppi. Ruby's financial status was never good. He stated

Ruby always had pieces of clubs, some of which were backed by
Ralph Paul. Zoppi said Ruby was not involved in gambling. He
would be very surprised to hear Jack Ruby ever laid or took a

bet.

Zoppi knows Alice Nichols, Ruby's former girlfriend. He was
surprised to hear she said that Ruby had gambled.

Zoppi hasn't seen McWillie since the 1940s except perhaps once
when he ran into him in the Thunderbird. Zoppi said McWillie h
lived in a very plush home in Dallas. He knew his wife at that
time. His (McWillie's) wife later married Abe Weinstein.

Bob Larkin was a bouncer in one of the clubs. Zoppi said he
never checked with McWillie on his story (1973) about McWillie
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inviting Zoppi and Ruby to Cuba. We found this very surprising,
but he insisted he had never checked with McWillie on the story.

His best recollection was that during September or October

of 1958 Ruby offered to write McWillie at the Tropicana to get
them airplane tickets so Zoppi could review the acts at the
Tropicana to help McWillie's business. The "OK" for the trip
was received in two or three weeks. The date was scheduled

to be approximately December 8 or 9 {(or 10 - 12) and the trip
was to last 4-5 days. Zoppi wanted to be back for the holidays.
They would pay their own way down and be reimbursed: this was
the common practice for journalists reviewing acts. In late
November, Jack Entratter and Al Freeman called inviting Zoppi

to review a big anniversary show at the Sands in Las Vegas.
Zoppi said (as he had written in his article) the show was a
"summit meeting" show featuring Frank Sinatra, Dean Martin,
Sammy Davis, Joey Bishop, and Peter Lawford. 2Zoppi figured
there wouldn't be anything "like this” in Cuba so he decided

to postpone the trip and told Ruby he would meet him down there
after the new year on approximately January 4. Ruby told Zoppi
he would go down, stay down there and meet Zoppi in Cuba. Zoppi
then states he never went down due to Castro's takeover in
January. He vaguely remembers Ruby told him he had a good time
in Cuba. BHe doesn't know if Ruby had been there before or not.
He thinks it's "B.S." that Jack Ruby would have seen Trafficante-
they were simply "...not in the same league." When gquestioned
about the receipt or payment of the plane tickets, Zoppi said

he doesn't recall receiving a ticket and isn't sure if Ruby told
him that McWillie sent them.

Concerning AGVA he stated Vincent Lee ("a real martinet") ran
AGVA in the early 1950's, followed by Dean Jennings (who

lives in the San Francisco area now), followed by Jim Dolan.

He said AGVA was very strong in the 50°'s, but deteriorated
post 1963 since the union treasury was basically being robbed.
Ruby's travels with AGVA led him to go see Tony Pappa of
Associated Booking. Union policy required that clubs use AGVA
members in their acts and put up a deposit to ensure that the
acts would be paid. Tony Pappa currently resides three weeks
in Beverly Hills and one week in Dallas. Ruby also went to see
Joe Glazier, who is Pappa's boss in furtherance of his complaint
against Abe Weinstein. Ruby tried to see Joey Adams (well
connected with Glazier) and Jackie Bright, head of AGVA in

New York, but they wouldn't let Ruby in to see them. AGVA
boycotted acts or clubs who were not affiliated with the union.
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The Weinstein Club, next door to Ruby, was one of the best of

the second rate clubs, and was not unionized, but AGVA did

not challenge it. This drove Ruby Crazy. 2oppi figures Weinstein
was probably paying off the union. Ruby's business was hurting
because of the competition with Weinstein, and he was mad, because
he was still stuck with Jada who would not back out of her
contract.

Zoppi spoke with Gordon McClendon about one month ago. Zoppi
knows him well and likes him. G.M. owned KLIF in Dallas and the
Liberty Networ¥ (J.R. hung around there some). Ruby, he says,
loved McClendon because he "had class.”

A Dallas police officer named Trautman (phoenetic - possibly
Trautham) gave Zoppi a radio speaker that had been in Ruby's
locker. He reportedly walked the beat which included the
Carousel Club. This concluded the first interview.

The second interview with Zoppi was conducted on 4/5/78 at 1:30
P.M. at his office in the Riviera. This was subsequent to the
depositions taken of Lewis McWillie. .

We questioned Zoppi concerning the dates of his proposed trip
with Ruby to Cuba, in light of McWillie's certainty that Ruby
visited in August of 1959. We showed Zoppi the letter McWillie
had given us that Zoppi had written to Matty Brescia in 1976
which had "refreshed" McWillie's recollection that Zoppi had had
a role in Ruby's trip to Cuba. Zoppi authenticated his
signature.

Zoppi said Matty Brescia worked for Gordon McClendon and Liberty
Broadcasting. One evening around 1952 Zoppi, Brescia and Candy
Barr were at the Bob Wills Ranch House Brescia told Jack Ruby
that Tony Zoppi was in the audience, aang;._Eéﬁ% about Zoppi's
first meeting with Ruby causing Ruby to introduce Zoppi to the
crowd. Brescia knew Ruby through McClendon.

We questioned Zoppi further about the timing of the proposed
trip to Cuba and the reasons it never came off as planned.

We pointed out to Zoppi that Castro's takeover did not prevent
travel to Cuba, at least not right away. We asked Zoppi if he
could give us a better idea why he thought the trip was planned
for December of 1958 and not a different year.
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Zoppi called the Sands Hotel to check on their big shows during
the 1958 - 1961 period to see what show he may have reviewed
to cancel his trip to Cuba. He stated it could have been the
December, 1958 show with Rowan and Martin, the December, 1960
show with Marty Allen and Steve Rossi, or the December, 1959
show with Dean Martin. The big show that he thought it was,
with Sinatra, Dean Martin and Sammy Davis did not take place
until January 20 - February 16 of 1960. After reviewing all
the shows, he admitted he was very unsure what the date of the
scheduled trip was to be. 1In fact, it was agreed that perhaps
Ruby had gone down in August, 1959 on a vacation for himself,
and the trip Zoppi and Ruby were to take was to be a second
trip to Cuba that in fact neither one ever went on due to Zoppi's
cancelling out.

Pt-‘h; P )

Zoppi's recollection of the January 4th alternative date! which
he thought was prevented by Castro's takeover, could possibly have
been prevented by the severing of diplomatic’relations between
the U. S. and Cuba on January 1, 1961.

35-373 O - 179 - 12
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JACK L, RUBY was interviewsd in an interviey roonm
located on floor b-—M/o"fhe Lallas County Jail, Dallas, Texas.
His.attorneys, MELVIH/ {BELLI, San Franecisco, Callror'xla-
JOETTONAHILL, Jasper, Texa.S' SAM™BRODY, Los Angeles, Callfornla.,
and UILLIAt"’CElOULOS, San _Franc:.sco Cal:.forn:.a, were present.

The interview commencéd at 1:50 PM and continued until 3:30 PM,
when RUBY went to the rest room. It was.resumsd again at 3:34 PM
and continued untll 5:00 PM.-

JACK L. RUBY was advised by saA C. RAY HALL that he aid
not have to make any statement. He was reminded that his attorney
were prasent, and that any statements he made in answers to,
questions could be used against him in a court of law. =~

JACK L. .RUBY the‘1 furnished the following :Lnfoz'*ratiori'

On the. m.ght of Vednesday, Novenber 20, 1953 ‘he.was at

h:.s club, the Carousel. Club, in Dallas, Texas. He thmks he close

the club a.t about 2:00 AM on November 21, 1963. One of his dancer

called "LITILE LYNN",.drank some champagne before closing, and whe
- she started hore sha got sick and passed out at Nichols Brothers

parking garage near his club. He thinks this occurred after

2:00 AM on November 21, 13963, but it could have been after

2:00 AM on. Hovember 20, 1963. He went over to see about her,

and tried to get.her to go to a hospital, but she refused to go.

He remained with her, trying to take care of her, until 4:00 Al

or 5:00 Al .and thea went home, so far as he can now recall.. After
he got home, he went to-bed and went to sleep. r, ‘s,
L s : .-
At about 10:30 Al or 11:00 AM on Novehber21, 1963, he
received a telephone call -at home from a girl namod/"'\_.ﬁr_‘_l:{‘-'l.b whos
first name may be CONNIE, or. somathing similar. He'met this girl
at the Carousel Club about eight:months- prev:.ously, and since meet
her she has called him on the telephone several times, The
TRAMMELL girl lives in an apartment on either Gaston Avenue oxr =~
Live-Oa2k Street in Dallas. When she called him on November 21,
1963, she told him that she had to get a job and that she had
an appointment with LAMAR HUNT, He asked her how sha-got an
appointment with HUNT, and she told him thet she called HUNT's
hone' and got his number, then just called his office and asked
him for an appoxntne'v. about a job.

. 9H-240/6-G2 |
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TRAMMELL asked RUBY to cone after her and give her a

ride downtown, .so he got dressed picked her up and drove her
downtown. RUBY had an appointment with his attorney but does
not remember. whether it was GRAHAM KOCH or STANLEY KAUFMAN.-
Both. attorneys have offices in the Mercantile Securities
Building,.Dallas, the same-building in which LAMAR HUNT ‘has his

officesi~ TRAMMELL- went--up-to.-see LAMAR--HUNT  and after RUBY
completed his business with his attorney regarding some, tax
matters, he waited around the cigar stand in the lobby for.a
-while .for TRAMMELL to come‘down, but:she’ did not, so he left and
went-to the Carousel Club. When he got -to the club one of his
employeas ne.mod LARRY was there. : e . . -

LARRV was a younv boy whom he had seen at the State

Fair of Texas, and h& gave LARRY a2 job at the Carousel Club,

after the fair closed. He had asked LARRY to build a.crate

so he could ship a dog to & friend of RUBY's, AL GRUBER,..who

. lives on Olympic Stzreat in Los Angeles,. California. .LARRY had.
not built the crate, so he got after him for not having done
what h2 had-asked him 10 do. So far as he remembers, he stayed
around the Carousel Club’ until about 8:;30 PM, when ha and RALPH
PAUL, wha. owns pa’r\. of the Carousel CIub, uert ‘to..the: Egyptian
Lounge for dinner c .

. While they were eating at the Egyntlan Lounge,. a man.
named CONNORS, who.is.a salesman for the Dallas Morning News
newspaper,. cane over to the table and invited RUBY over tc the
Castaway Club located nearby. He declined the invitation because
he did - not want to go to this club as the manager had hired an
orchestra away from RUBY -that -had -played for RUBY for several yaar:

. After-dinner, RUBY returned.to the Carousel Club. During the .
evening of November 21, 1963, he did the breaks between shows,

which were two braaks of twenty riinutes each, and he used a - -

roulette wheel to give away prizes to the aud:.ence. Somztime

during the evening, he ordered someone out of the c¢club because °

he was creating:a disturbance, but he has no idea who "this person

was. He believes he closed the Carousel Club at about 2:00 AM on

November 22, 1963, and'went home. If he went anywhere to eat

before going home, he dozs not remenber it.’ He does not now.

rerember whathar GEORGE.SENATOR, who shares the apartment with

RUBY, was.at home when he arrived there or not, but he went

directly to bed and went to sleep. .

440 (6 7
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On the morning of November 22, 19563, RUBY got up at
about 8:30 AM and does not now recall , whethor G“OR\;E SENATOR was
in the apartment or not. He drove downtown and stopped .at the
Dallas Morning News at about 10:50 AM. He believes he 'stopped .
‘for a moment and talked to two girls employed there, GLADYS CRADIX
and a2 girl named CONMNELLY or CONNEL) He thinks ke gave them a
bottle. of Larson's CRD, a food supnlenenn. for persons.on a diet.
He ihen uent to the office of TONY-ZOPPI, but TONY was not there.
RUBY "looked over a brochure there about BILL’D"‘HA_\, a master of
cerenonies-at. the Carousel Club, Ano her employse of the news-—
papsr, 2. Mr. PAYNZ, may have been in ZOPPI'S office while RUBY
wvas in thera. . -
J'.. -
RUBY left that office and went to Mr. JO‘{L‘”NE’NA_"
offica at the newspsper to- talk about RUBY's ads. RUBY was tryin:
to m2ka a 12:00 noon deadline Mr. CONNORS, the same pexrson RUBY
had seen at the Egyptian Loun'ze the previous evening, came in to
NEUNAM's office, and -they talked for a while. MNEWUNAM came in, anc
RUBY completed his advertisements for his clubs.
At about that time, people began running around, and
RUBY h=ard someona say that somebody had been shot. -First, he
heard that Govsrnor CONNALLY had bean shot, then a Secret '~_'. N
Service Agent, and then someone said that “our beloved President’
has besen shot™". RUBY then called his sister, EVA GRANT, and told
her about the shooting and told her he would be at her house as
soon -as he could. He left the Dallas MHorning News but does not k
‘the time when he left. He drove to the Carousel Club and told hi
employee, ANDV/Kf’ MSTRONG, to get in touch with everybody and tell
then he was closing his clubs. He then called a friend, ALICE
NICHOLS, and she told himthat Neiman-Marcus had closead their
store. - ‘He called Akf RUBER in' Los Angeles from the Carousel Club
and told GRUBER he would send a dog to him soon. RUBY said he
talked to GRUBER about the desath of President KENNEDY but began
crying and finally just told GRUBER he had to break rt: off and
hung up the telephone,

Somebody brought some merchandise to the club, but he
does not remember who it was, and RUBY just told the ran to take
th2 merchandise back.as he did not want apy. He called his sister
several times during the afternoon and was so upset that he was
belligerent toward his erployees, ANDY and LARRY, who wers at
the Carousel Club. He rememders getting a telephone call from
KATHYRAY; he called his business associate, RALDq/PAUL and told
PAUL that he was going to close his clubs; he czalled BRECK“%"ALL
in Galveston, and also JOE PETERSON; and hé called his sister
EILEEY 'in Chicago, locating }«e" at hlo s:.ster HARIAN's house.

Y Y AN~ S



177

DL, 44-18639
L

Sometime late that afternoon, he left the Carousel
Club and went to the Ritz Delicatessen and bought a_loi of food
and then went to the home of his sister in Dallas, - EVA GEANT. He
and his sister talked and while there, his employze, ANDY, called
and told him that DON"SAFRAN, of the Dallas Times Herald, had
called and wanted to get in touch with him. RUBY then called
SAFRAN, who.told RUBY that the Cabana and the Century Room were
going to close-and-he did not know what ABE and BARNEY WEINSTEIH
© were’ going to dd. , RUBY said.he told SAFRAN that he had already
closed, without asking what the other cludb owners wers doing.
SAFRAN then asked RUBY about whether he would be open the next
night, and RUBY.said he did not know but would call him back.
In 2 few minutes RUBY callad SAFRAN back and told him he- was
going to be closed Saturday and Sunday nights, in addition to -
Friday night. . . .o

R . .

-+ At no time did RUBY go to Parkland Hospital omn -
Novembar 22, 1963. At about 7:00 Pif or 8:00 PM, he left his
sister's homez and drove to his apartment to get dressed to go
to Congregation Shearith Israel Synagogue, arriving there at
about 10:00 PM or 10:30 PM. Before he left his apartment, he
called Dr. COLEMAN JACCBSON to determine when the services dbegan
at his Synagoguzs. Following services, refreshments were served,
but he did not feel like visiting with anyone. He stayed there
for a short-time, then drove toward downtown. He passed the Clud
BaliKeai, noticing that it was opan, and then drove by the Gay Life
Club and saw. that it was clossd., He then drove on to Phil's
Deslicatessen and went in and talked to the owner, PHIL MILLER.
He had read.in the newspaper, or heard over the radio, that the
police officers-in the-Homicide Bureau would be working overtime
that night, so he order=d ten sandwiches and decided he would

. take them somzsthing to eat. After he ordered the sandwiches, he
called the Police Department Homicide Bureau and talked to
Detective -SINMS, telling him-he ‘was-getting some ‘sandwiches and
would bring-them-down-for them:  SIMS told-him-they weres-about
through-and -were ‘winding-up things thers-and-did-not-want any--
thing to eat, ' 'After SIMS ‘told him-that;-he -decided -hée-would
take the ‘sandwiches -to-the employees-at KLIF Radio-Station.

‘He 'explained'that'he'haS'known'GORDOhﬁC‘ LEHDON, owner ;
. of the radio-station; for-a numbar-of-years, -and he also knous
“» RUSS KWIGHT, a disk-jockey at the station. The employees at thz

Y-/~ 721
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radio station have been good about giving him free plugs when

he was trying to get started with his clubs, and he just wanted
to do something for them because he knew they would be working
-late. He called GORDON MC LENDOM's home, from Phil's Dalicatessen
in order to get a number at the radio station so he could talk to
the. men on duty there. The daughter gave him a number, and he
told her he was going to take some sandwiches to the radio -
station, but the daughter told him her mother had already sent
some food up there. RUBY called the number he had gotten, but
- it W&s a wrong number

.He picked-up his.sandwichz2s and discovered they had made
only.eight; when he ardered ten. He drank a soft drink, then left
with his sandwiches and drove downtown, driving up Commexce Street
and parking across from the City Hall. He decided to g0 _to the
Police Department to try to locate some newsmen from KLIF in
order to obtain the unlisted phone number for the radio station.
He went to the third floor of the Police Department, wheres the
newsnpen were gathered. As he got off the elevator, a policeman,
who was not known to RUBY, asked him where he was going, -or whom -
he wantad -to see. RUBY told him he was looklng for JOE .DELONG, -
of KLIF, and the oificer let him go on inside.. He looked around
for a while, without seeing anyone from KLIF, and asked somz
unknéwn police officer to have JOE DELONG paged over the loud-
speaker DELONG did not answer the page, but while he was waiting
he -saw Capta:m FRITZ, of the Police Department, come out of- his
office with a person, OSWALD. RUBY heard a reporter tell FRITZ
that this was not a good plahe, so FRITZ went back inside his .
office with OSWALD. I¥n a minute, RUBY heard some newsmen say
something about the baserment, so he went down there to an
- assembly room where some newsmen were. .

When he-saw OSWALD here, this was the first time that
he had ever seen him. He had never heard the name of LEE HARVEY
OSVALD. before OSWALD’s arrest' on' November: 22, 1363, by the Dallas
Police Department, Any rumors that OSWALD was ever at any of-
RUBY's clubs - ave: wrong because- RUBY had never seen LEE HARVEY. _
OSWALD at any place before he saw him with Captain FRITZ at the
Dallas Police Dspartment the night of November 22, 1963. Any
rumors that OSWALD was at the Caroussl Clud are absolu‘tnly untrue
RUBY has since heard reports that his master of ceremonies at the
Carousel Club, BILL DEMAR; has reported that OSWALD was at the
Carousel Club one night before President KINNEDY was assassinated

L tr-2y0re-9a1 -
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RUBY said that this is absolutely false, because-0SWALD was never
thera. RUBY has heaxrd that ED SULLIVAN got in touch.with BILL
DEMAR and wanted DEMAR on SULLIVAN's television.program, but
SULLIVAN did not believe DEMAR's story and would not use him.

- RUBY. further advised that.newspaper reports that RUBY. and 0SWALD
were seen together-in -Waco, Texas, are complete falsehoods becaus:
he was never with OSWALD anywhere. Reports that O0SWALD was going
to RUBY's apartment after President XENNEDY’s death are abso=
lutely false, because OSWALD did not know RUBY, ‘RUBY has never
-had’zny previous. connection with OSWALD, and 03WALD could. not
have .bzen going:to RUBY's apartment. RUBY said that his employee.
ANDY . ARMSTRONG, knows more about RUBY's club and RUBY's morals
than anyone.else, 2nd ANDY can tell anyone that OSWALD. was never
._1n the Carousel Club,

When PUBV got to the assen‘bly room, hé went to ‘the
back of the room and stood on top of a table, so he could see-
and bz out of the way. In a few mi nutes; HENRY WADE, the Districi

+ttornay, and Captain FRITZ came into the assembly room with
-0SWALD for an interview with the press. OSWALD mumbled or talked
a2-little, but the newsmzn could not hear him. RUBY did not hear
05WALD either. After a short time, Captain FRITZ took OSWALD
away. HENRY WADE wes then interviewed by the newsmen.

RUBY said that he had his.revolver.in his r:.ght- front
trousar.. pocket all during this evening,.November.22 and 23,
1963, except when he went to church serv:.ces. He left the
revolver in his car while he was in church but put it back-in
his right trouser: pocket when he got back to his car. He said.
he carried:his g\.n because he had.a lot.of:money-on-his person
and always carried-his gun when he carried money. ..

After the interview with WADE, RUBY left the assembly
room and was out in the corridor. -A newsman came by whom RUBY
did not know, -and RUBY asked h:.n if he had seen JOE DELONG, of
KLIF., This man said he had not sean DELONG, and RUBY mentioneq *
that he- had some sandwichas for KLIF. This man said he was from
XBOX radio and asked RUBY what was the matter with them. - RUBY
said he told the man that next time maybe, but this Time he had
+he sandwiches for KLIF. This man. from KBOX then gave RUBY the
unlisted phone number for KLIF. RUBY went around behind the
counter in thez basement offices of the Police Departimznt and
telephoned KLIF, talking to an employee named KEN. He told KEN
he had some s:.ndm.ches but could not get in the entrance door
to the radio station. At about that time, HENRY WADE walked
by, and RUBY was still talking to KEN so he asked KEM if he
\'*r‘ted to talk to HEMRY WADE., KEE said he d:.d, so RUBY -called

1 -avorc~ 24



180

DL 44-1639
7

to HENRY WADE and told WADZ he was wanted on the telephone.
WADE talked on the phone to KEM, then handed the phone back to
RUBY. RUBY talked to KEN aga:.n, and KEN told him.it was gresat
of RUBY to lelp him get the interview with WADE.

RUBY 'said he then left the Police Department building,
went to his car and drove over to Radio Station KLIF. He got
the. sandwiches out of his car to take them upstairs, but the
.front Qoor ‘was locked. In about ten or fifteen minutes, RUSS
KNIGET came by and let him inside. They all went upstairs,
and the.employe=es on- duty ate the sandwiches. RUBY left Radio
Station XLIE at about.3:00. Alf on-November 23, 1963, and drove to
the.Dallas Times Herald newspaper building: He went inside and
“talked.to an-employse named PAT GADOSH and gave PAT a twist
-board, an‘'exerciser GADOSH is the person at the newspaper who
takes RUBY’s ads fo*' his clubs.

/h st

. He. Lalked with GADOSH~= out “the advertisement in. the
Dal" as Har-u.ne, Mews, by. BER‘:ARD’I EXSSMAMNy that was crlt:.ca.l of

President KENNEDY GADOS‘I told RU3Y not to worry about the ad,
bacause-the: Dalla.s forning News was suffering enouzh for carrying
such an ad.- RU3Y o'. his ad taken care of and drove toward home.

.. %=¥hile .driving home, RUBY thought of the similapity

tween. the. BERVARD WEISSMAN advertisement.and.a. sign he. had
seen which read, "Impeach EARL WARREN"”, He drove home. and
awakened GEORGE SENATOR and asked SENATOR to go with him,., He

- ealled the Carousel-Club and awakened his employee, LARRY, and
asked .LARRY. if. he.knew how to operate a Polaroid camera. .LARRY

: said he could operate.ths camz2ra, so he told LARRY he would be

.. down.to pick -up LARRY and the camera. .RUBY.and SENATOR -then
drove to the Carousel Club sometine about %:00 or 5:00 AM on
-November 23,.1963, and-picked up LARRY and-the camera.* They .
‘drove’ to Central Expressway and Ross-Avenue, where-they found
a sign, about 2 feet by 4 feet, on-top of a Potter Steel Company
sign, which read "Impeach EARL-WARREN", and at the bottom of -this
s:.gn' vas-"Box 1757, Beltham, Mass." .

They took some photographs of this sign, and RUBY then

remambared that the BERNARD WEISSIMAN ad had the address ¥Box 1732
Dallas, Texas"; so they drove to the Main Post Office in Dallas
and looked at Post Office Box-1792. RUBY asked a man on duty at

‘the post office for the name of the man who had Post Office Box
1792, but-the man told-him he could not give RUBY the nams of

the box holder., They left and went to the Southland Hotel

I Mavgegy
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Coffee Shop, where RUBY talked for a few minutes with the
owner, a man believed to be named WEBB. RUBY said as a
patriotic “Amarican he was so upset and intense over the sign, .
and-she-addertisemsnt critical of President KE'INED‘,F,.':that “he
could not eat anything but drank soms orange juice at the’
coffee shopi They left the coffee shop and dropped off LARRY
at the Carousel Club at about 6:00 AM. As he got out of the
car, LARRY told RUSY that he supposed RUBY was not going to
bed; ‘and RUBY told -LARRY that he was not going to bed. RUBY
-and SE‘JA.LOR drove on to their apar..ment and went to bed.” .
At about 8:30 Al on Novervber 23, 1963 LARRY phovx°d
RUBY and asked him what kind of dog food he wanted. RUBY said
that before he realized that he had told LARRY he was not going
to bad, he talked real ugly to LARRY. He found out later that .
LARRY lefi-the keys to the Carousel Club next door and left
town without telling RUBY he was leaving or where he was going.
. RUBY got up at about 11:00 or 11:30 AM and got dressed and
drove downtown. He decided to stop and look at all the wresaths
that nad been-placad on the side of the street near where
Prasident KEMNEDY had been shot. He looked at..the wreaths, then
went over to. talk.to Police Officer CHAMNEY, who was on.duty
there, and talked with CHANEY for a few minutes, but choked up
and left because he did not want CHANEY to see him ecrying. He
went on up the streat and met WES WISE, of KRLD television station
"and talked.to WISE for a few minutes. He drove on away and as he
was .leaving he noticed that Captain FRITZ and Ch:.ef of Police
CURRY were walk:mg around the scene of the assassination. He
backed -up and told \:IS:., "Thers goes FRITZ and CURRY". He “then
‘drove-on hone. 4

ol

- Later on-in the afternoor he drove back downtown and
weru .to:Sol's -Turf -Bar and talked with a man named BELLOCHIO,
or something-like that,. who was in the place, and also tal)\ed
to his accountant“ABi‘}‘LEINMAN who was in the place. He
showed thenm photos that he had taken of the sign "Impsach EARL
WARREN",' and they-talked about that, BELLOCHIO was talking
about the bad ‘publicity that.Dallas would get because President
KEMNEDY had-been killed in Dallas a'xd said he would probably
have to-leave town, RUBY reminded him that he had made his
'noney in Dallas 'and should not leave now. BELLOCHIO wanted one -
‘of the photos that ‘RUBY had taken, but RUSY would not -give him
a photo. ‘While in this bar RUBY called his attorney, STANLEY
“KAUTHAY, and ha told STANLEY about ths photos, RUBY was in
Sol's Turf Bar about forty-five minutes, then left sometime
between 3:00 and %:00 PM on the afternoon of liovembar 23, 1963,

a. Y4-2¥0re-5aur
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He does not remember exactly where he went .1.,.0 ¥r wcocee
when he left but may have gone by the Lacy Building to sea his
tailor, but-he then went back to:the.Carcusel Club and then on
home. . His employee ANDY at the Carousel ‘Club.called him about
6:00 PM and wanted to leave, but RUBY told ANDY to stay at the
club to-answer any.incoming telephona calls., He .stayed home
auntil about 11:00 PM, when he went to the Pago Club, He sat
down at a back table and ordered a Coke., BOB NORTOH; the manager,
. came over and .told RUBY that he was going to close t}\e cludb but
had been-told to keep it open. RUBY told NORTON.that was:all
right; he could do whatever he wanted to.do,.but he-had: closed
his clubs,.- ~RUBY left thera.after he finished_his CoXe and drove -
to his Carousel: Clt..b. He stayed around there for a little.while,
then drove hom= because.he was not interested.in any ga:.ety. He
did not go to- the Cabana“Motel and visit a club. th..z'e.

S - PUB" sa:.d that on the mworning of Novembe" 24, 1983, -
he-got a call from one of his dancers called LITTLE LYNN ~who
"has been-a pain to him because of her actlons, and she-said she

* needed some-monay- for ‘her landlord. On Friday night, November 22,
1863, he had to give-her-$5.00 so.she could get home. . He. da.d not
'want her to-come by his apartment to get the money becaus'= her *f

‘husbané would come with her and RUBY did not like ‘her husband. .
He told LYNN ‘he would send her some.money by Western Union to

** Fort UHorth, Texas. He had a lot of money with him that he had

for a denos:.t to pay his excise tax, so he got his revolver and pu
it in his right front trouser pocket. He said he never carried th
" gun in his coat pocket because it would get his_ coat out of shaps=.

=-=- ~ -He said he had no permit to carry a gun and had no ca*d
or badge as any kind of IhZrEdSsemsnrofSEieed: THoweyer, it

a number-of officers of the Dallas Police Department  knew he had a
gun,’ -He recalled that a ‘couple of times the police officers had
taken: him:out ‘of -jail and-given his gun back to him.- He did not
recall-the-names-of these officers, He said that- being-around
clubs-and- carrying money--it was like-a jungle with all the
stickaps-=he" carried: h1s revolver when he had money on- his person.

. He left his apartment, got in his car and started to
town to send the money to LITTLE LYNY.. As he drove out of his
dm.veway, he stopped and talked to a neighbor, name unknown -but -
who is the fa.th°r-1n—1aw of Police Officer BUDDY MUENSTER. RUBY
had.his dog in the car -with him. He drove toward town on the
Thornton Expressway -and turned off onto Industrial Streat, then
up Industrial to Main Street so he could see the wreaths a.. the

Y9-2907¢~gar
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spot where President KENNEDY was assassinated.. As he passed
the. County Building.he noticed.a lot of people around so he
assumed that OSVWALD had already been moved to the County Jail.
He.drove on up Main Street and as he passed the City .Ball he
noticed .2 number of people around there., Just befora he.reached
the next corner, he made an illegal left tura into a parking lot
across the. street from.the Western Union 0ffice and parked his
car there. ‘He-'left his dog in his car. He then walked across .
th2'sirest-and sent a money order for $25.00.to LIT’I'L}: LYN\I at
Fort .Worth. . - -- . - .'-- -- .-

. After send:r.nc the telegran, he left the tlestern Un:.on
office and walked west on the same side of -the. -street, toward
the Police Depar mant building, he noticed .a police officer
standing a2t the entrance to the ramp going into the basement
- from Main Streat,. but.he did not know the police officer. Just
befoxre he. reached that. .point, a police car came out of the
basemant, and he ‘racognized the driver of the police car as
.Lieut.: PXERCE. . He explained he has known Lieut. PIERCE for
twelve. or fourteen years. PIERCE did not look towavd-hm or
speak to him and RUBY did not speak to Lieut. PIERCE. RUBY_
could.not recall. seeing anyone else in the. police car with.
L:.eut. PIEPCE in e*-thov' the front-or back seat of the pol:.ce. car,

. As. the. police car driven by Lieut. PIERCE ‘came.out of
the basement - ramp, the officer on duty at the entrance stepped
.back .and walked.toward.the curb next to.the street, with his
back toward RU3Y.- :‘As the police cer got even with this. officer,
the officer- stooped down and looked .inside the.car. At ‘about
this time, RUBY.had reached the.entrance to the liain Street
. Tamp,- .and. he ‘took in the movem=nt of the police car and the

- officer on duty at the ramp, - -with 2 quick glance. Without
breaking his stride or hesitating, RUBY turned to his-left and
walked down the ramp into the basement. As he entered the
‘ramp, he doeas not-recall-seeing amy person standing "around the
entrance,. and he does not know a former police officer named
DAMIELS.

RUBY sa:Ld he 'is positive he did not have either of
his hands' in any' of his pockets--either coat or trouser pockets—.
when he entered and walked down the ramp. He did not look behlm
him to.see which way the police car went when it entered the
street, and he did not look behind him to see whether anyone
observed him entering the basement, RUBY said he had no k:.nd

o Hravre-ay
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of press cardor any other kind of 1d=r-t1f1catlon on the outs:.de
of his coat, and he exhibited no identification to anyone *to
gain entrance to the basement. -

Just as he .got to-the bottom of the ramp, RUBY said,
YA person who pops-out with two men; that is 211 I can remembers
naturally. I know who he ‘is; “to me; he had this smirky, snug,
vindictive attitude; I.can't explain what impression. he gave me,
but that is all I can---, well, I just lost my senses; the next
I k feww I .was-on the ground and.five or six people were on top of
me" RUBY said that as hé was going down the ramp he spoke to no
one “and no one:spoke +to him. - He did not recognize anyone in ‘the
crowd there, and.he did not stop and-stand behind anyone.
RUBY was asked why he .killed OSWALD, and he said, "I
was in mourning Friday and Saturday. To me, when he shot before
mez like.he .did, som=thing in my insides tore out, and-I just went
blark. . To me, -he reprasented--I1'1ll go back a little bit. I
listened to a eulogy Saturday morning, I am sure, and- I heard
Rabbi SILVERMAN snaak about our President. He said, 'Here-is a
man that.fought in all battles, but he didn't have a chance to
fight heve, he was shot from the rear'. I have been around pecple
. that-are so smuz and hard. Then about:0SWALD- being associated = -
. with Communism,.and how he blemished.this beantiful city; and ¥rs.
- XEUNEDY having to coms back to the trial. I told no one I was
going to kill him. No gne knew I was going to shoot him. X didn'
discuss anything with anyone about.shooting.him:; .No police
officer assistad me ‘in any way, or <id, or said anything to
suggast my shooting O0SWALD. I rememberad MULLINAX, a police
.officer who was killed, -and MULLINAX was a friend of mine. .X did
not know 'J. D; TIPPIT. I knew a TIPPIT on the police department,
but he was in the Special Service Bureau, and he was not the TIPPI
that was killed. I did not know the TIPPIT that was killed.™

RUBY said he-has never had any serious illnesses or
hospitalizations and does not have-z steel plate in his head.
He-volunteered his mother had previously been committed to an
insane. asylum. -He professed to-know of no other history of mantal
111n°s; in his fanlly.

‘RUBY stated- he was born in Chicago in 1911. He spent
feur'or five years in various foster homes in - -Chicago, ‘mantioning
that his father was an alcohollc- He said the father's alcoholic
hadbits ‘contributed tohis mother's mental condition,-along with
her problems in “the change of life". He said hs remained in
Chicago until 1933,

(o F-aypre~ 7aq
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: .= - He sa.u.i that in. 1933 he, one AL7DUNMN, MAURY .(last nama
. not recalled) and.a third person, whose name .he.could not imme—
diately recall, went to Los.Angeles, Callfornla, .where they sold
"Collier's Tip. Sheet", which he described as z handlcapper'
tip sheet. for horse racas. He said their arrival in the Los
Angzles:area coincided, as he recalled, with the opem.ng of the
Santa Anita Race Track. --He.related they remained in the Los_
Angelgs arza for a. few-months only and. during the same year,
19"3, want to the San Francisco area, where he at first engaged
in similar-activities at the Bay Hoadows Race Track. .Subsequently,
- he- sold subscriptions to Hearst newspapers, the San Francisco -
Exa...rxan and San Francisco Call Bulletin, covering San Francisco
and small towns in the general area.

. i &

He sald he remained in San Francisco until 1837 and Ghis

returnad to Chicago and was unemployad for a considerable ‘period. -
In 1241, he rela..ed he, his brother EARL-RUBY, HAR R EPSTEIN, -
l.AR‘I“;\viARGOL (Phonetic) and MARTYNGIMPLE "went on the.road"
S°111..; ounch boavds and small ceda\ches ts in numerous Eastern
and New: E'xgland states. He specifica 11y mentioned the states of
New Yoxk, Connecticut and Pennsylvania. He said he had no fixed
Zddress during this period, that the group lived in var:.ous hotels.

RUBY related that in late 19%)1 he returned to Chicago
and CO'l't’ nueed his business  of selling punch boards, pm.mar:.ly
-through mail orders, * He mentioned an advertisement-was run in
Billboard magazine in this regard. He mentioned that during this
per:md he became very closely associated with _ARTYNJAYNE, a -
musician, . . - -

RUBY stated he remained in Chicago until 1952, He said
his brother SAMUEL was in military service, stationed at- Jefferson
Barracks in the St, Louis arsza. He said he went to St. Louis and
spent a week or two thare, to be near his brother. His brother
EARL, he-related,-was-at the timz-in the U. S. Navy,-stationed -
at Dutch Harbor. He said he sold -punch ‘boards- tmllE"ln .the- -

St. Louis area.' -He said he returned to Chicago in 1942 and-"hung
.a2round homementioning. specifically the area of Division and
“Pamon- Streets. He'said he had_ had difficulties with his previous
partners-in the punch board business. -

In- th= period 1842~1943y he op-ﬂrf_ted out of Globe Au?:o
Glass Cempany, owned by one }IORRI:.\\ LLHAN. He mentionad that his
b“OLhe“ HYMAM had, during this period, been released from military

ervice as b°1n0 "too old", He said t“\a‘c he personally entered
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the military service in 1943 and remainad until 1846.

RUBY said that in 1946, on being discharged from
military duty, he.returned to Chicago and "prospered™ in his
mail order business involving punch boards and miscellaneous
items. He said.his sister EVA had for: sohkez time been wanting
to operate-a:night club-in Dallas and had moved to Dallas from
California. He said he -in the meantime had .had some friction

_with his brothers znd ‘had sold:his interest in their mutual §
business of selling punch-boards and other items to.the brothors.

- He said h=-sent money to his sister EVA for a lease on
. a bu._ldmg in which to open a club, He said he at that time was
:1iving at-the Congrass Hotel, Chicago, having saved some money.
- ‘He said- for-a-brief period he was associated with one PINKIE _
\X;APJJOOD who llved in Dz2troit, in. the. promotion. of “cookware?.

This was. not-a successful venture. I

He said that in 1947 he moved to Dallas to be associated
with EVA in the night club business. He returned to Chicago, how-
ever, in the seame year in a few rmonths in an effort to enter into

- vapious “’xerchand'sxng deals", - Being unsuccessful,;.he returned to-
Dal 1as in 1947 and has lived in Dallas cont:.nuously since. .

RUBY said he ‘went broke in the nlvht club business in
1952 and had' a “mental breakdown": He continued along'‘this line
by saying he was "mentally depressed” and that he "hibernated in
the Cotton Bowl Hotel" for threse or four months, declining-to see
his friends. He said he went back to Chicago briefly and his
brother EARL trJ.ed to help him out fma‘:clally. He returned to
Dallas, however, 'in 1852, :

RUBY said his first ventures in Dallas” were-the Bob A=

7ills Ranch House and Silver Spur. He saxd that UILLINPSTEIN
and MARTY GIMPLE were associated with him 'in the Silver gpur

and it was at the Silver Spur that he went broke. He said-after
his "comeback" he'tried operating the Silver Spur again. -In 1852-
1353 he operated the Ervay Theater, a motion picture house,
briefly. In 1953 he became associated in the-Vegas.. Club' and
"Harnando's Hideaway".

#+ 'In 1956 he sold his interast in the Silver Spur. He
related that in 1959-1960 he persuadad his brother EARL to come
to Dallas and to assist in establishing the Sovereign Club.
EARL did not remain in Dallas, howsver. He said the Sovereign

-
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. Club, established as a private club, became the Carousel, which
continues to operate. . )
RUBY said he has not been associated with.or.operated
any night:clubs except in Dallas, Texas. : :
RUBY stated that he visited a.friend of his.brother in
Windsor, Ontario;- Canada, in.1929-1338 for two or three months.
In 1833, when en route to California on a brief trip, he went
across into Mexico at Juarez. He said this was purely.a. Ytourist®™
trip of short duration. He said he has never been in Mexica -
otherwise and has never been outside the Continental United States
except as indicated above and below. He said.he has never been in
Honolulu, Hawaii. S .
RUBY re&:}ed that in August 1959 he went to Havana,
Cuba, to see L, C. 2MC WILLIE, who was "some sort of-a. good will
™an" for the Tropitana, a gambling establishment. He said NMC WILL
sent him-a plane ticket and he lived at-the:Fosca Apartments with
EC.WILLIE for a pericd of eight to. ten days. He said he- spent all
.0f his time in Havana except to go-to-'a small ‘area on one-oecasion
with “one' of-the'FOX brothers”, who owned the Tropicana, - ‘He said .
his*.trip-to Cuba was completely non-political and that he-has had
no -corraspondence with persons-in Cuba; He said MC WILLIE is now
at the Thunderbird Hotel, Las Vegas, Mevada.

“RUBY ‘stated he has not been.a member-of any political
associations,  clubs or organizations,-. He said his brother HYMAN
was at one time interested in politics in Chicago in a small. way.
He said he may have belonged to Bfnz2i B'rith and-the-"Jewish
Welfare Fund”. He said he has never been a member of ‘the
Communist ‘Party or any "front" organizations, tlat he has had no
membership in, or affiliation with,_or interest in “Fair Play for
Cuba" or any other Cuban organization of any type.

. RUBY volunteerad that some years ago, "at a-time when
CASTRO was popular in the United States", he read of an 3individual
in the vicinity of Houston, Texas,; having bzen engaged in "gun
running to-CASTRO". He said he-attempted by -telephone to get in
touch ‘with-this individual as he had-in mind ."making-a-buck" by
possibly acquiring some Jeeps or other similar equipment-which .
he might sell-to persons interested in their importation to- Cuba.
He said nothing came -of this. He said he had never attended any
meetings concerned with “gun running”, smuggling of persons in
or out of Cuba or-otherwise-in-relation to Cuban-affairs.

. RUBY said he was associeted in about 1937 in Chicago
with the Scrap Iron and Junk Dealers Union but has otherwiss haga

s .. -
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no other direct association u:Lth any um.or'\“"ercept American Guild
of Varlety Artists, the latter in connection with his night club
businesses.

RUBY stated that during the summer of 1953 .he took a

trlp Houston, Texas, en route to Edna, Texas, where he visited
CANDKAPR a former Dallas strip tease figure-who had just been
réleased from the Texas State Penitentiary. He.said he _gave

CANDY a dog-as a .present. He said he went on to New Orleans on
+his same trip, his. purpose- being-to-attempt to engage the ser-
vices .of "JADA", a stripper who had been perform:.ng J.n New
Orleans.

-He said that.in th summer of 1963 he flew via ‘American
- Air Llnes to New York-City, where.he remained for two-or-three
-daxs at:the -new-Hilton Hotel. He said his purpose was to see

: JOE\\,\A\SER 2 booking agn'xt and to see officials of American

T guildTof Varle-.y Artists in order to register complaints relative
to competitors in Dzllas. -"He said he traveleq alone. On this

. trip,.he recalls A.‘-.v:.ns run into "DANTE", a magician, in an , ¢
- automat and- havzng visited.or contacted B&%IE&S former
well-known prr'e fighter whom he had known.in Chicego. He said
on the.return to Dallas he went via Chicago and that members of ™
his family joined him-briefly at O'Hare Field, the Chicago
airport., -RUBY said.hz could recall no other travel outside of
Dallas during 1863.

He mentioned having been in New York, Joplin, Missourij
Tulsa, Oklzhoma, and-Chicago in 1956 when he was attempting to
promote-a-young Negro tap dancer and drummer named .NELSON, also
known as “YLITTLE DADDY" He said this trip lasted several- weeks.

-+ - --He related-that -he was in Hot-Springs, Arkansas, in
1956, as he recalls, hav:ng flown there to attend the races. He.
said he believed he was-in Little Rock during the'same trip .
briefly.. He said he was in Las. Vegas, Nevada, in 1937 and does ¢
recall having bzen there since that time. -

RUBY stated that no police'officers  accompanied him on
the trip to Hot Sprlngs, mentioned above, and that he had never
been outside the City of Dallas with any Dallas law enforcement
offlcers. He said he had never employed any Dallas policeman
in any of h),s clubs,  although he had employsd "Special Officers”.
For the services of the latter, he paid the C:.ty of Dallas, and
the City in turn paid the "SDeClal Officers" in question. He saic

e -Yorg-gal
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he had never given money or other things of value. to officers
of the Dallas Police Department except bottles of whiskey at
‘Christmastime to some. He said he had also had a practice of
admitting - officers to his clubs without cover charge and having
_ given "“special prices" on drinks; for example, he would give
officers beer for 40 cents a bottle, where his usual price was
more. He. said-he had never asked any special favors from any
police personnel.

o -
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SHERWIN JACK mm, Architect, 6238 North Hoyne,
business nddress 140 East Ontario' Chicago, Iilinois, ldvisod QQ
on the Labor Day weekend of 1959, be, JACK MARCUS and JAY. . R
BISHOV visited Havana, Cuba for three or four days while on-
ali‘ior;.:a vacation prior to returning to school in Chicngo. ‘
Illinois,

On the ﬂ.rst or second night in Havana, the three
men bad visited the Tropicana night club in Havana, Cuba and
were stnnding by the roulette wheel or crap table when a
man walked up and introduced himself. BRAUN adised he
thought the man gave bis name as JACKHIBY but was not sure,
BRAUN stated be did not know the man Whé sald be bad originally
been from Chicago, Illinois, but now owned some sort of night
club or gambling establishment in Texas, possibly Dallas, The
man invited the three men to visit bis night club whenever they
got to Texas,

BRAUN atated he believed RUBY was alone but appeared Ll
to know his way around and was familiar with the employees of the
Tropicana. BRAUN stated RUBY did not give him a business card
nor did he know how long RUBY stayed in Cuba nor where he stayed.

BRAUN described the man known as JACK RUBY as a .
white male American, large or heavy bulld, with round or oval
face, had a "Jewish appearance”, and did not have a Texas or
southern accent. BRAUN stated no radical or political type state-
ments were made, nor were any comments made otber than the

. above casual remarks made by RUBY.

s
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. JAY (NMI) BISHOV, Attorney, 8080 North Ridge, ~ ~~
business address 5152 North Clark, Chicago, Illinois, sdvised -
be visited Havana, Cuba for three or four days about the o
first of September, as it was the Labor Day weekend in 1085 5 L

BISHOV stated he was with two cther companions, a JACK MAECU
~ and SHERWIN BRAUN, both of Chicago, Illinois,

BISHEOV stated that the second or third night in .
Havana, Cuba, he, BRAUN and mncws wers standing near a crap .- :
table or roulette wheel at the Tropicana night club when @ S
man approached and introduced himself by a name which BISBOV - -
believed was JACK RUBY. RUBY asked where ths three men
were from and when BISHOV stated he was from the West Sido b%
.Chicago, Illinois, RUBY stated that he was also from that
sectin of Chicago, Illinois, but had moved to Dallas, Texas
some years before. BISHOV stated BUBY did pot specify any-
particular street names or individuals with whonm he bad beeh
acquainted in Chicago, Illinois.

BISHOV stated JACK RUBY extended an invitation
to the three men to visit him at one of his night clubs in
Dallas, Texas. BISEOV stated-be was uhdexr the impression RUBY
owned more than one night club-in Dallas, Texas and indicated
that- these clubs were somewhat:plush, AR -

BISHOV stated RUBY appeared to know his way around
the Tropicana night club, Havana, Cuba and may have been
familiar with some of the employees, BISHOV stated the :
conversation lasted only about ten minutes and nothing other than
the above casual comments were made., BISHOV stated no radical
political type statsments were made nor was there any Xdication
RUBY belonged to any particular organizations. BISHOV stated
he did not know bow long RUBY had been in Havana, Cuba, vhere
he was staying nor when he was supposed to return to the United
States.

BISHOV stated he was not sure of the name nor of the
picture appesring in the daily newspaper, that it was identical
to the JACK RUBY. he met in Cuba but described this individual as
a white male American, of average build, 5'7" -~ 6!, 165 ~ 200 poun
dark hair, with a'Jewish appearance"”, and was in bis mid or late.
forties, BISHOV stated RUBY was an extrovert and loud talker dut
appeared to be friendly. .
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JFK ExHisiT F-579
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JFK ExsuiBir F-580

. RO JACK . 3-lo.
PR;301 (Bpe. 1-2340) EDERM‘ BUREAU OF myssmqm, SRV @,\f) \)/\ c K a-a
’ EIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII T
\//K/e F’ SKXO — - Pote _12/_2/§3 : =
eaSQF" : L

- ' e

: *JACK (NMI) MARCUS{ 27, advised he is an attorney,
.business address, 137 Rarth LaS'Llle Street, Suite 1508, Chicago,
‘Illinois, phone numbar CE 6-3938, and reside$ at 8],2 Brown,
Evanston, Ilhnois..

¢

Mr. MARCUS stated he visited Havega, Cuba, for four ~o
days during the Labor Day week emnd, 1959, with two companions,
JAY BISHOV and SHERWIN BRAUN, Durlng this vacation trip, the
three were approached by a man in the Tropicana Night Club .
Havana, Cuba, who gave his pame as JACK RUBY. RPBY stated .
he heard the three men weére from the United States and indicated-
he was familiar with Chlcago, Illinois, had some acquaintances
in Chicago and may possibly have been’ origina.lly from Chicago.

" RUBY stated he owned a night club in Texag vhich MARCUS

believes was in Dallas and possibly called the "Carousgl",
He indicated he had "everything” at the nighf club including
gambling. RUBY told MARCUS if he ever passed through Dauas,
he should stop in at RUBY s_pight club,

! MARCUS stated RUBY‘ was alone and appe:u‘ed to lmve
" been on vacation but ma.y have been friendly w}th the employees
in the gambling sectiom of ‘the Tropi¢ana,

MARCUS further stateq the peeting lasted only about -
ten ninutes and no other questions were asked oy other information
obtained. No radical or politigal type statements vere made

by RUBY nor were there any indigations he beloqged to any :
»pa.rtxcula.r organizations.

MARCUS descrihed JACK RUBY as follows;

Race White
Male
,Na.t:l.ona.lity . Ameriocan IS
Ago’ Mig-iorties
Height . 5'11r
- Weight 175 pounds
Build Medium ta layge
Hair Brownish, balding slightly’
Accent Midwvestern ;;'ather than Texan .
Complexion Fair
. . —
DL 44-1639 < (/" 86
On 11/24/63 o Evanston, Illinois Filo § _ CG 44-645
SAs LANSING P. LOGAN N
by and DANIEL P, BLARB/mav i Dota f‘ ctated 11/29/63
This d netther ot the PBI, I {» the property of the FB! .and 1s loaned fo

Yous agency; 3t cad {ie contenta are not io be u-ttlb-'-‘ outside your, agenay.
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DL 44-1639 =~
CG 44-645 -

. Appoared - te have heon of .-
Jowish extraction.  Also

describod ag a grogarious
typo ang . an-exirovert.

Mr. MAPCUS adyiccd vhen the ghopting .incidenti in
Dallas, Texas, took place coacorping LES EANVZY OSUALD by a
. JACK RUBY, Noyembexr 24, 1263, the nap3d giryelk HADCUS as being. .
fepiliar and whon he gaw tha newspapar pictura of JACX
RUBENSTEIN,, it bore a shayp resephlance to the ‘JACE RUBY he
met in Havapa, Cuba, 4p }959. ' =~ . - : :
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N7 - - =~
FD-202 (Rlev. 1-25-80) ( FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIG( 9N W 4~

towoney
i ovtosmoexaradiacisiins [

R N — 1 Dot Nover.\ber430, 1963
- IFE fFes¥R T T T

3 R o

CIARENCE A. RECTOR, 422 Connally Stxeet, Sulpher
© Springs, Texas, advised SA JAMES L. WILLIAISON he was in

- v
Houston tewporarily in connection with h:.i_gu_t_%ghil_gm- ) R
'Ws. WCB o : e

He advised he has known JA.CK RUBY as a club manager o
in Dallas since about 1950 and has frequented his places of
business s:mce than.

e advised he went to Cuba fox tuo days in late

1959 and in _ear 1 %) ‘k_in Dallas and went %o t'hé
w}b— Hg_mentioned he had been to Cuba and

RUBY stated he

Y
SOme |asgociatesy

had | reoenflvfbeen to Cuba himself, as he and

ggre trying to get some gambdling concess:.ons at E
put it did not work out. L ;

He .atated he was at the Vegas Club’ on this occasion

with CHESTER MYERS (phonetic), a head waiter who resides in an
apartrent out the 5000 block of Hall Street in Dal 1as. He

said MVERS appeared to be vell acquamted with RUBY

RECTOR Stated t:'hat he had no other ’J?n'fornat:.on con-—
cerning RUBY, as his knowledge of him is so limited.:

CE 1440

On __11=29=63 _at __Hcuston, Tevas. File # 330_4-232

oy — SA_JAURS T, WILLIAMSON:ddw——  Date dictated ——11—30—63———-

1k1s dozumneat contalas nmlther recomxondations nor conclusions of tho FBI. R is the 'ruwrly of lhq FBl and ls losned to
¥2i¢ egency; 1t cad fta contents ace not ta by distributed outslde your agency.

JFK ExHisiT F-582

Chairman Stokgs. Mr. Chairman, I would also ask that JFK
Exhibit F-581, which is a postcard written from Jack Ruby to Alice
Nichols which is dated September 8, 1959, also be made a part and
entered into the record at this point.
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Mr. Prever. Without objection, JFK F-581 is ordered into the
record at this point.
[The above referred to JFK Exhibit F-581 follows:]

JFK Exuieir F-581
Chairman Srokes. Now, you have stated that it is your best
recollection that he stayed there a week?
Mr. McWiLLik. I would say 6 days, not over 6 days.
Chairman Stokes. Could he have stayed longer?
Mr. McWiLLIE. No, I think I took him to the airport.
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Chairman Stokgs. Mr. Chairman, I ask that JFK Exhibits F-583,
and F-584, which are blowups, be exhibited at this time and also be
made a part of the record at this point.

Mr. Prevyer. Without objection, JFK Exhibits F-583 and F-584
are admitted into the record at this point.

[The above referred to JFK Exhibits F-583 and F-584 follow:]

JFK Exsxisir F-583
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JFK Exnmir F-584

Chairman Stokes. Mr. Chairman, I ask that Mr. Howard Shapiro
of our staff be permitted to approach the easel and explain to the
witness what those exhibits are.

Mr. PreYER. The Chair recognizes Mr. Shapiro.

Mr. Suariro. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

These two exhibits are blowups of materials which the committee
acquired from the Cuban Government earlier this year. What we
have are two cards which indicate two visits.

Mr. PreveER. Just a moment, Mr. Shapiro. | don’t believe your
microphone is working.

Mr. SuaAriro. Is it working now?

Mr. PreYER. Fine.

Mr. SHariro. As I said, these exhibits are blowups of materials
which the committee received from the Cuban Government earlier
this year. We have two cards and we have a blowup of the front
side and the back side of each card. The front side of the first card,
the back side of the first card, the front side of the second card, the
back side of the second card.

What these cards indicate are two visits to Cuba by Jack Ruby,
and further they indicate the dates of those visits. The first card
indicates that Jack Ruby entered Cuba on August 8, 1959, the date
of entry being written in on the back of the card. The front of the
card indicating that Jack Ruby left the United States from New
Orleans.

The back of the card also indicates that Jack Ruby left Cuba on
this visit on September 11, 1959, therefore, the card indicating that
Jack Ruby was in Cuba from August 8 to September 11, 1959.
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The second card indicates that Jack Ruby entered Cuba on Sep-
tember 12, 1959, and left on the 13th of September 1959, and the
front side of the card would indicate that his entry from the United
States was from Miami, Fla.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Stokes. OK. Mr McWillie, do you understand——

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Yes sir, I understand.

Chairman STOKES [continuing]. That gentleman’s testimony?

Mr. McWILLIE. Yes.

Chairman Stokes. Now, does that information help refresh your
recollection, first, as to whether Jack Ruby came in August and
left in September, and also whether he remained there over a
period of 6 days?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Sir, he stayed there 6 days, as far as I can
remember. One of them said September what to—to August to
September, what date was that?

Chairman Stokes. August 8 was his entrance date, a departure
date of the 11th—September 11.

Mr. McWiLLIE. Oh, no, no, he wasn’t there that long.

Chairman Stokes. He wasn’t there that long?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir.

Chairman STokES. During the period of time that he was there,
did he leave the country and come back again during that 6-day
period?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir.

Chairman Stokes. Mr. Chairman, at this time I would ask that
JFK exhibit F-588, which is a report confirming that the signa-
tures “Jack Ruby” appearing on the two travel cards as well as the
post card to Alice Nichols, be entered into the record.

Mr. PreveEr. Without objection, JFK exhibit F-588, is entered
into the record at this point.

[The above referred to JFK exhibit F-588 follows:]
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JFK ExHiBiT F-588

CHARLEs C ScorT
DOCUMENT EXAMINER stz 910
VOB GRAND AVENUE
TELEFPHONE S42-8340
AREa coOT 016 Kansas Ciry, Mi1SSOURI 64i0e

TO:

ASirs:

REPORT ON DOCUMENT EXAMINATION

September 22, 1978

Select Committee on Assassinations
U.S. House of Representatives

3342 House Office Building, Annex 2
Washington, D.C. 20515

Re: Jack Ruby

Following are the results of the document examination and

comparison you requested:

A. DOCUMENTS EXAMINED

1. Two color photographs (one life-size and the other

enlarged) of a card entitled "Tarjeta De Identidad/Cuba" for PAA

Flight No. 415, dated "9/12" and signed "Jack Ruby" .

2. Two color photographs (one life-size and the other

enlarged) of a card entitled "Tarjeta De Identidad/Cuba" for

Delta Flight 751 dated "Aug" and signed "Jack Ruby"”. These

photographs are apparently photographs of a signature that

is a

carbon copy of an original signature.

3. Original post card addressed to Alice Nichols, 8707

Redondo, Dallas, Texas, dated 9/8/59 and signed "Jack".
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Select Committee on Assassinations, September 22, 1978, Page Two

4. Check on Merchants State Bank, Dallas, Texas, dated
7/26/62, payable to Dallas Times Herald in the amount of $70.00
and signed "Vegas Club, Jack Ruby". .

5. Sheet of yellow legal memorandum paper bearing nine
specimen signatures of Jack Ruby and three one sentence para-~
graphs in his handwriting dated 7/18/64. ' '

B. QUESTIONS

1. Whether the signatures "Jack Ruby" on the two flight
cards, Items 1 and 2 above, are in the same handwriting and
were written by the same person as the signatures "Jack Ruby"
on Items 4 and 5 which were submitted as bearing known genuine
signatures of Jack Ruby.

2. Whether the post card, Item 3 above, was written and
signed by the same person as Items 4 and 5 which were submitted
as bearing the known genuine signatures and handwriting of
Jack Ruby.

C. OPINION

After a careful examination and comparison of the submitted
documents, I am of the opinion the signatures "Jack Ruby" on
the two flight cards, Items 1 and 2 above, are in the same
handwriting and were written by the same person as the signatures
"Jack Ruby" on Items 4 and 5.

I am also of the opinion the post card, Item 3 above,
was entirely written and signed by the same person as Items
4 and 5 which were submitted as bearing the known genuine

signatures and handwriting of Jack Ruby.
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Select Committee on Assassinations, September 22, 1978, Page Three

As far as Items 1 and 2 are concerned, to the extent that
this opinion'is based upon the examination of photographs ratﬁer
than originals, it is necessarily subject to modificiation should
the originals of Items 1 and 2 subsequently be submitted for
examination and should they reveal contradictory information -~

not disclosed by the photographs.

ges§7ctfu11%

Charles C. Scott

Chairman Stokes. Mr. Chairman, in addition to the other exhib-
its, I would like to have entered into the record an FBI report
dated November 29, 1969, concerning the records of the Merchant
State Bank in Dallas as they pertain to Jack Ruby. This exhibit
should be marked JFK exhibit F-585.

Mr. PreveEr. Without objection, JFK exhibit F-585, is entered
into the record at this point.

[The above referred to JFK exhibit F-585 follows:]
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JFK ExHiBir F-585

. FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGA 1 1un
L |

TEK  F =5RS — b November 29, 1963

The records of the Merchants State Bank, 5217 Ross,
Dallas reﬂ.ect the following information- -

An account in the name of JACK RUBY, 4727 Homer,
Apartment 105, was opened June 26, 1960. RUBY's address was
subsequently changed to 3929 Baw].ins. This account is small .
and. inactive, with no recent deposits or withdrawals. The only
recent entries are service charges of $1.00 per month. The -
balance at the present time is $35.78.

An account in the name, of the Carousel Club -
1312% Commerce, Dallas, with JACK RUBY listed as the-person to
draw_on this account, was opemed on October 12, 196l1. A resunme
of this account retlects the following intormtion' ' .

Date Deposit Withdrawal Balance
98/30/63 . ' N . $188,73
10/4/63  $ 8.82 - . L 197.55
10/10/63 $24.38 173.17
10/10/63 .30.26 203.43
11/11/63 33.22 . . 236.65

19/63 10.00 R Yo 246.65
11/20/63 : 15.00 © 231,65

x1/22/63 . s031,87 ) T 199.78

On July 9, 1958, an account was opened in the name
of the Vegas Club, care ot JACK RUBY, 3929 Rawlins, '‘Dallas.
JACK RUBY was the only person authorized to draw o2 ‘this account.
- A resume of this account’ reflects the following information:

on _11/29/63 o Dallas, Texas File # __DL #4.16%
RALPH E. RAWLINGS and -
by Sp'clul AgemS__EDMOND C. HMARDIN/pm =~ pote dictated . 11/29/63
. 6

This d nelther not conclusions of the FDI, It 1a the property of the FBI IM is loanad to
vour auuncy: it oad its coutents uie nol lo be distributed oulside ycur agency.
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2. %
- DL 44-1639
Date Deposit . Withdrawal Balance
9/30/63 . . i $210.15
10/9/63 One check . -160.15
10/10/63 : Two checks 81.44
10/16/63 . Three checks 63.91
10/22/63 A deposit minus three checks
- . resulting 1n balance of 263.91
10/29/63 o Four checks 134.44
11/6/63 o $50.00 84.44
11/8/63 : : . 25.00 . .59.44
11/11/63 - $200.00 259 .44
11/12/63 11.65 . . 247.79
11/20/63 25.00 ’ 222.79
- 11/22/63 . 12.82 209.97°

11/25/63 - 50.00 ; 159.97

13
- . -

Loan records reflect the following addresses for
JACK RUBY from 1958 to the present time:

4160 Hawthorne

4727 Homer

11616 Jamestown Road
.3508 Oak Lawn

3929 Rawlins

On ‘June 26, 1958 JACK RUBY borrowed $1, 148. 00 from this
bank to be repaid in 18 monthly payments. A lien on a 1956
Oldsmobile secured this loan. Final payment was made on
December 8, 1959. .
: .On December 8, 1959, JACK RUBY borrowed $704.00 to be -~
repaid in 12 monthly payments. Final payment was made on
January 2 1961. A lien on a 1956 Oldsmobile secured this loan.

On Decenber 29, 1960, a loan was made to S. D, BUBY
11616 Jamestown Road, Dallas, 1n the amount of $3,360.00, with
JACK RUBY listed as a co-signer on the note. The loan was repaid
;3624 monthly payments with the final installment on March 16, -

.

s

. On February 14 1961, JACK RUBY borrowed $636.00, whxch
he repaid in 12 monthly payments, with the last installment on
March 9, 1962, Security on this loan was a lien on a 1956

»Oldsmobile.
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-3
DL 44-1639

'I On January 31, 1963, JACK RUBY borrowed $1,375.00,
/ giving as security a lien on a 1960 Oldsmobile, vehicle identifi-
" cation No. 607T07749. He has made ten monthly payments of
$76.50 each on this loan, with the last payment having been
made on November 11, 1963.

On June 1, 1962 JACK RUBY borrowed $410.00 on a
short-term basis, which was repaxd on July 11, 1962, No security
was required on this loan. : K

. . On April 27, 1959, JACK RUBY, whose address at that
ime was 4160 Hawthorne rented safety deposit box No. 448.
MYRTLE .CHANCE, no address, was listed as his agent on the
safety deposit box record, but her name was revoked as his
agent on June 6, 1960. The files reflect RUBY was admitted to
the safety deposit box vault on the following dates: .

y 7 T May 7 and 1959 /““/ZL

June 2 anc% 959 Jume 22 /WM,}

al T Tl July 1,.9 asd G0, 1959

Wy | wa. August(2], 1959 Lo50 i Jw&?w (Mmiy)

September 4 and A

T R M ey,

. April 12, 1960
,Hévr"{ F':La""j Novembex_ 14, 1960

) Maxch 1961
o2 W, A -
The file reflects no entry after March 21, 1961.
Co. RUBY has no savings account at the Merchants State
- Bank.

. The above records are confidential and will be
produ d only upon the issuance of a subpoena duces tecum.
V. P,/SCHUMACHER, President, Merchants State Bank, 5217 Ross,
Dallas, Texas;-is the proper person to subpoena to produce
‘these records. )
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Chairman Stokes. That exhibit will reflect information concern-
ing Jack Ruby’s use of safety deposit box No. 448. Among other
dates listed, that exhibit will indicate that Jack Ruby was admitted
5?)5t9he safety deposit box on August 20, 1959, and September 4,

Mr. Chairman, I would also like to enter into the record at this
point the FBI report by Agent Charles Flynn, which is the FBI'S
record of the status of Jack Ruby as a potential criminal inform-
ant.

I would like to have this record entered into evidence as JFK
exhibit F-586.

Mr. Prever. Without objection, JFK exhibit F-586 is entered into
the record at this point.

[The above referred to JFK exhibit F-586 follows:]

35-379 O - 79 - 14
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JFK ExHiBiT F-586

. . Danaai Texas -[
HED - SAGT \76@ - ffé -

L4 ’ .
Re: V- ?— (). 2. )

. -« O the basls - of prelimtmzry combtrets-amt-information

- develop2@~to date. X recc=rmnd" the -ceptioned-individaal Tor

1rr!mr¢‘d-ve’m-t T Ene: rono-ing' inftorx=ticon 18 -sat forth

for youwr consideration (if-2dditionel space required, insert

necessary nuabered pages, as 2a, 2b, etc. with identifying
-hattmg)"-"’ iy

A. n.u— FOR-PCT_INDEX CARD: . *,'.,
' 1. Rl Fewes dacif /\3,,3/
2. ‘ Residem:e Kidrens A Y5t 7‘-]&'7‘/;/‘ /)’C' 3,9)7 =1
3. Restlence ;elepﬂwnr -K/‘;‘ 27 %Jj/}
" B. "Business Addrews -[E£A3 (’/aa 35" c‘2 ( s /,;w,/

5. Eusinmess Telephume - LHE- 47 75 . .

6. Coverage (rrsnv, WSTA, NEGROES, ete, ) ﬂ"w
’ T P—ce-ﬂhrt ) o v gzb :
. 8. .Tate Develop -/9//9 : e epe Lt

9. Kuowrto Spectal Agents ~CK'F //c,bv.:u:- /]&bfl’To

10. FPlace of Contact - #5ée¢ /9{:‘1/-773:1\&'5' é‘a f{t‘)

_ 11. ‘Reatrict'iona on Contact - :
B. _PIESICAL DESCRIPTION : -

Y- Full Hame‘ and Alim? -

Sowsi Dt L b . - :
2; TIate and Place ‘of. Blrth - . : LT
Y R ~, S T

3, “Helgnt- I

N ' " . . -
.4, Weight - °

i - 2Ty -
5. Build -

,"'/c',l ¥
A
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¢ ‘ 6, Hair - v
T __Em_fr-'-"%ic!"f i
8. Co.—.\p.le:don - Fleniem
9 Race-— WK bire
10, Scars-and Karks - Newe T

1. Occupstion - /¢ 7€ Clon CNewmree

Crpa. ML Teternm 7

c. easTmstorr: " /- v et e ot
- (Sun==ry—sketelr, imclune past-residences and occ -

tlons; relatives, arzas with-whitchr rartliar; criminal specialties,

habits; record -of phycital end-rntel disorders; sddiction to nar-
cotics, alcohol, sex perversion, desestic problems, ete,, which

may have bearing on mfntal and ecotional stabllity and reliadbility

.

-

L] . : »
D. OFFICE INDYCES CHECK: . — T
: (I.nclude herz, with idaentifying file referexices, only
background irformation relative to subject,) -

h2- N



208

E. BUREAU GENERAL INDICES CHECXY -« * .

*-{Ir desirable;, -atta'c?r-'letter'to'hn:ear-speciﬁc.allih-
. stating fTacts which indicate Burczau files contain information
not 1nc1uc1ed 1n fieid office files; indicate action below,) -

[ DU ..& — Gt

I‘ID e Ld'-a-l L‘t“\ ‘-"-—"*“"‘\ "T'L"‘“’: S"‘“"*‘ ‘("- -, N = ).-_
s Al a-‘!”“‘-'% r""“‘ ' *

P. CREDIT CHECK: : .*

(Include backsround data, not merely whether credit good
or bad.) 2., Ll Al K2Elshs, % ) RAESE, 4-¢¢n~u.(fu Lo a’oa-c 9/}/

E ,_/ £ /,—r /3 s le o feeldess psues .
RS /-f‘/:ﬂé«:“:,z/uayw

Z,M4@ ,dca& Mpuua/ é,w/m n-wwtédav ~/°/:
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DL - 3
o. LOCAL CRIMINAL crmcxsn- RN .

(Include efforts to obtain photo,raph ond if obtained,
attach in exhibit envelope.)

Phts- 10

'H._ FOP IDENEIFIGATION REGORD=~ . - .. - - ot
(It up-to-c‘._te tranzeript 13 avallable, attach; if pot,

' attach Form FD-9, checlding request for photograph, Af not other-
wise available; indicate actlon taken.) .

l"\— T — L L. 23 . ;// ] .:_- ;;‘:’_( ::35/
. i - . -
el
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¥. DMILITARY SEXVICE RECORD:

] .

(State whether PCI has rilttary record; 1T -so;- record
service mumber anc stetemsnmty of, FCI rerarding type of discharge;
court =artrals;- treewents for menmve)l or nervous disorders, - -XIT

- desirzble; attach letter to appropriste office requesting mili-

tary record check; otherwise, indicate besis for conclusion recoxry
check unnecessary.) ; . — : )

P N ’,, /, .
Pol - A Free 95-Y4 _
- - - 3 .’: - i “
. ‘\
H . , hd )
- ‘i
J. CRIHINAL ASSOCIATES:- PO - -

. (List, it identifyins FBZ or-PD Tumbers and criminal
specialties, and prepare index-corés.on ericinels well-knowan to
ECI, es-disclosed by record checks and interviews.) .

A ] i _ o ) ' N , . R T ’- p /:’
JEmes Ktsérr feap, it I #,0 ¢ 3703, bt ),3:2 32 945, J’:.{ 47
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DL =~ 3-

K. PROCUCTIVITY=TO DATSY

{Include, witlr beparate paragraph for-each—case -file
involved, Yreld and Bureru-file nunbars, titles ard characters,
positive inform=tion furmizhed; as indiceted by office indtces:
‘check. Show -8ignificance and va‘ua of informztion— or—otirer’
.asBlstence, with resultant -statictices, . If iuformation is:in in-
vestigative report, show name of Arent, date of report, and re- -
- porting-office., If positive informaticn rurniahed but not yet
.. in file, attach fully_executed Formp FD-209, with .conies for -~ -

'appropriate case files. ) ] . . .

»
- 14
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L e =

.L. COVERAGEY" =~ -

Show basls for listing PCI for covemge in each
classification shown under "aA" ,&bove,

M. S"'AT:?'E..’IT 0‘? WILLINGNZSS TO AID B‘U"\EAU.

. t’L T &.g_«u.u;-l M,,u."'J—d_ n.-c.u.., W o.,uu...l- Lé"z
_aue sz.'[ L ISP , e E‘AvW
iR

,. .-\.((\ L—f\-

-N.

AVAILABILITY TO OTHER DIVISI(ms_
. DaT faie aif Qe W te comailal G-& :iﬂn.DaMn éfufj

o A a»waawl k&u-o »

O. ALVISED OF BUREAT JURISDICTIONZ™ ** e

i

" (speetry which clac..iticntionu havc been explained ) -
?C‘I 6«,3{:({”& was a,ci.u,w( &ubf-dt‘.n.. %M
o«iﬂai«éﬂaw ve BB Be, Nal., TTs ws7H,

Urr‘)-? urn‘c m .



213

‘DL - .
‘P ADVISED OF COMPIDEXTIAL REIATIONSHIP: ‘- . )

(Include .‘:mnrmentﬁ for mgcreet tclephone ‘and per— -
sonzl contacts, reatrictions on.ccmtzety,” advise: 3hould not con-
tact office perscnally, advise recax-'-in” mrnishing information
to the Bureau only, advised not Eurcau employee

{.{:‘IQL} a,c[,v.wa,t( %»é.l bl xedaTaneeks -éﬂké&aﬂ

‘EZH“ EJF&L%MO?"

X .1_@12 u—t(,t(l'l-t %Wf-

P &U?.tc Aunie f, g ,,._:f 13 ('_nm_u,{.c et
tﬁ 7 A \9 ,gm(( - Guwoa e .

Q. ARRAMOZMZNTS FOR PAYISNISI N ’ S o

(Inclu"e any discussiontto date-regarding 'payments on
COD bzsis or for expdnses, whether-PC1l eppears- recentive,' advise
‘thzt peyments are inccme in zccordance arith conditionsa stated in
Secticn 107 N, Kinuval of Instructicns. If pzyments made to date,
give details with icentifying file num'b'-rs and dates.) -

D(. T wrts Gdswaze uu..da..a]z.eu Lt e et
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Chairman StokEes. I would also have the committee know that
this exhibit will point out the fact that the record indicates that
Charles Flynn, the FBI agent, had personal contact with Jack Ruby
in Dallas, Tex. on August 6 and on August 31 of 1959.

In summary, what these records will tend to indicate is that Jack
Ruby was in Dallas, Tex., on August 6, August 21, August 31, and
September 4, 1959. Therefore, if the Cuban records are correct,
Jack Ruby was in Havana, Cuba, on August 8, 1959; he must have
left Cuba and returned to Dallas and traveled to Cuba again prior
to the September 11 departure date that has been mentioned
earlier.

Now, Mr. McWillie, if Mr. Ruby made a 1-day trip in and out of
the country, would you be able to tell us what that trip was about?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. If he did make a trip I would not know it, sir; and
I would think I would know it, and I didn’t see Jack Ruby after he
left that one time.

Chairman Stokes. Now, tell us what the two of you did in Cuba
during that 6-day period together?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, I worked every night, and as a rule he
would hang around the casino. Maybe once or twice he might have
gone to see a show or something, but he was around me nearly all
the time.

Chairman StokEs. But during the day what would the two of you
do?

Mr. McWiLLie. Well, I was working at night and I slept most of
the day. If he got up early or not I wouldn’t know. He would
usually meet me out at the casino after I had gone and opened up.

Chairman Stokes. What time did you go to the casino in the
evening?

Mr. McWiLLik. I think about 8 o’clock.

Chairman Stokes. And how late would you work?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Sometimes 3 or 4 o’clock in the morning.

Chairman Stokes. And you say he would hang around you out at
the casino?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Yes, sir.

Chairman Stokes. And during that period of time, he didn’t
smoke or drink, did he?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir, he didn’t.

Chairman Stokes. But he would just stand around; is that it?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Stand around talking to people and carrying on
conversations.

Chairman Stoxes. Did he know other people there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Sir?

Chairman Stokgs. Did he know other people there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, he didn’t know anyone there.

Chairman StOKES. You were the only person he knew in
Havana?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He knew Panitz. I think Panitz was there at the
time, too, Meyer Panitz from Memphis; he knew him, he was from
Dallas, too.

Chairman Stokes. Was Panitz there during that period of time?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Pardon me, I am almost positive that he was.

Chairman Stokgs. That he was?

Mr. McWiLLIE. That he was working in Havana.

35-379 O~ 79 - 15
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Chairman Stokes. What type of work did Panitz do?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He was a casino worker.

Chairman Stokes. And for which casino?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I think he worked at the Capri.

Chairman Stokes. Now, did I understand you to say earlier that
you took Ruby back to the airport?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I am sure I did, yes, sir; I would do that, yes, sir.

Chairman Stokes. And where was he going when he left?

Mr. McWiLLie. He was going back home, he said, to Dallas.

Chairman Stokes. And do you know whether or not he did go
back home to Dallas?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I would have to say he did. There was no way I
would know but I would have to say he did go back to Dallas.

Chairman Stokes. Now, you have told us that Panitz was in
Havana at the same time you and Ruby were there?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I would have to say so, yes.

Chairman Stokes. Is it possible that Panitz was not there and
that he was in Miami and that you called him?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. No, I don’t think so.

Chairman Stokes. Mr. Chairman, I ask that an exhibit marked
JFK F-587, which is an interview with Meyer Panitz, be entered
into and made a part of the record at this point.

Mr. Preyer. Without objection, JFK exhibit F-587 is ordered into
the record at this point.

[The above referred to JFK exhibit F~587 follows:]
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Chairman Stokes. Would counsel hand me that exhibit?

Mr. McWillie, this exhibit is an FBI interview of Meyer Panitz in
which Panitz says that he had known McWillie from Dallas, Tex.
Panitz says he contacted Ruby at Wolfie’'s Restaurant at Twenty-
first Street and Collins, Miami Beach, Fla. Panitz believes Ruby
was in Miami Beach 2 or 3 days and visited with Ruby on two
occasions. Panitz recalls Ruby said he had been in Cuba on a
pleasure trip and was returning to Dallas, Tex.

Panitz does not recall the hotel room Ruby stayed in while in
Miami Beach. Panitz does not recall the month he saw Ruby but is
somewhat certain it was in the summer of 1959. Panitz had no
knowledge of possible Cuban connections on the part of Ruby but
that, he says Panitz received a phone call from McWillie and
McWillie was then working in Cuba.

McWillie advised Panitz that Jack Ruby had visited him in Cuba
and was then in Miami Beach.

Having heard what Mr. Panitz told the FBI about your calling
him, would you now change your statement that Panitz was
then——

Mr. McWiLLik. I thought he was in Cuba. I didn’t know he was
in Miami. I thought that Panitz was in Cuba because I know he
worked there.

Chairman Stokes. What then would have been your reason for
calling Panitz and letting him know that Jack Ruby was going to
be there?

Mr. McWILLIE. If I called Panitz, I don’t recall it. I don’t recall a
conversation with Panitz in Miami.

Chairman Stokes. You don’t recall having called Panitz?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir; I do not. :

Chairman Stokes. This doesn’t refresh your recollection either?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir. I thought Panitz was in Havana when
Ruby was over there, and I still think he was.

Chairman StokEes. Did Ruby carry anything to Panitz for you?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Did he carry anything to Panitz?

Chairman StokEes. To Panitz for you?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir. :

Chairman StokEes. Now, you have told us that, to the best of your
recollection, you cannot recall Jack Ruby leaving the country and
coming back in again?

c l\élr. McWiLLIE. No, sir. No, I never saw him again after he left
uba.

Chairman StokEes. Now, I ask again, Mr. Chairman, that we
direct the witness’ attention to JFK exhibits F-583 and F-584
which have been referred to earlier.

Mr. McWillie, I would direct your attention to the left-hand card
of JFK exhibit F-584, which indicates that Jack Ruby left Havana
on September 11, 1959,

I also direct your attention to the card on the right which is the
back side of the card showing at the bottom of the photographic
blowup of JFK exhibit F-583, which indicates that Jack Ruby
entered Cuba on September 12, 1959, left again on September 13,
1959. The front side of that card shows that on that trip that Jack
Ruby had come from Miami, therefore, the two cards taken togeth-
er show that Jack Ruby left Cuba on September 11, 1959, that he
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went to Miami, returned to Cuba on September 12, and then going
on to New Orleans on September 13.

In addition to that, the committee has a letter here from Immi-
gration Service which was sent to this committee, which confirms
the fact that Jack Ruby left Cuba on September 11, 1959, went to
Miami, returning on September 12 and going on to New Orleans on
September 13,

Mr. Chairman, I would like this letter from INS entered into the
record at this time as JFK exhibit F-589.

Mr. PrReYER. Without objection, JFK exhibit F-589 is entered into
the record at this time.

[The above referred to JFK exhibit F-589 follows:]
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] UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE .
IMMIGRATION AND NATURALIZATION SERVICE PUIASK ADSRESS RIPLY TO
WasHINGTON, D.C. 20536 . .

OTFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER ARD RIZER YO TIES FULK WO, S

co 703.i612
Wy 1198~ ..

Honorable G. Robert Blakey

Chief Counsel and Director

Select Committee on Assassinations 0 _

Room 3380 A
House of Representatives 0841"
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Mr. Blakey:

Reference 1s made to your letter of April 7, 1978 requesting access to
all documents generated by or in the possession of this Service concerning
the Warren Commission Exhibits No. 1442 and No. 1443 relating to Jack L.
Ruby's trip to Havana, Cuba in September 1959.

Attached is a xeroxed copy of record of departure of Pan American Airvays
flight 415 of September 12, 1959 from Miami, Florida destined to Havana,

Cuba, and a copy of the record of Mr. Ruby's departure as a passenger on

that flight.

Attached is a xeroxed copy of general declaration and record of arrival
of Delta Airlines Flight 750 of September 13, 1959 from Havana, Cuba to
New Orleans, Louisiana, and a copy of Mr. Ruby's arrival as a pasnenger
on that flight.

The above are the only records relating to the departure and the arrival
of the subject.

Sincerely,
éouel J. Ja;tillo
Commissioner
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Chairman StoxEgs. Now, Mr. McWillie, let me ask you, in light of
this additional documentation with reference to Mr. Ruby’s trips,
does this in any way refresh your recollection?

Mr. McWiLLIE. I think you said, sir, that, didn’t you say that he
came in on the 5th of August and left on the 11th? Did you say
that?

Chairman Stokes. On the 8th was the original trip, the docu-
ment shows.

Mr. McWiLLIE. From the 5th to the 11th? That was 6 days. That
is the only time that I have seen Jack Ruby in Cuba. I thought
when he left there he went right straight home to Dallas. I had no
idea why he went to New Orleans.

Chairman Stokes. You have no knowledge of such trip?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir; none whatever.

Mr. SAwYER. Would you yield?

Chairman StokEes. Yes.

Mr. SaAwyER. I think there is confusion. He said arrived on the
8th and left on the 11th. It was the 8th of August and he left on
the 11th of September, so it was not 6 days as the witness——

Mr. McWiLLIE. I thought the first time you said it, he got there
the 6th of August and left on the 11th of August. You didn't say
that?

Chairman StokEs. Sir, we will try and clear it up.

Mr. Shapiro, would you again approach the easel?

" Mr. McWiLLiE. Because I know for a fact he wasn't there over 6
days when he visited me. v

Chairman StokEs. We will have the——

Mr. McWILLIE. I couldn’t have stood it that long.

Chairman StokEes. We will have the gentleman try to clear it up.
[Laughter.]

Mr. Shapiro.

Mr. SHAPIRO. These cards here indicate a trip on Jack Ruby
entering Cuba on August 8, 1959, and leaving on September 11.
Therefore, the card indicates that Jack Ruby was there for a period
of 1 month and 3 days.

Mr. McWiLLE. No way, he wasn’t there not over 6 days. I took
him to the airport.

Chairman STokEs. Mr. McWillie, does that clear it up?

Mr. McWiLLIE. That is clear all right but that is not right,
because when he came to visit me he stayed 6 days at the most, he
stayed 6 days and there is some foulup with that ticket or some-
thing, If he had stayed there a month, I would say a month, I
wouldn’t be ashamed to say it. Jack Ruby was the kind of fellow
that 6 days would be long enough to be around him. I am sure he
wasn’t there a month. [Laughter.]

Chairman STokEs. You are pretty sure then?

Mr. McWILLIE. I am riot trying to be smart, sir.

Chairman StokEes. I understand.

Mr. McWILLIE. I am telling it like it is.

Chairman StokEks. Did you ever ask Mr. Ruby to get you four
guns from Ray Brentley’s gun store and send them to you in Cuba?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, sir; I have been asked that a dozen times and
I didn’t do that. In the first place, Jack Ruby couldn’t have sent
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any guns to Cuba and I couldn’t have gotten them in Cuba. If I
had, I hate to think what would have happened to me.

Chairman Stokes. You have been asked about this a dozen times,
you say. You are aware then that Jack Ruby gave this testimony to
the Warren Commission?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. No, I am not aware he gave the testimony. But I
have been asked by reporters and magazine writers and different
people.

Chairman Stoxgs. Now——

Mr. McWILLIE. I'm trying to think—now, who else asked me
that?

Chairman Stokgs. Here is Jack Ruby’s testimony to the Warren
Commission, volume 5, page 201, says that you had called Jack
Ruby from Cuba, asking him to pick up four Cobra pistols at Ray
Brentley’s hardware store and send to you.

According to Jack Ruby, you were concerned about the new
regime coming in, you wanted some protection. Your testimony is
that this never happened?

Mr. McWiLLiE. This never happened, sir, and there is no way I
could call Jack Ruby and ask him to send guns over there because
every call was monitored in Havana, every call, and I would hate
to get caught with a gun in Cuba when I was there.

Chairman Stokes. How about in Las Vegas?

Mr. McWiLLIE. He sent me a gun there, yes, and I didn’t take it
out.

Chairman Stokgs. Sir? Pardon me.

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I called him. They were having a lot of holdups
there. I was working on the late shift. I would get up at 2 o’clock in
the morning and get off at 10 and the holdup men had beaten
several fellows up because they didn’t have enough money for
them, and so I called Jack and asked Jack to send me a gun out
there, and in the meantime my kids were small and my wife
wouldn’t let me take the gun out and so it went back.

Cglairman StokEes. So you never picked up the gun that he sent
you?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, I never did.

Chairman Srtokes. Did he get that gun from Ray Brentley’s?

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir?

Chairman StokEes. Did he get that gun from Ray Brentley's?

Mr. McWILLIE. I think he did, yes.

Chairman Stokes. Thank you.

I have no further questions, Mr. Chairman. I yield back the
balance of my time.

Mr. PreYER. Thank you.

Are there any further questions from the members of the panel?

Mr. FitHiAN. Mr. Chairman.

Mr. PREYER. Mr. Fithian.

Mr. FitHIAN. If I may have just 1 minute with the chief counsel
before proceeding.

[A brief recess was taken.]

Mr. PrevEr. Mr. Fithian is recognized.

Mr. FitHiAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. After you left Cuba,
what was your relationship with Jack Ruby, Mr. McWillie?
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Mr. McWiLLIE. After I left Cuba, I stayed in Miami at my moth-
er’s home until about the 1st of June, and I drove from Miami to
Las Vegas. I had a job at the Cal-Neva Lodge in Lake Tahoe, Nev.

When I got to Dallas, I stayed overnight with Jack Ruby. Got up,
oh, I got in there about nine and got up at five in the morning and
left. I drove on up to Cal-Neva Lodge and went to work there on
the 15th and then I went to, after that was over in September, I
went down to Reno and was assistant manager at the Riverside
Hotel. During the period I was there, I think I got a couple letters
from Jack Ruby telling me about a new place he had and how nice
it was and this and that. He sent me some razor blades that just
came out. He seemed to be very proud of these blades, and he was
going to get a distributorship for them. I may have gotten two
letters from him, I don’t know.

Mr. FitHIAN. So now, what you are saying is after you got back
to the United States, you stayed overnight with Jack Ruby, you
received a couple letters from him while you were in Reno and
that he, upon your request, sent you a gun in Las Vegas, which you
did not pick up.

Mr. McWiLLiE. This was later on, sir, this was later on after I
left Reno. I left Reno in—let me see, right before Christmas in
1962, I took my family and we drove to Miami and visited with my
mother, and then I came back to Vegas and went to work at the—
are you ready, sir?

Mr. FitHIAN. Yes. .

Mr. McWiLLIE. I came back to Vegas and went to work at the
Thunderbird Hotel, I believe, in February, the early part of Febru-
ary 1963.

Mr. Frraian. Did you have any other personal contact with Jack
Ruby——

Mr. McWILLIE. I'm getting to that now, sir.

Mr. FrtHiaN. OK.

Mr. McWiLLIE. Then after I was there a while, I got a call from
Jack Ruby that he was having trouble with a union named the
AGVA. He wanted to know if I knew anybody who knew the
president of the union. It just so happened that I knew, a friend of
mine named Bill Miller was entertainment director for the Hilton
Hotel, I think it was. I called Bill. I managed a casino for him in
Reno. In the meantime, he left and went to Vegas, and I called Bill
and I said, Bill, I have a friend of mine in Dallas who has some
trouble with the AGVA, it is some kind of an entertainment union.
I said he wants to know if you know if I know anyone who knows
the president, and I am calling you on account of that and if you
could help him, I would appreciate it.

I didn’t hear any more from Bill Miller, but a couple days later,
the next day maybe, I got a call from Ruby. He was just thanking
me overwhelmingly. Well, he must have called me five or six times
during that period thanking me for getting this straightened out
for him. It must have been a minor thing; I don’t know.

Mr. FitHiAN. Let me see if I understand you correctly. He called
you once to ask if you could help out with the American Guild of
Variety Actors problem, and you made a call to Bill Culler, did you

saﬁ
r. McWiLLIE. Bill Miller.
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Mr. FirHiaN. Miller.

Mr. McWiLLIE. He called me from Dallas.

Mr. FiTHiAN. And you made one call and then dismissed it from
your mind and then for five or six or seven additional calls, Ruby
called you to——

Mr. McWiLLIE. He called me every day for 4 or 5 days after that
thanking me every time. I finally told him, I said, Jack, forget it. I
said, I just did you a favor. I'd do it for anybody, and then that was
it.

Mr. FitHiaN. Did he know in advance that you had this connec-
tion that could do him some good? I am curious as to why he called
you on a labor matter.

Mr. McWiLLIE. I don’t really know, sir. He just probably thought
I could help him with it. I don’t know why he thought that, but he
called me anyway.

Mr. Frraian. Did anyone else ever tell you or did you ever learn
that Jack Ruby had contacted other people in regard to the AGVA
dispute, the labor dispute?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No. sir. He had contacted other people? If he did,
he didn’t tell me. '

Mr. FitHiaN. Did anyone else that Jack contacted contact you
and let you know that Jack was having this problem?

Mr. McWiLLIE. No, no. The only time I ever heard of it was when
he called me.

Mr. FitHiaN. The only input you had or the only indication you
had of the labor problem was a single phone call from Jack Ruby?

Mr. McWiLLie. That’s right, and I told him that I didn’t know
who the president was, but I thought I knew a man that would
know. Incidentally, this man was a very good friend of mine and he
got very upset about it, about me having Ruby call him and what
happened. I told him, I said, well, I didn’t know he was that kind of
a fellow which I didn’t.

Mr. FitHiAN. What was your reaction when you learned that
Jack Ruby had shot Oswald?

Mr. McWiLLiE. Well, I tell you, like I said I was working late at
night and I was in my bedroom asleep and my wife had a radio or
a TV in the kitchen. She came running in the room waking me up.
She said, “My gosh, come in the kitchen, she said, someone just
shot Oswald,” and jokingly I said, “I hope its no one I know.” We
went in the kitchen and the announcer said a man named Segal
had shot him. I said, “Well, I don’t know him,” laughing. All of a
sudden, they said, “We made a mistake, it was a man named Jack
Ruby.” I said, “Oh my God, I know this man, my goodness.” I told
my wife, well, now, the FBI will be out here. Sure enough, in about
3 hours, the FBI came out.

Mr. FitHiAN. Besides your wife and the three FBI agents, who
were the other people you talked to, after Ruby shot Oswald, about
this, about the fact you knew Ruby and he had shot Oswald?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Well, several people brought it up that I knew
him. I don’t know who they were. I said isn’t this an awful thing to
know someone like this and have to go through all this problem
over nothing? That’s about the only thing I ever said. It has been
an ordeal for 15 years.

35-379 O - 79 - 16
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Mr. FrrHiaN. Mr. McWillie, in your deposition to the committee,
you indicate that you participated in the Fair Play for Cuba Com-
mittee, is that correct?

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir?

Mr. FrrHiAN. You indicated in your deposition to the committee,
I believe, that you participated in the Fair Play for Cuba Commit-
tee, is that correct?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. Before I left here, I was going to get that straight-
ened out. It is on page 121, I think, of paragraph 11 or 12; is that
right? Do you have it in front of you?

Mr. FitHiAN. I believe you are correct in your citation.

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir?

Mr. FrrHiaN. I believe you are correct in your citation.

Mr. McWILLIE. Do you want me to read it to you?

Mr. FrrHiaN. I will be happy to have you straighten it out, if you
can.

Mr. McWiLLiE. I think it is page 121. It says ‘“Subsequent to your
returning to the United States——"

Mr. FrrHiAN. Could you just get the microphone a little closer?
Thank you.

Mr. McWiLLIE. It says, ‘“‘Subsequent to your returning to the
United States, you were involved in an incident at Miami Airport,
is that correct?”

Subsequent, that means after I left Cuba; right?

Mr. FitHIAN. Right.

Mr. McWiLLiE. And I answered, “That’s right.”

“Is it fair to characterize you as anti-Castro?”’ And the answer
here is, which is untrue, “I was in an outfit called Fair Play for
Cuba. I am not proud of it. But, I was just mad.”

I think they got that mixed up. The fellow I had the altercation
with was with the Fair Play, an organization named the Fair Pla;
for Cuba. Could that be taken out of this record because I didn’t
say that I was with the Fair Play——

Mr. FrTHIAN. I believe I have been informed by the staff that the
“he” in the transcript when it got transcribed was attributed to
you and actually it was the person with whom you had some
differences—we will correct the record.

Mr. McWiLnie. Will this be changed?

Mr. PrReYER. Your explanation will be made a part of the record
and the record will be corrected.

Mr. McWiLLIE. It will be changed. Thank you, sir.

Mr. FrtHiAN. I just have one other quick area to explore and
then I will be done.

Mr. McWillie, do you know Earl Ruby?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Earl Ruby. I don’t know him intimately. I have
seen him a couple times.

Mr. FrraiaN. When did you meet him?

Mr. McWIiLLIE. I met him about 7 or 8 months ago. He came by
the place where I worked and I looked around and there was a
little fellow walking in the pit, we call it the pit. He walked up to
me and he says, are you McWillie? I said yes, I am. And he said,
well, I'm Earl Ruby. Well, I like to fell out when he told me he was
Earl Ruby, but I had never seen him before in my life and that was
the last person in the world I wanted to see. I said—he said, I am



239

here, I'm making a documentary for one of the networks—NBC or
one of them—and how have you been and this and that. I finally
told him, I said, Earl, if you don’t mind, would you just get out of
here and let me alone.

I have had enough problems knowing your brother, and I don't
want any more problems.

Mr. FiTHIAN. And is that the only time you met Earl Ruby then?

Mr. McWiLLIE. That’s the only time I ever met him, yes.

Mr. FitHiaN. Did Jack ever mention his brother, Earl, to you to
1959?

Mr. McWiLLIE. Did he ever mention him to me?

Mr. FrTHIAN. Yes.

Mr. McWiLLIE. The best I remember it, he had a brother named
Sam, I believe. I'm not positive. But, I am sure he had two broth-
ers. He was a little skinny fellow and was ill in some way. He had
a sister and he told me that she was ill. He never explained it, I
don’t know what illness she had or they both had.

Mr. Frtaian. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no further ques-
tions.

Mr. PrREYER. Are there any further questions from the panel? If
not, Mr. McWillie, under the rules of the committee, when the
questioning of a witness is completed, the witness has the right to
take 5 minutes to explain anything about his testimony that he
wishes to explain or to clarify or to just tell the committee any-
thing he wants to. Is there anything further that you would like to
say to the committee? If so, you will be recognized at this time.

Mr. McWiLLIE. Here is a question on page 121. “Subsequent to
you return to the United States, were you ever approached by
individuals regarding assassinating Castro?” And it took me by
surprise and I said, Oh, my God, no, because I never was there.
This was the last question that was asked me as I was getting
ready to leave the room, if Mr. Purdy will recall, as I was putting
my coat on, I got up and was going out to leave, I am sure that he
asked me this question and it was so absurd that I—it astounded
me because I wouldn't assassinate a flea.

Mr. PrevER. Do you wish to make any further comment on your
answer to that question?

Mr. McWiLLiE. What, sir?

Mr. PreveEr. Do you wish to say anything further about that
question at this time?

Mr. McWILLIE. Sir, I can’t hear you. I'm sorry.

Mr. Prever. Do you wish to add to your answer at this time
anything further you want to say about that?

Mr. McWILLIE. No, sir.

Mr. Prever. Do you have any other comments that you wish to
make, Mr. McWillie, on anything?

Mr. McWILLIE. On anything pertaining to this thing?

Mr. PrEYER. Yes.

Mr. McWiLLIE. Not that I know of, sir.

Mr. Prever. All right. Thank you. If there are no further ques-
tions, Mr. McWillie, you will be excused at this time. Thank you
for being with us.

[Witness excused.]
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Mr. Prever. The Chair will recognize Mr. Blakey. You are ex-
cused at this time, Mr. McWillie.
Mr. McWiLLIE. Congressman, am I free to go back home?
Mr. PrEYER. You are free to go, Mr. McWillie. Thank you.
dié\’lr. McWIiLLIE. I'm sorry I could not hear you any better than I
id.

NARRATION BY G. ROBERT BLAKEY, CHIEF COUNSEL AND
STAFF DIRECTOR

Mr. Brakey. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Obviously there is not much to be learned from Mr. McWillie’s
testimony, but we do know certain things. First, McWillie was an
associate of Jack Ruby. Second, McWillie may have been associated
with Santos Trafficante, that is, at least if Trafficante had an
entrance in gambling casinos in Havana, though the extent and
nature of that relationship is as yet unclear and, third, there may
be a possibility, just a possibility of an association or at least one
meeting between Jack Ruby and Santos Trafficante himself. So
who is Santos Trafficante? What is his background? Who are or
were his associates? This was obviously some thing that the com-
mittee could not avoid getting into and, of course, it did, as these
hearings are designed to illustrate.

But before deciding whether or not to hear from Mr. Trafficante
himself, it may be useful to hear the testimony of two other men
who may have been associated with Santos Trafficante. The first
must be summarized for the record, since he was an American
intelligence agent assigned to operations in Florida in the early
1960’s and he cannot publicly appear, otherwise his identity would
be revealed. On September 25, 1978, a sworn statement was given
to the committee by a retired official of the CIA.

Mr. Chairman, I would ask that it be entered into the record at
this point as JFK exhibit F-600.

Mr. PrevERr. Without objection, it is ordered into the record at
this point as JFK exhibit F-600.

[JFK exhibit F-600 was received into the record and follows:]





